
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              March 17, 2020

          

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

Board of Supervisors Room
County Administrative Center

224 North Edwards
Independence, California

  All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda.  Anyone wishing to speak, please obtain a 
card  from  the Board Clerk and  indicate each  item you would  like  to discuss.   Return  the completed card  to  the Board Clerk before  the Board 
considers the item (s) upon which you wish to speak. You will be allowed to speak about each item before the Board takes action on it. 

Any member  of  the  public may  also make  comments  during  the  scheduled  “Public  Comment”  period  on  this  agenda  concerning  any  subject 
related to the Board of Supervisors or County Government.  No card needs to be submitted in order to speak during the “Public Comment” period.
Public Notices: (1)    In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act,  if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please 
contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 8780373.  (28 CFR 35.10235.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
County  to  make  reasonable  arrangements  to  ensure  accessibility  to  this  meeting.  Should  you  because  of  a  disability  require  appropriate 
alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda 
available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an agenda item 
for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors,  is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be 
available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per 
Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).              
Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at 
the Board’s convenience.

March 17, 2020  8:30 AM
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

  2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – – Names of 
cases: LADWP v. Inyo County et al. (Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV18
101513KCT (CEQA)) and Inyo County v. LADWP (Kern County Superior Court 
Case Nos. BCV18101260TSC, BCV18101261TSC, and BCV18101262TSC).

 

  3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Regarding employee 
organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo 
County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers 
Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Leslie Chapman, 
Deputy Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health 
and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff 
Thomson.

 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all opensession items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.)
 

10 A.M. 4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

  5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
 

  6. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

  7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes)

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              March 17, 2020

DEPARTMENTAL  PERSONNEL ACTIONS 
 

8. Health & Human Services  Health/Prevention  Request Board find that, 
consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for two (2) Prevention Specialists exists in nonGeneral Fund budgets, as 
certified by the Health and Human Services Director and concurred with by the 
County Administrator, and AuditorController; B) where internal candidates meet the 
qualifications for the positions, the vacancies could possibly be filled through an 
internal recruitment, but an open recruitment would be more appropriate to ensure 
qualified candidates apply; and C) approve the hiring of two (2) Prevention 
Specialists at Range 60 ($3,684  $4,475).

 

9. Public Works  Request Board change the authorized strength in the Public Works 
Department by:
A) Approving the creation of a Building and Maintenance Worker III, Range 62 and 
Building and Maintenance Worker IV, Range 64; 
B) Approving the attached job descriptions; and
C) Reclassifying one current fulltime Building & Maintenance Worker II position, 
Range 60 ($3,684  $4,475), to a Level IV at Range 64 ($4,043  $4,913). 

 

10. Public Works  Request Board change the authorized strength in the Public Works 
Road Department by:                    
A) Deleting two (2) fulltime Heavy Equipment Operator I/II positions, Range 58
Range 60 ($3,513  $4,475); and
B) Adding two (2) fulltime Lead Equipment Operator positions, Range 66 ($4,231  
$5,151); and
C) Finding that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: 1) 
With the deletion of two (2) fulltime Heavy Equipment Operator I/II positions, the 
availability of funding for two (2) Lead Equipment Operator positions exists in the 
Road Budget, as certified by the Public Works Director and concurred with by the 
County Administrator and the Auditor/Controller; 2) where internal candidates meet 
the qualifications of the position, the new fulltime Lead Equipment Operator 
positions will be filled through an internal recruitment to ensure the most qualified 
applicants apply; and 3) authorize the hiring of two (2) fulltime Lead Equipment 
Operator positions, Range 66 ($4,231  $5,151).

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator)
 

11. Agricultural Commissioner  ESWMA  Request Board approve the Memorandum 
of Understanding between the County of Inyo and Sierra Nevada Alliance for the 
provision of two Americorp Members in an amount not to exceed $6,875 per member 
for the period of April 1, 2020 through September 30, 2020, and authorize the 
Agricultural Commissioner to sign.

 

12. Agricultural Commissioner  OVMAP  Request Board: A) declare ADAPCO the 
sole source provider of VetcoBac GR; and B) approve the purchase of eighty (80) 
fortypound bags of VectoBac GR from ADAPCO by the Owens Valley Mosquito 
Abatement Program in an amount not to exceed $10,378.48.

 

13. County Administrator  Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the 
Memorandum of Agreement between the County of Inyo and the City of Bishop for 
Building Permitting and Inspection adding City Engineer services for the purpose of 
approving Parcel and Final Maps only and authorize the Chairperson to sign, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              March 17, 2020

14. County Administrator  Emergency Services  Request Board: A) declare the 
California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (CalOES)  California 
Specialized Training Institute (CSTI), a solesource provider of Specialized 
Emergency and Preparedness Training Services; and, B) authorize a purchase order 
payable to CalOES  CSTI in an amount not to exceed $30,000 for Training Services.

 

15. County AdministratorEmergency Services & Public Works  Request Board: A) 
authorize the County of Inyo to become a party to the California Water/Wastewater 
Response Network CalWARN 2007 Omnibus Mutual Assistance Agreement; and B) 
authorize the Chairperson to sign the agreement.

 

16. County Administrator  Motor Pool  Request Board authorize issuance of a 
blanket purchase order in an amount not to exceed $15,000, payable to Jim Charlon 
Ford of Ridgecrest, CA for vehicle maintenance.  

 

17. County Administrator  Recycling & Waste Management  Request Board waive 
the Purchasing Policy requirement to obtain three bids and choose a vendor before 
seeking Board approval for purchase of a vehicle over $10,000, and authorize the 
purchase of a used RollOff Truck, or a cab, chassis and tarp system, from a vendor 
to be determined by the Assistant County Administrator for use within the Recycling 
Waste Management Program in an amount not to exceed $90,000 including tax and 
delivery.

 

18. Health & Human Services  Fiscal  Request Board: A) approve Agreement No. 20
10008 between the County of Inyo and California Department of Health Care 
Services, for the contract from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023 for the maximum 
amount of the agreement reimbursement of $600,000, for approved MediCal 
Administrative Activities; and B) authorize the HHS Director to sign the Standard 
Agreement, California Civil Rights Laws Certification, MediCal Disclosure 
Statement, and Contractor Certification Clause 307, contingent upon the adoption of 
future budgets.

 

19. Health & Human Services  First 5  Request Board approve the contract between 
the County of Inyo and Triple P America from March 20, 2020 to June 30, 2020 for 
Triple P Positive Parenting Program training services in an estimated amount of 
$32,000, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained.

 

20. Sheriff  Request Board authorize a purchase order in an amount not to exceed 
$11,350, payable to Sun Ridge Systems, Inc. of El Dorado, CA for iRIMS Law mobile 
and 1 year of support.

 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience)
 

21. Community Organization/Outside Agency  Request Board receive an update 
from the California Public Utilities Commission on Southern California Edison's two 
transmission line projects.

 

22. Community Organization/Outside Agency  Request Board hear a presentation 
from representatives of Northern Inyo Healthcare District about their harm reduction 
program and new programs being planned. 

 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              March 17, 2020

23. Planning Department  Request Board accept and provide comments on the draft 
Inyo County 2019 General Plan Annual Progress Report (APR), and direct staff to 
forward the APR with any modifications to the State of California’s Department of 
Housing and Community Development and Governor’s Office of Planning and 
Research.

 

24. Agricultural Commissioner  Cannabis  Request board approve a request a 
change in ownership for commercial cannabis business license number 5A001, 
Lonely Pine, LLC dba Urbn Leaf, contingent on submission and approval of 
appropriate background checks. 

 

25. County Counsel  Request Board: A) approve Ordinance 1253 titled, "An Ordinance 
of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors Adding Chapter 7.02 of the Inyo County 
Code to Regulate the Transfer or Transport of Water from Groundwater Basins 
Located Wholly or Partially Within Inyo County, and Repealing Inyo County 
Ordinance No. 1004 (Chapter 18.77 of the Inyo County Code);" and B) approve 
Resolution No. 202010 titled, “A Resolution of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
Modifying Resolution 9943 to Expand the Water Commission's Duties and Authority 
to Include Reviewing and Deciding Upon Applications For A Water Transfer or 
Transport Permit Pursuant to Ordinance 1253," and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign.

 

26. County Administrator  Emergency Services  Request Board discuss and 
consider staff’s recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency 
known as the “Here It Comes Emergency” that was proclaimed in anticipation of run
off conditions from nearrecord snowpack posing extreme peril to the safety of 
property and persons in Inyo County.

 

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after 
the scheduled time.)
 

27. 1 P.M.  BOARD OF EQUALIZATION  The Board of Supervisors will recess and 
reconvene as the Inyo County Board of Equalization (separate agenda).

 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff)
 

  28. PUBLIC COMMENT
 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS 
 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Health/Prevention
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Request to hire two full time Prevention Specialists in the HHS Public Health and Prevention Division 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board find that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: A) the availability of 
funding for two (2) Prevention Specialists exists in non-General Fund budgets, as certified by the Health and 
Human Services Director and concurred with by the County Administrator, and Auditor-Controller; B) where 
internal candidates meet the qualifications for the positions, the vacancies could possibly be filled through an 
internal recruitment, but an open recruitment would be more appropriate to ensure qualified candidates apply; 
and C) approve the hiring of two (2) Prevention Specialists at Range 60 ($3,684 - $4,475).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Two Prevention Specialists, who were assigned to work in the First 5 and other prevention programs in the HHS 
Public Health and Prevention division, recently accepted new positions, one with another HHS program and one 
with a community agency. Both Prevention Specialists facilitated Triple P parenting education courses in the jail 
and community, as well as promoted early literacy and quality early child care programs. One Prevention 
Specialist facilitated SUD prevention activities with seniors, including the WISE program, and provided child 
developmental screenings and technical assistance to child care providers. The other also led the car seat 
coalition as a car seat technician, and provided eligibility and nutrition education services as a WIC Nutrition 
Assistant. The Department is respectfully requesting your Board's approval to fill these important prevention 
positions. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the filling of these positions, which would significantly limit our ability to 
offer Triple P parenting courses, senior prevention activities, and other early child development activities 
associated with First 5 Inyo.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Local child care providers, senior programs, Probation, and other HHS divisions.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
State, Federal funding and Social Services Realignment. One position is budgeted 100% in First 5 (643000) and 
the other is budgeted 50% in First 5 (643000), 25% in SUD (045315) and 25% in Social Services (055800) in the 
Salaries and Benefits object codes. No County General Funds
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Anna Scott Created/Initiated - 2/25/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/26/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 2/27/2020
Meaghan McCamman Approved - 2/27/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 3/2/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 3/2/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 3/2/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/2/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 3/2/2020



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Chris Cash 
 
SUBJECT:  Water Systems service redesign, change existing Building & Maintenance Worker I/II position job 
description. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board change the authorized strength in the Public Works Department by:
A) Approving the creation of a Building and Maintenance Worker III, Range 62 and Building and Maintenance 
Worker IV, Range 64; 
B) Approving the attached job descriptions; and
C) Reclassifying one current full-time Building & Maintenance Worker II position, Range 60 ($3,684 - $4,475), to 
a Level IV at Range 64 ($4,043 - $4,913). 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
At the December 11, 2018 Board of Supervisors meeting, the Public Works Department identified several 
personnel changes that would be part of the Public Works Department assuming operational responsibility, 
oversight, and repair of the three town water systems located in Laws, Independence,  and  Lone Pine. 

With the assumption there will be more training requirements and responsibility for the existing personnel of the 
town water systems. Successfully acquiring this certificate is part of the redundancy and regulatory knowledge 
Public Works is building within the Water Systems. Currently the Building and Maintenance workers do not have 
a salary schedule enhancement for the successful completion in obtaining and maintaining a valid California 
Water Distribution Certification D1 and D2, this amends the job description in Public Works, Building and 
Maintenance, to reflect that change.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
You could choose not to approve this request which is not recommended by the Public Works Department as the 
additional education and certification compensation is consistent with other County departments.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Auditor
Personnel
 
FINANCING:
Funding for this change is budgeted in Building & Maintenance (011100), Independence Water Systems 
(152103), and Lone Pine Water Systems (152104) budgets.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Building Maintenance Worker I, II, III, or IV
 
APPROVALS:
Debbe Ditmar Created/Initiated - 3/10/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/10/2020
Debbe Ditmar Approved - 3/11/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 3/11/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/11/2020
Chris Cash Final Approval - 3/11/2020



  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
  

 

ANNOUNCES AN OPEN RECRUITMENT FOR: 

 

BUILDING AND MAINTENANCE WORKER I/II/III OR IV 
Application Deadline:   

 

DEPARTMENT:    Public Works 

LOCATION:   Countywide 

SALARY:   Level I:    Range 56  $3,358 - $4,074** 

    Level II:   Range 60  $3,684 - $4,475** 

                                                        Level III:  Range 62  $3,859 - $4,692** 

                                                        Level IV: Range 64  $4,043 - $4,913** 

 
**BENEFITS:  CalPERS Retirement System: Existing (“Classic”) CalPERS members as of January 1, 2013, (2% at 55) –  Inyo County 

pays employee contribution for current CalPERS members; new CalPERS members hired after January 1, 2013 (2% at 62) will be 

required to pay at least 50% of normal cost.  Medical Plan – Inyo County pays a portion of employee and dependent monthly premium 

on PERS medical plans; 100% of employee and dependent monthly premium paid for dental and vision; $20,000 term life insurance 

policy on employee.   Vacation – 10 days per year during the first three years; 15 days per year after three years; 1 additional day for 

each year of service after ten years to a maximum of 25 days per year.  Sick leave – 15 days per year.  Flex (personal days) – 5 days per 

fiscal year.  Paid holidays – 11 per year.  

 

DEFINITION:  To perform a variety of skilled and semiskilled duties in the maintenance, construction, and repair of 

buildings and equipment; County Water Systems operation; and to perform related duties as assigned. 

 

ESSENTIAL JOB DUTIES:  Alters, repairs, or constructs articles and structures of wood such as cabinets, partitions, 

counters, doors, window frames, forms, and fences; repairs office furniture, equipment, and wooden fixtures; maintains and 

repairs woodwork of buildings; builds cases and shelving; fits doors, windows, and screens; maintains tools and 

equipment; installs cabinet tops and hardware; performs glazing work, cuts and installs window glass; repairs existing 

plumbing systems; installs water piping, sewer mains, and laterals; replaces or repairs pipes, valves, fittings; replaces water 

closets, flush valves, ball cocks; cleans out waste piping; works from blueprints and sketches; orders materials and 

maintains a list of materials on hand; cleans, sands, seals, and otherwise prepares and paints using roller, brush, or spray as 

required; inspects, disassembles, ventilating, and refrigeration units and systems; tests for defective parts and determines 

cause of malfunction; inspects wiring, visible relay contacts, capacitors, and motors and belts; replaces damaged or 

malfunctioning parts; changes filters, oils, and cleans equipment; adjusts and installs switches, gauges, and other control 

systems; installs and replaces tubing and pipe as necessary; may supervise, assign, and review work of an assigned 

assistant; inspects, repairs, replaces, and installs lighting devices, motors, clocks, bells, wiring, conduit, switches, plugs, 

sewage pumps, magnetic contacts, circuit breakers, vacuum tubes, relays and resistors; works from wiring diagrams and 

schematic diagrams; may perform welding duties; may assist other building and maintenance workers as necessary; 

performs journey level tasks as assigned. 

 

EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS 

Experience:  Level I - High school graduate or equivalent with three years of full-time, journey level experience in one or 

more of the building trades. 

 

Level II - High school graduate or equivalent with four years of full-time, journey level experience in one or more of the 

building trades. 

 

Level III - High school graduate or equivalent with four years of full-time, journey level experience in one or more of the 

building trades, California Water Distribution Certificate 1, (D1). 

 

Level VI - High school graduate or equivalent with four years of full-time, journey level experience in one or more of the 

building trades, California Water Distribution Certificate II, (D2). 

 

 

 

INYO COUNTY  

PERSONNEL SERVICES 

P. O. BOX 249 

INDEPENDENCE, CA  93526  

(760)  878 -0377 

FAX (760)  878 -0465  

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER 

(WOMEN, MINORITIES, AND DISABLED ARE ENCOURAGED TO APPLY) 



 

Knowledge of:  Materials, methods, tools, and safety practices of two or more of the following trades:  plumbing, 

carpentry, painting, heating and air conditioning, hazardous materials, and safe work practices. 

 

Ability to:  Perform journey level work in plumbing, electrical, mechanical, painting, or carpentry; estimate materials and 

time required for jobs; read blueprints and work from plans, drawings, sketches, and specifications; work cooperatively 

with coworkers and others contacted in the course of work.   

 

Physical ability to:  Meet and maintain standards of physical endurance and agility; perform heavy manual labor; lift in 

excess of ninety pounds; use a pick and shovel; move tools and equipment by pushing and pulling; stand and walk on 

uneven surfaces; work in confined spaces; work in adverse weather conditions; must have the physical stamina to 

withstand repetitive bending, twisting, squatting, and reaching overhead.  

 

Core Competencies: 

The core competencies listed below and the ability to immediately demonstrate these competencies consistent with the 

position's level in the department and the specific work assignment: 

 

Intensity: Goes after the goal with passion; is results oriented, and gets the job done.  Key Concepts:  Risk- taker; results-

oriented; and initiative driver. 

Ethical Behavior: Does what is right regardless of temptations and pressures to do otherwise; upholds the public's trust; 

and conducts self-according to a set of principles.  Key Concepts:  Respect; trust; responsible; fair; and caring. 

Influence: Affects successful outcomes for the organization through the use of masterful leadership, collaboration, and a 

keen understanding of the organization, its goals, and the interests of all parties.  Key Concepts:  Engaged; collaborative; 

strategic orientation; situational awareness; organizationally savvy; inspirational; energizing-empowering; team 

orientation; and change agent. 

Commitment:  Successfully builds relationships with and promotes involvement of diverse groups; considers the needs of 

diverse clients when developing policies and procedures related to service; works closely with diverse groups to identify 

and deliver services that meet their needs and the strategic objectives of the program; establishes customer service as the 

single purpose to which all resources are dedicated; focuses on delivering the best services possible to the public; focuses 

on customer needs; and is committed to public service.  Key Concepts:  Public servant; and customer service. 

Interpersonal Skills: Possesses and uses versatile communication styles and approaches; understands the underlying 

psychology of why people act as they do and changes approach to affect positive outcomes; builds rapport throughout the 

organization; and develops human potential.  Key Concepts:  Staff development; communication; listening; delegation; 

recognition; and buy-in. 

Resiliency: Is adaptable; takes direct action; leads by example; exhibits tenacity. This leader is ready, flexible, self-reliant, 

and has a reputation for finding opportunities in difficult situations.  Key Concepts:  Action- orientation; adaptability; 

flexibility; agility; tenacity; survivability; courage; confidence; and intuition. 

Craftsmanship: Rejects the "good enough for government work" attitude; takes ownership of work done and results 

accomplished; takes pride in delivering quality services to customers; seeks out opportunities to develop new and creative 

solutions and programs; imagines possibilities; defines a vision, and works to bring vision into reality.  Key Concepts: 

Innovative; imaginative; inventive; pride-in-work; accountability; self- development; and self-starter. 

 

Special requirements:  Must possess or obtain by appointment date a valid operator’s license issued by the State 

Department of Motor Vehicles; must be willing and able to work on-call and/or overtime; must successfully complete a 

County background investigation and physical, prior to employment. 

 

SELECTION:  Selection procedures will be determined by the number and qualifications of applicants and may include a 

qualification screening, written examination, skills examination, and oral interview. 

 

APPLICATION:  Applications must be received in the Personnel Office, P.O. Box 249, Independence, CA  93526, no 

later than 5:00 p.m. on February 13, 2018 (postmarks not accepted).  Must apply on Inyo County application form.  A 

cover letter and/or resume will be accepted in addition to the application form but will not serve as a substitute for a 

completed application.  It is not acceptable to complete the application with statements like “See/Refer to Resume” or 

“See Attached”.  Incomplete applications will not be processed.  Applications may be faxed to meet the deadline—

original application with original signature must be mailed. 

 
 

 

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH QUALIFYING DISABILITIES:    Inyo County will make 

reasonable efforts in the examination process on a case-by-case basis to accommodate persons with disabilities.  If you have special 

needs, please contact (760) 878-0377 prior to the examination process. 

 

 



CITIZENSHIP/IMMIGRATION STATUS:  Inyo County employs only U.S. citizens and lawfully authorized non-citizens in 

accordance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986. 

 

 

The County of Inyo has work sites located throughout Inyo County in the Owens Valley (Independence, Bishop, Lone Pine, Big Pine, 

and Olancha) and the Death Valley area (Death Valley, Shoshone, and Tecopa).  All Inyo County positions are considered 

Countywide positions.  Positions are assigned to a work site based upon the needs of the County.  Positions may be temporarily or 

permanently reassigned to another work site as deemed necessary by the Department Head. 

 



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Chris Cash 
 
SUBJECT:  Road Department Authorized Strength Change 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board change the authorized strength in the Public Works Road Department by:                    
A) Deleting two (2) full-time Heavy Equipment Operator I/II positions, Range 58-Range 60 ($3,513 - $4,475); and
B) Adding two (2) full-time Lead Equipment Operator positions, Range 66 ($4,231 - $5,151); and
C) Finding that, consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy: 1) With the deletion of two (2) 
full-time Heavy Equipment Operator I/II positions, the availability of funding for two (2) Lead Equipment Operator 
positions exists in the Road Budget, as certified by the Public Works Director and concurred with by the County 
Administrator and the Auditor/Controller; 2) where internal candidates meet the qualifications of the position, the 
new full-time Lead Equipment Operator positions will be filled through an internal recruitment to ensure the most 
qualified applicants apply; and 3) authorize the hiring of two (2) full-time Lead Equipment Operator positions, 
Range 66 ($4,231 - $5,151).
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Public Works Department is requesting approval to delete two existing Equipment Operator I/II positions in 
the Road Departments authorized strength, and then add two full-time Lead Equipment Operator positions, and 
hire two full-time Lead Equipment Operator positions. 
 
The Road Department currently has one Lead Equipment Operator position, and that position is assigned to the 
road Yard that oversees the Lone Pine/Olancha area, District 5.  
 
In recent recruitments, there have been several applicants that have applied for Equipment Operator positions 
but failed to meet the minimum qualifications. Some of the applicants were Seasonal Workers that had proven 
themselves as competent workers but lacked the required years of experience to qualify for an Operator position. 
Public Works brought back the Road Maintenance Worker I/II classification to broaden the recruitment options 
and provide opportunities for training and advancement within the County structure.
 
Now with the full staffing in the road yards, we would like to increase the opportunities for leadership roles and 
training for possible advancement. One of the most effective ways for the Road Department to achieve this is to 
implement the Lead Equipment Operator position in the Road yards that have enough staffing to warrant the 
additional oversite. We will be assigning these positons to the Bishop and Big Pine/Independence Road yards, 
District one and three respectively. This position is intended to be the Lead authority in the Foremen’s absence 
and carry out the Foreman’s goals and objectives for their Road District. This will be an internal recruitment from 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

the existing operators and there will be no additional positons to the Road Department authorized staffing.
 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could elect not to authorize the filling of these positions. This is not recommended as succession 
planning and training for advancement has become a goal of this Department. This will allow the Road 
Department to continue to provide leadership training, supporting the Foreman of the Districts, while also 
providing opportunities for advancement. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Personnel Department
Auditor
 
FINANCING:
Funding for this is budgeted in Road (034600)
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Debbe Ditmar Created/Initiated - 3/10/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/10/2020
Debbe Ditmar Approved - 3/11/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 3/11/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/11/2020
Chris Cash Final Approval - 3/11/2020



County of Inyo

Agricultural Commissioner - ESWMA
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Alexandra Barbella, Nathan Reade 
 
SUBJECT:  MOU with the Sierra Nevada Alliance for the provision of seasonal field staff. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Inyo and Sierra Nevada 
Alliance for the provision of two Americorp Members in an amount not to exceed $6,875 per member for the 
period of April 1, 2020 through September 30, 2020, and authorize the Agricultural Commissioner to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Eastern Sierra Weed Management (ESWMA) division of the Agricultural Commissioner's Office seeks to 
obtain two seasonal field assistants through an MOU with the Sierra Nevada Alliance (SNA) for invasive plant 
control work during the 2020 season. A signed MOU must be received by SNA prior to April 2, 2020 in order to 
move forward with placement of the seasonal field assistants.

lf authorized and a contract is entered into between the County of lnyo and SNA, these seasonal positions would 
provide extra help needed to complete field work funded by various grants. The ESWMA program will benefit 
from a partnership with the SNA since significant cost savings will result in more field work being completed with 
the same amount of resources expended by ESWMA.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The Sierra Nevada AmeriCorp Partnership is administered by the Sierra Nevada Alliance. This programs places 
individuals who are interested in environmental management in early career positions. The program covers half 
of the wages and benefits. Costs will be further offset by contributions from the lnyo National Forest and the 
Bureau of Land Management for work on projects on federal lands. The County is responsible for $6,875 per 
member for a total of $13,750.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could not approve the action outlined in the Departmental Recommendation. This alternative would 
limit the scope of noxious weed abatement treatments, allowing for an increase in noxious weed populations in 
lnyo and Mono Counties, and potentially preclude this program from fulfilling commitments to current grant 
funding requirements and contracted work for other agencies.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The Inyo National Forest and Bureau of Land Management, Bishop Field Office, will be providing contributions 
toward the cost of SNA contracted seasonal staff for work conducted on federal lands.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:
Sufficient funds are available for these positions from April 1,2020 through June 30, 2020 in the ESWMA fiscal 
year 2019-2020 budget (unit 621300, object code 5012, Part Time Employees) previously approved by the 
Board. Since these positions are paid in-full by April 6,2020, there is no need to consider the fiscal year 2020-
2021. The ESWMA is a non-general fund program. There will be no fiscal impact to the lnyo County General 
Fund.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inyo-SNA Memorandum of Understanding
 
APPROVALS:
Alexandra Barbella Created/Initiated - 2/26/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/26/2020
Alexandra Barbella Approved - 2/27/2020
Nathan Reade Approved - 2/27/2020
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 2/27/2020
Grace Chuchla Approved - 2/27/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 2/27/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 2/27/2020
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 2/27/2020



1 

 

Memorandum of Understanding 
Between Sierra Nevada Alliance  

and Inyo and Mono Counties Agricultural 
Commissioner’s Office  

 

For implementation of the Sierra Nevada AmeriCorps Partnership (SNAP) 
 

Effective Dates: April 1, 2020 – September 30, 2020 
Members Service Term: April 6, 2020 – September 19, 2020 

 

The purpose of this agreement is to establish the basic parameters of AmeriCorps participation 

at the host site. Failure to perform the duties outlined herein in a timely manner is grounds for 

dismissal of the Host organization from further participation in the Sierra Nevada AmeriCorps 

Partnership. 

 

Number of AmeriCorps Members to be placed at this Host Site:  2 
 
Responsibilities of the Sierra Nevada Alliance 

• Lead on recruiting, initial interviewing and screening of AmeriCorps applicants 

• Basic orientation and training, refresher trainings and graduation training to Members 

regarding AmeriCorps and SNAP 

• One-day orientation and training to Site Supervisors regarding AmeriCorps and the 

SNAP Program 

• Ongoing site and Member support (at least one site visit per year, and regular email and 

phone contact) 

• Assistance organizing regular sub-regional meetings and conference calls to support 

AmeriCorps Members in professional development, regional collaboration and the 

planning and implementing of service activities  

• Support to Host Sites regarding Member monitoring 

• Media outreach about Members and their work at least once during the year 

• Member payroll and accounting systems 

• Required progress reports for the AmeriCorps program 

• Administration of grant funds and cash match for Members’ living allowance, insurance, 

training, travel to trainings and other Member support costs. 

• Ensure all Members are enrolled in Summit America health insurance policy. 

• Sierra Nevada Alliance provide Workers Compensation coverage for all SNAP Members. 

All on-the-job injuries will be covered by the Alliance policy. 

• Sierra Nevada Alliance provides General Liability Insurance Coverage of $1,000,000 and 

Auto Liability Bodily Injury and Property Damage: $1,000,000 each occurrence. These 

coverages are primary to any insurance provided by the Host Site and Site Supervisor. 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

Responsibilities of the Host Site and Site Supervisor 
(Please initial each box on the following checklist before signing and returning this MOU.) 

Signing this document signifies agreement to the following: 

 

Financial Requirements 

 

__ Pay $13,750 (Agency Rate: $6,875 x 2 Members) non-federal cash match to the Sierra 

Nevada Alliance no later than April 1st, 2020, to be applied to the Member’s living 

stipend and health insurance and other SNAP program costs. *  
 * Note failure to make payment on time is grounds for dismissal from the program. 

 

__ Pay a fee directly to the issuing agency per Site Supervisor (as well as any other employee 

whose time will be charged as in-kind contributions to the Sierra Nevada AmeriCorps 

Partnership Grant) for Fieldprint’s FBI and California Department of Justice Background 

Check processing. The Sierra Nevada Alliance will not be paying this fee for the 

background check directly.  

* Note: Please be aware that the LiveScan site that Site Supervisors utilize to take their 

fingerprints will charge fees. Contact your local LiveScan site for the fee amount. 

 

__ Reimburse all Host Site required Member travel. This includes travel to and from the 

office to project sites, travel to required non-SNAP trainings, etc.   

 

__ The SNAP Program will reimburse Members for all SNAP required travel for SNAP 

trainings and events based on traveling in carpooling groups. If the Host Site schedules 

the Member so that they are not available to carpool with other SNAP Members to SNAP 

trainings and events, the Host Site will be responsible for reimbursing the Member’s 

travel to and from the SNAP event.   

 

Program Requirements 
 

__  Utilize AmeriCorps Member/s only to provide services that support the SNAP mission.  

All Member service hours must be attributable to the following categories: 

• Watershed Restoration and Assessment 

• Watershed Education and Outreach 

• Volunteer Recruitment and Support 

• Member Training and Development 

• Resource Attainment 

 

__  Treat AmeriCorps Member/s as part of your staff team. AmeriCorps Member/s should 

attend staff meetings, be formally introduced to all staff, and be invited to participate in 

in-house training, if appropriate.  

 

__  Submit a formal Member Host Site Orientation Plan to SNAP Staff by April 1st, 2020. 

SNAP Members must be oriented on Host Site rules, policies & procedures, and have a 

safety briefing. 

 



3 

 

__  The Host Site may hire the SNAP Member as a non-SNAP employee at their 

organization ONLY upon the completion of a full term of service (4 months of service 

and a minimum of 900 service hours for half-term) by the Member. 

  

__ Define, explain and recognize the service of your AmeriCorps Member/s and of your 

collaboration with the SNAP Program within your organization and community as a way 

to promote understanding of the AmeriCorps involvement in your community. 

 

__  Ensure that Members abide by the SNAP Program policy that Members wear 

AmeriCorps service gear and identifiers during all service hours. SNAP Members must 

wear a SNAP or AmeriCorps shirt (provided by SNAP) while conducting service outside 

of the host site office (when dress code permits – i.e. not if at a conference or event with 

business casual or formal attire requirements, not when SNAP shirt would be a safety 

risk, etc.). AmeriCorps button is acceptable while in the Host Site Office. 

 

__  Hold the member accountable to SNAP professional standards. This includes acting 

professionally at all times while serving; including demonstrating a constructive attitude 

about trainings, service projects and AmeriCorps ethics. Members who do not act 

professionally or behave in an inappropriate manner while serving may be dismissed 

from the program by SNAP Staff despite being in good standing with their Host Site. 

 

__  Ensure that on each day in which a Member works up to six hours, a lunch break of at 

least 30 minutes is taken and if Member works up to twelve hours, they must have breaks 

totaling 1 hour. 

 

__  Provide a positive and constructive work atmosphere for AmeriCorps Members to serve 

in. 

 

Insurance Requirements 

 

__ Maintain insurance to serve as excess to coverage provided by Sierra Nevada Alliance 

pursuant to this MOU of the following type and with the following minimum limits: 

Comprehensive General Liability Bodily Injury & Property Damage (including 

advertisers liability) of $1,000,000; and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Bodily 

Injury & Property Damage of $1,000,000 

 

___Furnish evidence of such insurance to the Alliance by April 1, 2020. The evidence must 

be in the form of a Certificate of Insurance which shall name the following entity as 

additional insured: Sierra Nevada Alliance. The certificate shall contain a clause 

indicating that a 30-day notice of cancellation or material change will be provided. The 

Host Site will keep such insurance in effect throughout the Term of the MOU.  

 

Administrative Requirements 
 

__ Ensure timely completion, review and submission of all Member reports to the SNAP 

main office (Sierra Nevada Alliance), including but not limited to: 

• Members’ monthly time sheets 



4 

 

• Member monthly reporting trackers 

• Written Member evaluations three times yearly 

 

__  Sites that fail to submit required reporting correctly by the due date published on the 

2019-20 Reporting Checklist (distributed at the Pre-Service Orientation) will be invoiced 

for the additional staff time required to track down and or correct documentation. The 

SNAP Program will charge the Host Site $100.00 after the first two weeks documentation 

is missing and an additional $100.00 for each week thereafter. Failure to pay this invoice 

will result in the site being dropped from the program and the Member being assigned a 

new service position.   

 

__  Notify the SNAP main office immediately if any AmeriCorps Member has more than one 

unexcused absence or tardiness, or if you become concerned about your Member’s 

professional behavior. 

 

__  Discuss the SNAP Member Contract with Member/s at your site and establish and uphold 

accountability standards set through this process. The SNAP Member Contract is signed 

by the Members and the SNAP Program Director prior to the start of service.  

 

__  Provide office space, computer use, and office equipment equal to the tasks in the 

Members’ Service Plan. Email, web, and phone are required so Members can 

communicate with SNAP Staff and community contacts. Regular internet access is 

required. 

 

__ Provide a safe office environment that protects the member’s health, including providing 

an ergonomically correct work space.  

 

__ Provide safe field environment and personal protective equipment for the members. This 

includes providing water, gloves, eye coverage and other equipment based on the field 

work at the site. If Members will be working with hazardous or dangerous materials 

or in hazardous sites, members must be provided proper training. 

 

__ Provide your member with adequate training in identifying, avoiding, and working around 

Poison Oak if there is Poison Oak at your field sites and in your community.  

 

__  Participate in site visits and evaluation activities, including visits by the SNAP Staff and 

possible site visits from CaliforniaVolunteers and other AmeriCorps officials. 

 

__ Complete and submit a SNAP match form on a monthly basis. The match form documents 

in-kind expenses incurred through Member service and projects. Copies of the supporting 

documents for the match form must be provided with the match form. Originals must be 

kept at a secure location at your organization and must be made readily available for 

SNAP Staff or CaliforniaVolunteers upon request for three years. 

 

__  Release AmeriCorps Member/s to attend regional orientations/trainings/meetings/work 

days and sub regional meetings and conference calls. A calendar of trainings and 



5 

 

meetings will be distributed to Host Sites at the first SNAP Training and Orientation. 

SNAP events will not exceed more than 10 full days of in-person mandatory training 

days, 6 workdays, and 12 hours of conference calls for the duration of Member service in 

2020. Members should not be assigned any work from their Host Site while serving at 

SNAP events and/or trainings.  

  

__ Release AmeriCorps Members to participate in California Volunteers, AmeriCorps, and 

SNAP required service days including Cesar Chavez Day of Service and AmeriCorps 

Week.  

 

__ Make every effort to replace a Member who exits the program before May 1, 2020. If the 

program is unable to find a candidate to replace the member the pro-rated cash match 

would be returned to the Host Site. AmeriCorps Member/s can be replaced only if they 

have served less than 30% of 900 hours, no matter the start date of their service. 

Replacement Members must be able to complete the 900 hours by September 19, 2020. 

Cash match for Members exiting after the May 1, 2020 deadline will not be 

reimbursed to the Host Site, but the Member may be able to be replaced. 

 

Supervisory Responsibilities 

 

__  Designate a Site Supervisor to guide and mentor the SNAP Member while they are in 

service at your organization / agency. 

 

__ Designated Site Supervisor(s) must attend the SNAP “Site Supervisor Orientation,” 

training on April 6, 2020, and participate in conference calls as scheduled (not to exceed 

monthly calls).  

 

__ Appoint a new Site Supervisor if the designated and SNAP trained Site Supervisor leaves 

the Host Site or for any reason can no longer fulfill their duties as Site Supervisor. In the 

event that a Site Supervisor leaves, the SNAP Program reserves the right to reevaluate the 

Host Site and deem whether or not Member/s will continue to serve with the 

organization/agency. New Site Supervisors appointed after April’s Training and 

Orientation must travel to the Sierra Nevada Alliance office in Tahoe City, CA for 

orientation. SNAP Staff may choose to charge the Host Site for staff time conducting 

additional orientations for new Site Supervisors.  
 

__ Ensure Members are in compliance with the Sierra Nevada AmeriCorps Partnership 

Personnel policies and the AmeriCorps Policies provided by the Sierra Nevada Alliance.  

 

__ Participate in the SNAP Member recruitment process by receiving applications, 

conducting second round interviews, and selecting potential SNAP. 

 

__ Finalize a service plan for the SNAP Member before April 1, 2020 with SNAP Staff.   

 

__ Ensure the Member meets their program objectives and serves 900 hours of service 

before September 19, 2020.  



6 

 

 

__ Host Sites must receive approval from the SNAP Program Director prior to making any 

changes in Members’ Service Plans, activities or support prior to making the change.  

 

__ Create service hours schedule (similar to office hours) assuring that the schedule allows 

the Member to meet program objectives and serve their 900 hours before September 19, 

2020. 

 

__ Ensure Members serve an average of 40 hours per week throughout the course of their 

Service Term. While Members will have busy periods where they serve more than 40 

hours a week with evening and weekend hours, this should not be the norm for their 

entire service period. 

 

__ Ensure Members do not engage in clerical work and research unless such activities are 

essential for the Member’s direct service.   

 

__ Ensure that the Member does not participate in grant writing or fundraising unless the 

following conditions are met: 

1. Member does not fundraise or write grants toward the Host Site’s cash match;  

2. Member does not write grants for federal grants; 

3. Fundraising and grant writing activities are written into the service plans prior to 

Member service and acknowledged by the Member as part of their upcoming 

service;  

4. Fundraising and grant writing must raise resources for Member direct service 

activities as opposed to the organization’s general funds; and  

5. Member fundraising activities and grant writing cannot exceed 10% (90 hours) of 

their service hours. 

 

 

The Site Supervisor will: 

 

__ Schedule a regular meeting with the AmeriCorps Member (at least 30 minutes twice a 

month) to provide guidance, assistance, information, mentorship, resources and feedback.   

 

__ Review and support the SNAP Member Contract outlining SNAP Program policies and 

procedures. 

 

__ Introduce the Member to organization/agency procedures. Mentor and monitor 

relationships between the Member and staff with whom they serve. 

 

__ Give Members appropriate guidance in specific skills needed for their service plan 

 

__ Complete a written and signed evaluation of SNAP Member performance and meet to 

review each evaluation with the Member 3 times yearly in April, June and September.  

 

__ Verify SNAP Member’s schedule and sign their timesheet once per month. 



7 

 

 

__ Schedule and conduct phone calls or emails with the SNAP Staff as requested. 

 

__ Abide by the SNAP Personnel Policies process for warnings, suspension and release. For 

violating the rules set forth in this Personnel Policy, the Site Supervisor will do the 

following (except in cases where during the term of service the member has been charged 

with or convicted of a violent felony, possession, sale, or distribution of a controlled 

substance): 

 

1.  For the member’s first offense, the site supervisor will issue a verbal warning to the 

member and email a description of the incident to SNAP Program Director or 

Program Associate. 
 

2.  For the member’s second offense, the Site Supervisor will call and email the SNAP 

Staff immediately. The Site Supervisor with SNAP Staff will together document the 

violations of the Personnel Policies, issue a written warning and reprimand the 

member. The Supervisor will include the SNAP staff in a meeting in-person or on the 

phone when presenting the written warning to the member. A copy of the written 

warning signed by the Site Supervisor and the Member will be given to the SNAP 

Staff for the Member’s file. 
 

3.  For the member’s third offense, the Site Supervisor will work with SNAP Staff to 

document the violations, issue a written warning and suspend the member. The 

Supervisor will include the SNAP staff in a meeting in person or on the phone when 

presenting the notification of suspension to the member. A copy of the written 

warning signed by the Site Supervisor and the Member will be given to the SNAP 

Staff for the Member’s file. The member may be suspended for one day or more 

without compensation and will not receive credit for any service hours missed.  
 

4.  For the fourth offense, the Site Supervisor will call SNAP staff immediately. The 

SNAP Program may release the member for cause. 

 

 

Prohibited Activities 

 

__ AmeriCorps Member/s will not be used in a way that will displace an employee or 

position or infringe on an employee’s promotional opportunities. 

 

__ AmeriCorps Member/s will not accrue hours while working from home at any time. 

 

__ AmeriCorps Members may not perform services or duties that have been performed by or 

were assigned to any: 

a. Presently employed worker 

b. Employee who recently resigned or was discharged 

c. Employee who is subject to a reduction in force or who has recall right pursuant to a 

collective bargaining agreement or applicable personnel procedures 

d. Employee who is on leave (terminal, temporary, vacation, emergency, or sick) 



8 

 

e. Employee who is on strike or is being locked out. 

 

__ If AmeriCorps Members are performing service on boats of any kind, proper insurance 

must be in place and SNAP staff must be notified. 

 

__ Any person employed by the Host Site within the preceding six months may not be placed 

as an AmeriCorps Member in that Host Site. 

 

__ Members may not be temporarily or permanently reassigned tasks that are not related to 

the AmeriCorps project.  

 

__  AmeriCorps Members are prohibited from engaging in lobbying activities or partisan 

political activities in the course of their duties, at the request of Host Site staff, or in a 

manner that would associate their activities with the Host Site or with AmeriCorps in any 

way. AmeriCorps Members may engage in these activities on their own time, at their own 

expense, and at their own initiative. Sites found to be in violation of this policy will be 

excused from the program immediately. If there is any question about whether an activity 

is permissible, please consult with the SNAP Program Director. 

 

__ AmeriCorps Members cannot participate in any AmeriCorps Prohibited Activities while 

accruing service hours, in service of the Host Site or while identifying as an AmeriCorps 

Member. Some examples of prohibited activities include, but are not limited to, the 

following: 

a. Efforts to influence legislation, including lobbying for AmeriCorps 

b. Organizing or engaging in protest petitions, boycotts, or strikes 

c. Assisting or deterring union organizing 

d. Impairing existing contracts or collective bargaining agreements 

e. Participating in, or endorsing, events or activities that are likely to include: 

advocacy for or against political parties, political platforms, political candidates, 

proposed legislation or elected officials (including school levies) 

f. Engaging in religious instruction 

g. Providing a direct benefit to a for-profit entity, a labor union, a partisan political 

organization, an organization engaged in religious activities, or a non-profit entity 

without 501(c)(3) status 

h. Organizing voter registration drives 

i.  Performing fundraising functions to help the Host Site raise cash match funds, or to 

fund general operating expenses, or providing fundraising assistance to other 

community-based organizations. 

 

Violation of any of the above terms will result in cancellation of this MOU by the Sierra Nevada 

Alliance. The Host Site will receive written cancellation notification from the Sierra Nevada 

Alliance. Host sites will not be reimbursed the Partner Cash Match if the Member on site is 

removed from the site due to a violation of the above terms. 

 

 

 



9 

 

 

I have read the MOU and agree to follow the established guidelines and perform the 

established tasks. 

 

 

Inyo and Mono Counties Agricultural Commissioner’s Office 

 
   

-  NAME: 

-  Agency Program Director or Non-

Profit Executive Director 

 

 DATE 

 

 

 

   

-  NAME: 

-  Designated Site Supervisor 

 DATE 

 

 

 

   

Jenny Hatch 

Executive Director 

Sierra Nevada Alliance 

 DATE 

 

 

 

 

This signed agreement must be completed and returned by April 1, 2020, before a Member may 

be placed at the site. Thank you. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



County of Inyo

Agricultural Commissioner - OVMAP
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Alexandra Barbella, Nathan Reade 
 
SUBJECT:  Sole-Source Declaration for Mosquito Abatement Materials 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare ADAPCO the sole source provider of VetcoBac GR; and B) approve the purchase of 
eighty (80) forty-pound bags of VectoBac GR from ADAPCO by the Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement 
Program in an amount not to exceed $10,378.48.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Valent BioSciences of Libertyville, IL is the sole manufacturer and registrant of the VectoBac product brand 
including VectoBac GR mosquito larvicide. Valent BioSciences has designated ADAPCO of Sanford, FL as the 
sole authorized distributor of the VectoBac product brand including VectoBac GR in the State of California. The 
active ingredient of this product is Bacillus thuringiensis subspecies israelensis, a biological mosquito larvicide 
which allows the OVMAP to provide safe and effective control of mosquitoes in their district. Purchases of this 
product are made each year prior to the mosquito season to ensure sufficient quantity is available for use.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The material that has proven most effective for certain mosquito abatement activities in our area, Vectobac GR, 
is manufactured by one company, Valent BioSciences.  OVMAP has requested and been approved by your 
Board to use Valent BioSciences as a sole source vendor for this product for several years.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could not approve this request. Doing so could limit the scope of mosquito abatement treatments with 
the potential of putting public health at risk and preventing the OVMAP from fulfilling contracts with State and 
local/other agencies.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
The cost of this purchase is $10,378.48 ($9632.00 + $746.48 tax). Sufficient funds for this purchase exist in the 
OVMAP budget unit 154101, expense object code 5311 (General Operating Expense). The OVMAP is a non-
general fund program. There will be no fiscal impact to the Inyo County General Fund.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Alexandra Barbella Created/Initiated - 2/27/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/28/2020
Alexandra Barbella Approved - 3/5/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/5/2020
Nathan Reade Final Approval - 3/6/2020



County of Inyo

County Administrator
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Clint Quilter 
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment to MOU with City of Bishop 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the Memorandum of Agreement between the County of Inyo and 
the City of Bishop for Building Permitting and Inspection adding City Engineer services for the purpose of 
approving Parcel and Final Maps only and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
In December 2016, your Board entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the City of Bishop to 
provide Building Permitting and Inspection. This arrangement has been working well. On occasion, Parcel Maps 
or Final Subdivision Maps are processed through the City of Bishop. As the City of Bishop does not employ a 
Licensed Land Surveyor to be able to perform technical review on these maps, your Board approved Amendment 
No. 1 to MOA on March 20, 2018 to perform this work at no cost as it occurs infrequently  and is not a significant 
burden to the County. The County does have a Licensed Surveyor on staff that is technically qualified to perform 
this review. 

Currently, in addition to not having a surveyor technically qualified to review the  maps, the City of Bishop does 
not have staff technically qualified to sign the Parcel or Final Maps as City Engineer as required by the 
Subdivision Map Act. Since the County employee licensed as a surveyor that will  be reviewing these maps is 
also a licensed engineer, it makes sense to review it as the City Engineer as well. This will add little or no work to 
the review process. Consequently, staff is not recommending any additional fee for the performance  of  this 
work.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the Amendment #2. This is not recommended as this is most efficient 
way to provide map processing services  to City of Bishop and Inyo County residents at this time. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
City of Bishop
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

FINANCING:
Minimal staff time will be absorbed by the County Administrator's office.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Agreement with City of Bishop - Building Inspection
2. City of Bishop MOA Amendment 1
3. City of Bishop MOA Amendment 2
 
APPROVALS:
Clint Quilter Created/Initiated - 3/5/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/5/2020
Clint Quilter Approved - 3/5/2020
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 3/5/2020

































County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156
Amendment No. 8

Attachment B-8

AMENDMENT NO. 2
To

Memorandum of Agreement Between the City of Bishop and Inyo County
For

Building Permitting and Inspection

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and the City of Bishop(hereinafter referred 
to as “City”), have entered into a Memorandum of  Agreement for the provision of building permitting and 
inspection services dated    December 14, 2016    .

WHEREAS, County and  City approved Amendment #1 to the  Memorandum of Agreement on March  
20, 2018:

WHEREAS, County and City do desire and consent to amend such Memorandum of Agreement as set 
forth below:

 
WHEREAS, such Memorandum of Agreement provides that it may be modified upon written consent of 

both parties.

County and City as follows:

1. Add Section 3b.

“Inyo County shall provide on-call City Engineer services for the review and certification of 
Final and Parcel Maps pursuant to Government Code Title 7, Division 2 (Subdivision Map 
Act(SMA)) Sections 66442 and 66450 and pursuant to Business and Professions Code, Division 
3, Chapter 15(Professional Land Surveyors Act), Article 5, Section 8762.5. This provision shall 
only be effective if County has an appropriately licensed employee available to provide the 
service and only until such time as City has designated a permanent City Engineer.”

The effective date of this amendment to the Memorandum of Agreement is                                                .

All other terms and conditions of the Memorandum of Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156
Amendment No. 8

Attachment B-8

AMENDMENT NO. 2
To

Memorandum of Agreement Between the City of Bishop and Inyo County
For

Building Permitting and Inspection

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 
            DAY OF                                 , 2020.

COUNTY OF INYO CITY OF BISHOP

By: By: 

Dated: Dated: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

County Counsel City Attorney



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Kelley Williams 
 
SUBJECT:  Declare the California Specialized Training Institute (CSTI) a Sole Source Provider of Training 
Services and Approve a Purchase Order in an amount not to exceed $30,000 for CSTI Training Services 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare the California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) - California 
Specialized Training Institute (CSTI), a sole-source provider of Specialized Emergency and Preparedness 
Training Services; and, B) authorize a purchase order payable to CalOES - CSTI in an amount not to exceed 
$30,000 for Training Services.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On November 12, 2019, your Board passed Resolution No. 2019-52 to approve the submittal of the Fiscal Year 
2019 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) Program application.  One of the projects 
identified within the grant application was to bring Emergency Operations Center (EOC) Section Specific training 
to the Inyo County Operational Area.

The County realizes the importance of having a strong, unified and coordinated operational structure and process 
that appropriately integrates all critical stakeholders. Training provides staff with the knowledge and 
understanding of identified roles and responsibilities when they respond to or are part of a disaster scene, or are 
stationed in an EOC.

Emergency response course trainings that are provided to local governments, and are paid for with State or 
Federal grant funds, must meet CalOES and FEMA approved curriculum standards and requirements.  

CalOES, through CSTI, is responsible for training state agencies, cities and counties, to minimize the impacts of 
disasters and other large scale emergencies.  CSTI assists the Governor in providing training to counties in their 
planning and preparation for disasters.  CSTI as an institute that is run under the authority of CalOES.  For this 
reason, CSTI is justified as a Sole Source provider of specialized emergency preparedness education and 
training. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Your Board approved Governing Body Resolution No. 2019-52, authorizing the submittal of the Federal Fiscal 
Year 2019 Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) Program application.  The Emergency 
Operations Center Section Specific Trainings were identified as projects in the 2019 EMPG Grant application.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this request for training services, but this is not recommended.  The 
County of Inyo, to be SEMS and NIMS compliant, must continue to provide emergency preparedness training to 
it's staff. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Office of Emergency Services
 
FINANCING:
Funds to support this purchase order are included in Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Board Approved - Emergency 
Preparedness (Budget #623819), Professional Services (Object Code #5265)
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Kelley Williams Created/Initiated - 3/3/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/4/2020
Kelley Williams Approved - 3/6/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 3/6/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/9/2020
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 3/10/2020



County of Inyo

County Administrator-Emergency Services & 
Public Works

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Kelley Williams 
 
SUBJECT:  California Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network (CalWARN) 2007 Omnibus Mutual 
Assistance Agreement 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) authorize the County of Inyo to become a party to the California Water/Wastewater Response 
Network CalWARN 2007 Omnibus Mutual Assistance Agreement; and B) authorize the Chairperson to sign the 
agreement.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The mission of the California Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network (CalWARN) is to support and 
promote statewide emergency preparedness, disaster response, and mutual assistance processes for public and 
private water and wastewater utilities.  

The CalWARN Agreement expands Signatory utility's ability to achieve agency, regional and state preparedness 
and enhance readiness.  The Agreement provides the County with the ability to request and receive assistance 
from other parties in the restoration of water service following natural or man-made disasters or emergencies.    
Assistance provided under the Agreement will generally be in the form of resources, such as equipment, 
supplies, and personnel.  

The CalWARN Program provides its member utilities with: a standard mutual assistance agreement and process 
for sharing emergency resources among Signatories statewide; the resources to respond and recover more 
quickly from a disaster; a mutual assistance program consistent with other statewide mutual aid programs and 
the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) and the National Incident Management System 
(NIMS); a forum for developing and maintaining emergency contacts and relationships.

The City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power signed the Agreement and became members in 2008.  
The County has encouraged the City of Bishop to take the Agreement to their Council for consideration as well. If 
your Board does support this request to enter into the CalWARN Agreement, Inyo County OES and Public Works 
will encourage other Inyo County water/wastewater community service districts to also consider becoming 
members.

The duration of the Agreement is open-ended. However, any party may withdraw with sixty (60) days written 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

notice.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
By signing the California Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network - CalWARN Mutual Assistance 
Agreement, it does not obligate the provision or receipt of aid, but rather provides a tool for use should the 
incident dictate need.

The California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) and the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) encourage disaster preparedness activities, which includes having mutual aid agreements in 
place prior to an emergency.   Mutual aid agreements provide a mechanism to quickly obtain emergency 
assistance in the form of personnel, equipment, materials and other associated services.  The primary objective 
is to facilitate rapid, short-term deployment of emergency support, prior to, during and after an incident.

Not entering into the CalWARN Mutual Aid Agreement could cause unnecessary delays in response and 
recovery activities.  In addition, it could also jeopardize State and/or Federal disaster recovery funding.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
City of Bishop, Community Service Districts, Mono County, Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, 
CalWARN active members, Cal OES and FEMA.
 
FINANCING:
There are no fiscal requirements for entering into the CalWARN Mutual Assistant Agreement.  However, if an 
event or disaster were to occur, and the County of Inyo requested mutual assistance from another CalWARN 
member, or if the County of Inyo were to respond with assistance to another CalWARN member, the provisions 
of the agreement would then be invoked.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. CalWARN Articles of Agreement
2. CalWARN Signature Page 
 
APPROVALS:
Kelley Williams Created/Initiated - 3/2/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/5/2020
Kelley Williams Approved - 3/5/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 3/5/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/9/2020
Michael Errante Approved - 3/9/2020
Clint Quilter Final Approval - 3/9/2020



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  1 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

Articles of Agreement 1 
California Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network 2 

WARN 2007 Omnibus Mutual Assistance Agreement  3 
 4 

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into by those water and wastewater utilities which have 5 
adopted and signed this agreement to provide mutual assistance in times of emergency in 6 
accordance with the California Emergency Services Act and the California Disaster and Civil 7 
Defense Master Mutual Aid Agreement; and to provide reimbursement for equipment, supplies 8 
and personnel made available on an emergency basis.  9 
 10 
All of said water and wastewater utilities being herein referred to collectively as "the parties."  11 
 12 
In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, the parties agree 13 
to provide mutual assistance to one another in times of emergency as follows:  14 

 15 
 16 

ARTICLE I. 17 
PURPOSE 18 

 19 
Recognizing that emergencies may require assistance in the form of personnel, equipment, and 20 
supplies from outside the area of impact, the signatory utilities hereby establish an Intrastate 21 
Program for Mutual Aid and Assistance.  Through the Mutual Aid and Assistance Program, 22 
Members coordinate response activities and share resources during emergencies.  This 23 
Agreement sets forth the procedures and standards for the administration of the Intrastate 24 
Mutual Aid and Assistance Program and is available to all water and wastewater utilities, public 25 
and private, in the State of California. 26 
 27 
 28 

ARTICLE II. 29 
DEFINITIONS 30 

 31 
A. Authorized Official – An employee or officer of a Member who is authorized to: (1) request 32 

assistance; (2) offer assistance; (3) refuse to offer assistance or (4) withdraw assistance 33 
under this.   34 

 35 
B. Emergency – A natural or human caused event or circumstance causing, or imminently 36 

threatening to cause impact to the operations of a member utility’s system, loss of life, injury 37 
to person or property, human suffering or financial loss, and includes, but is not limited to, 38 
fire, flood, severe weather, earthquake, civil disturbance, riot, explosion, drought, volcanic 39 
activity, spills or releases of oil or hazardous material, contamination, utility or transportation 40 
emergencies, disease, blight, infestation, intentional acts, sabotage, declaration of war, or 41 
other conditions which is, or is likely to be beyond the control of the services, personnel, 42 
equipment, and facilities of a Member and requires mutual assistance. 43 

 44 
C. Member – Any public or private water or wastewater utility that manifests intent to 45 

participate in the Mutual Aid and Assistance Program by executing this, the California 46 
Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network (CalWARN) Agreement.   47 

 48 
D. Associate Member – Any non utility participant, approved by the State Steering Committee, 49 

that provides a support role for the WARN program, for example State Department of Public 50 



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  2 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

Health, or associations, who are members of the Regional or State Steering Committees 1 
and do not officially sign the WARN agreement. 2 

 3 
E. Confidential Information - Any document shared with any signatory to this Agreement that 4 

is marked confidential, including but not limited to any map, report, notes, papers, opinion, 5 
or e-mail which relates to the system vulnerabilities of a Member or Associate Member. 6 

 7 
F. Non-Responding Member - A Member that does not provide assistance during a Period of 8 

Assistance under the Mutual Aid and Assistance Program. 9 
 10 
G. Requesting Member – A Member who requests assistance under the Mutual Aid and 11 

Assistance Program.   12 
 13 
H. Responding Member – A Member that responds to a request for assistance under the 14 

Mutual Aid and Assistance Program.  15 
 16 
I. Period of Assistance – A specified period of time when a Responding Member assists a 17 

Requesting Member.  The period commences when personnel, equipment, or supplies 18 
depart from Responding Member’s facility and ends when the resources return to their 19 
facility (portal to portal).  All protections identified in the Agreement apply during this period.  20 
The specified Period of Assistance may occur during response to or recovery from an 21 
Emergency. 22 

 23 
J. National Incident Management System (NIMS) - A national, standardized approach to 24 

incident management and response that sets uniform processes and procedures for 25 
emergency response operations. 26 

 27 
K. Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) - A standardized approach to 28 

field command and jurisdictional management and response set forth by State of California 29 
Code of Regulations for multi-agency or multi-jurisdictional response to an emergency. 30 

 31 
 32 

ARTICLE III. 33 
ADMINISTRATION 34 

 35 
The administration of the Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network (WARN) will be 36 
through WARN Regional Steering Committees (RSC) and the WARN State Steering Committee 37 
(SSC).  38 
 39 
The WARN RSCs will be established by representatives from the Members in that region.  A 40 
chair and co-chair will be elected and act as administrators for that region.  The chair will 41 
represent the region on the WARN SSC.  Each WARN RSC will sponsor an annual meeting for 42 
Members, maintain a data base of all water and wastewater utilities who have signed this 43 
Agreement, and meet as a committee to address concerns and procedures for requesting 44 
mutual assistance in that region.  The regions will be comprised of one or more of the six Office 45 
of Emergency Services (OES) mutual aid regions.  46 
 47 
The WARN SSC will include the chairs of the regional steering committees, and a 48 
representative from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH), California Utilities 49 
Emergency Association (CUEA), Department of Water Resources (DWR), the American Water 50 
Works Association (AWWA) Emergency Planning Committee, California Rural Water 51 



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  3 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

Association (CRWA) and California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA).  The SSC 1 
will identify a Chair for the purpose of leading the SSC and act as a point of contact for the 2 
WARN SSC.  At a minimum, the WARN SSC will meet annually and issue a list of participating 3 
utilities.  The database will be maintained on the WARN website, managed by a volunteer 4 
Member, as appointed by the SSC.  5 
 6 
 7 

ARTICLE IV. 8 
PROCEDURES 9 

 10 
A. In coordination with the Regional Steering Committees, emergency management and public 11 

health system of the state, the State Steering Committee shall develop operational and 12 
planning procedures for the Mutual Aid and Assistance Program.  These procedures shall 13 
be consistent with the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) and the 14 
National Incident Management System (NIMS), reviewed at least annually and updated as 15 
needed by the State Steering Committee.  16 

 17 
B. Requests for emergency assistance under this Agreement shall be directed to the 18 

appropriate Authorized Official(s) from the list of Members.  19 
 20 
C. Consistent with SEMS, when more than one County is impacted by a disaster, requests for 21 

mutual assistance under this Agreement may be channeled through the CUEA Utility 22 
Operation Center to ensure maximum effectiveness in allocating resources to the highest 23 
priority needs.  24 
  25 

 26 
ARTICLE V.  27 

REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE  28 
 29 

In general, assistance will be in the form of resources, such as equipment, supplies, and 30 
personnel.  Assistance shall be given only when Responding Member determines that its own 31 
needs can be met while rendering assistance.  The execution of this Agreement shall not create 32 
any duty to respond on the part of any party hereto.  A potential Responding Member shall not 33 
be held liable for failing to provide assistance.  A potential Responding Member has the 34 
absolute discretion to decline to provide any requested assistance.   35 
 36 
A. Member Responsibility - Members shall identify an Authorized Official and alternates; 37 

provide contact information including 24-hour access; and maintain resource information 38 
made available by the utility for mutual aid and assistance response, as allowed by utility 39 
policy. Such information shall be updated annually or as changes occur (whichever is 40 
sooner), provided to the State Steering Committee, and uploaded into the statewide 41 
database.  42 

 43 
B. Member Request - In the event of an Emergency, a Member’s Authorized Official may 44 

request mutual aid and assistance from a participating Member.  Requests for assistance 45 
can be made orally or in writing.  When made orally, the request for personnel, equipment, 46 
and supplies shall also be prepared in writing and submitted to the participating Member as 47 
soon as practicable.  Requests for assistance shall be directed to the Authorized Official of 48 
the participating Member.  Specific protocols for requesting aid shall be provided in the 49 
procedures developed under Article IV. 50 

 51 



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  4 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

C. Response to a Request for Assistance – Members are not obligated to respond to a 1 
request. After a Member receives a request for assistance, the Authorized Official evaluates 2 
whether or not to respond, whether resources are available to respond, or if other 3 
circumstances would hinder response.  Following the evaluation, the Authorized 4 
Representative shall inform, as soon as possible, the Requesting Member whether it will 5 
respond.  If the Member is willing and able to provide assistance, the Member shall inform 6 
the Requesting Member about the type of available resources and the approximate arrival 7 
time of such assistance. 8 

 9 
D. Discretion of Responding Member’s Authorized Official – Execution of this Agreement 10 

does not create any duty to respond to a request for assistance.  When a Member receives 11 
a request for assistance, the Authorized Official shall have sole and absolute discretion as to 12 
whether or not to respond, or the availability of resources to be used in such response.  An 13 
Authorized Member’s decisions on the availability of resources shall be final.  14 

 15 
 16 

ARTICLE VI.  17 
RESPONSE COORDINATION 18 

 19 
When providing assistance under this Agreement, the Requesting Member and Responding 20 
Member shall be organized and shall function under the Standard Emergency Management 21 
System and National Incident Management System protocols and procedures. 22 
 23 
A. Personnel – Responding Member retains right to identify the employees who are willing 24 

to participate and the resources that are available. 25 
 26 
B. Control – While employees so provided may be under the supervision of the 27 

Responding Member, the Responding Member’s employees come under the direction 28 
and control of the Requesting Member, consistent with the NIMS Incident Command 29 
System to address the needs identified by the Requesting Member. The Requesting 30 
Member’s Authorized Official shall coordinate response activities with the designated 31 
supervisor(s) of the Responding Member(s).     Whenever practical, Responding 32 
Member personnel must be self sufficient for up to 72 hours. The Responding Member’s 33 
designated supervisor(s) must keep accurate records of work performed by personnel 34 
during the specified Period of Assistance.   35 

 36 
C. Food and Shelter – When possible, the Requesting Member shall supply reasonable food 37 

and shelter for Responding Member personnel.  If the Requesting Member is unable to 38 
provide food and shelter for Responding Member personnel, the Responding Member’s 39 
designated supervisor is authorized to secure the resources necessary to meet the needs of 40 
its personnel.  Except as provided below, the cost for such resources must not exceed the 41 
State per diem rates for that area.  To the extent Food and Shelter costs exceed the State 42 
per diem rates for the area, the Responding Member must demonstrate that the additional 43 
costs were reasonable and necessary under the circumstances.  Unless otherwise agreed 44 
to in writing, the Requesting Member remains responsible for reimbursing the Responding 45 
Member for all reasonable and necessary costs associated with providing food and shelter, 46 
if such resources are not provided. 47 

 48 
D. Communication – The Requesting Member shall provide Responding Member personnel 49 

with radio equipment as available, or radio frequency information to program existing radio, 50 
in order to facilitate communications with local responders and utility personnel. 51 



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  5 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

 1 
E. Status - Unless otherwise provided by law, the Responding Member’s officers and 2 

employees retain the same privileges, immunities, rights, duties and benefits as provided in 3 
their respective jurisdictions.  4 

 5 
F. Licenses and Permits – To the extent permitted by law, Responding Member personnel 6 

who hold licenses, certificates, or permits evidencing professional, mechanical, or other 7 
skills shall be allowed to carry out activities and tasks relevant and related to their respective 8 
credentials during the specified Period of Assistance.  9 

 10 
G. Right to Withdraw Resources - The Responding Member’s Authorized Official retains the 11 

right to withdraw some or all of its resources at any time for any reason in the Responding 12 
Member’s sole and absolute discretion.  Notice of intention to withdraw must be 13 
communicated to the Requesting Member’s Authorized Official as soon as soon as is 14 
practicable under the circumstances.   15 

 16 
 17 

ARTICLE VII. 18 
COST REIMBURSEMENT 19 

 20 
Unless otherwise mutually agreed in whole or in part by both parties, the Requesting Member 21 
shall reimburse the Responding Member for each of the following categories of costs incurred 22 
while providing aid and assistance during the specified Period of Assistance. 23 
 24 
A. Personnel – Responding Member will make such employees as are willing to 25 

participate available to Requesting Member at Requesting Member’s expense equal to 26 
Responding Member’s  full cost, i.e., equal to the employee's applicable salary or hourly 27 
wage plus fringe benefits and overhead, and consistent with Responding Member’s 28 
collective bargaining agreements or other conditions of employment. All costs incurred 29 
for work performed during the specified Period of Assistance will be included. The 30 
Requesting Member shall be responsible for all direct and indirect labor costs. 31 

 32 
B. Equipment – Use of equipment, such as construction equipment, vehicles, tools, pumps 33 

and generators, shall be at Responding Member's current equipment rate and subject to the 34 
following conditions: The Requesting Member shall reimburse the Responding Member for 35 
the use of equipment during the specified Period of Assistance, including, but not limited to, 36 
reasonable rental rates, all fuel, lubrication, maintenance, transportation, and 37 
loading/unloading of loaned equipment.  All equipment shall be returned to the Responding 38 
Member as soon as is practicable and reasonable under the circumstances.   39 

(a) At the option of Responding Member, equipment may be provided with an 40 
operator.  41 

(b) Equipment shall be returned to Responding Member within 24 hours after receipt 42 
of an oral or written request for return.  43 

(c) Requesting Member shall, at its own expense, supply all fuel, lubrication and 44 
maintenance for furnished equipment.  45 

(d) Responding Member’s cost related to the transportation, handling and 46 
loading/unloading of equipment shall be chargeable to Requesting Member.  47 

(e) In the event equipment is damaged while being dispatched to Requesting Member, 48 
or while in the custody and use of Requesting Member, Requesting Member shall 49 
reimburse Responding Member for the reasonable cost of repairing said damaged 50 
equipment.  If the equipment cannot be repaired, then Requesting Member shall 51 



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  6 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

reimburse Responding Member for the cost of replacing such equipment with 1 
equipment that is of at least equal capability as determined by the Responding 2 
Member.  If Responding Member must lease a piece of equipment while Requesting 3 
Member equipment is being repaired or replaced, Requesting Member shall 4 
reimburse Responding Member for such lease costs. 5 

 6 
C. Materials and Supplies – Requesting Member shall reimburse Responding Member in 7 

kind or at actual replacement cost, plus handling charges, for use of expendable or non-8 
returnable supplies.  Other supplies and reusable items that are returned to Responding 9 
Member in a clean, damage-free condition shall not be charged to the Requesting 10 
Member and no rental fee will be charged; otherwise, they shall be treated as 11 
expendable supplies.  Supplies that are returned to the Responding Member with 12 
damage must be treated as expendable supplies for purposes of cost reimbursement.  13 

 14 
D. Payment Period – The Responding Member shall provide an itemized bill to the Requesting 15 

Member for all expenses incurred by the Responding Member while providing assistance 16 
under this Agreement.  The Requesting Member shall send the itemized bill not later than 17 
(90) ninety dates following the end of the Period of Assistance.  The Responding Member 18 
may request additional periods of time within which to submit the itemized bill, and 19 
Requesting Member shall not unreasonably withhold consent to such request.  The 20 
Requesting Member agrees to reimburse the Responding Member within 60 days from 21 
receipt of an invoice for assistance provided under this Agreement.  The Requesting 22 
Member may request additional periods of time within which to pay the itemized bill, and 23 
Responding Member shall not unreasonably withhold consent to such request, provided, 24 
however, that all payment shall occur not later than one-year after the date a final itemized 25 
bill is submitted to the Requesting Member.  26 

 27 
E. Records - Each Responding Member and its duly authorized representatives shall have 28 

access to a Requesting Member’s books, documents, notes, reports, papers and records 29 
which are directly pertinent to this Agreement for the purposes of reviewing the accuracy of 30 
a cost bill or making a financial, maintenance or regulatory audit.  Each Requesting Member 31 
and its duly authorized representatives shall have access to a Responding Member’s books, 32 
documents, notes, reports, papers and records which are directly pertinent to this 33 
Agreement for the purposes of reviewing the accuracy of a cost bill or making a financial, 34 
maintenance or regulatory audit.  Such records shall be maintained for at least three (3) 35 
years or longer where required by law and as needed for federal reimbursement practices. 36 

 37 
 38 

ARTICLE VIII.  39 
ARBITRATION 40 

 41 
If any controversy or claim arises out of, or relates to, the Agreement, including, but not limited 42 
to an alleged breach of the Agreement, the disputing Members shall first attempt to resolve the 43 
dispute by negotiation, followed by mediation and finally shall be settled by arbitration in 44 
accordance with the Rules of the American Arbitration Association.  Judgment on the award 45 
rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. 46 
 47 
 48 



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  7 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

ARTICLE IX.  1 
REQUESTING MEMBER’S DUTY TO INDEMNIFY 2 

 3 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, and subject to Article X, Requesting Member 4 
shall assume the defense of, fully indemnify and hold harmless Responding Member, its 5 
Directors, Council Members, Supervisors, officers and employees, from all claims, loss, 6 
damage, injury and liability of every kind, nature and description, directly or indirectly arising 7 
from the Requesting Member’s work hereunder, including, but not limited to, negligent or 8 
wrongful use of equipment, supplies or personnel provided to Requesting Member or faulty 9 
workmanship or other negligent acts, errors or omissions by Responding Member, or by 10 
personnel provided to Requesting Member from the time assistance is requested and 11 
rendered until the assistance is returned to Responding Member’s control, portal to portal.  12 
 13 
 14 

ARTICLE X.  15 
SIGNATORY INDEMNIFICATION 16 

 17 
In the event of a liability, claim, demand, action or proceeding, of whatever kind or nature 18 
arising out of the rendering of assistance through this Agreement, the parties involved in 19 
rendering or receiving assistance agree to indemnify and hold harmless all Members whose 20 
only involvement is the execution and approval of this Agreement, in the transaction or 21 
occurrence which is the subject of such claim, action, demand or other proceeding.  Such 22 
indemnification shall include indemnity for all claims, demands, liability, damages and costs, 23 
including reasonable attorneys' fees and other costs of defense, for injury, property damage 24 
and workers compensation.  25 
 26 
 27 

ARTICLE XI.  28 
WORKER’S COMPENSATION CLAIMS 29 

 30 
The Responding Member is responsible for providing worker’s compensation benefits and 31 
administering worker’s compensation for its employees.   The Requesting Member is 32 
responsible for providing worker’s compensation benefits and administering worker’s 33 
compensation for its employees.   34 
 35 
 36 

ARTICLE XII.  37 
NOTICE 38 

 39 
Each party hereto shall give to the others prompt and timely written notice of any claim 40 
made or any suit instituted coming to its knowledge, which in any way, directly or indirectly, 41 
contingently or otherwise, affects or might affect them, and each Member shall have the 42 
right to participate in the defense of the same, as it considers necessary to protect its own 43 
interests.  44 
 45 
 46 



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  8 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

ARTICLE XIII.  1 
INSURANCE 2 

 3 
Members shall maintain an insurance policy or maintain a self insurance program that covers 4 
activities that it may undertake by virtue of membership in the Mutual Aid and Assistance 5 
Program.     6 
 7 
 8 

ARTICLE XIV. 9 
CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 10 

 11 
To the extent allowed by law, any Member or Associate Member shall maintain in the strictest 12 
confidence and shall take all reasonable steps necessary to prevent the disclosure of any 13 
Confidential Information provided to it by another Member pursuant to this Agreement.  If any 14 
Member, Associate Member, or third party requests or demands, by subpoena or otherwise, 15 
that a Member or Associate Member disclose any Confidential Information provided to it under 16 
this Agreement, the Member or Associate Member shall immediately notify the owner of the 17 
Confidential Information and shall take all reasonable steps necessary to prevent the disclosure 18 
of any Confidential Information by asserting all applicable rights and privileges with respect to 19 
such information and shall cooperate fully in any judicial or administrative proceeding relating 20 
thereto.   21 

 22 
 23 

ARTICLE XV.  24 
EFFECTIVE DATE 25 

 26 
This Agreement shall take effect for a new party immediately upon its execution by said 27 
party. 28 
 29 
 30 

ARTICLE XVI.  31 
WITHDRAWAL 32 

 33 
Any party may terminate its participation in this Agreement by written notice to the Chair of the 34 
appropriate RSC and to the SSC Chair. Withdrawal takes effect 60 days after the appropriate 35 
officials receive notice.  Withdrawal from this Agreement shall in no way affect a Requesting 36 
Member’s duty to reimburse a Responding Member for cost incurred during a Period of 37 
Assistance, which duty shall survive such withdrawal. 38 
 39 
 40 

ARTICLE XVII.  41 
MODIFICATION 42 

 43 
No provision of this Agreement may be modified, altered or rescinded by individual parties to the 44 
Agreement.  Modifications to this Agreement require a simple majority vote of Members within 45 
each region and unanimous agreement among the regions.  The State Steering Committee will 46 
notify all parties of modifications to this Agreement in writing and those modifications shall be 47 
effective upon 60 days written notice to the parties.  48 

 49 



CalWARN Mutual Aid/Asst Agreement  9 Approved and Adopted  
September 30, 2007 by Vote of Members 

 1 
ARTICLE XVIII.  2 
SEVERABILITY 3 

 4 
If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 5 
illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be 6 
affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the 7 
Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid.   8 
 9 
 10 

ARTICLE XIX.  11 
PRIOR AGREEMENTS 12 

 13 
To the extent that prior agreements among signatories to this Agreement for mutual assistance 14 
are inconsistent with this Agreement, such agreements are hereby superseded.  This 15 
Agreement supersedes the 1996 Omnibus Mutual Aid Agreement, the WARN 1997 Omnibus 16 
Mutual Aid Agreement, and the WARN 2001 Omnibus Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement.  17 
 18 
 19 

ARTICLE XX. 20 
PROHIBITION ON THIRD PARTIES AND ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS/DUTIES 21 

 22 
This Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Members and no other person or entity has rights 23 
under this Agreement as a third party beneficiary.  Assignment of benefits or delegation of 24 
duties created by this Agreement to third parties that are not Members is prohibited and without 25 
effect. 26 

 27 
 28 

ARTICLE XXI.  29 
TORT CLAIMS 30 

 31 
This Agreement in no way abrogates or waives any immunity or defense available under 32 
California law. 33 
 34 
 35 

ARTICLE XXII.  36 
INTRASTATE AND INTERSTATE MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 37 

 38 
To the extent practicable, Members retain the right to participate in mutual aid and assistance 39 
activities conducted under the State of California Intrastate WARN Mutual Aid and Assistance 40 
Program and the Interstate Emergency Management Assistance Compact (EMAC) and similar 41 
programs.   42 
 43 
 44 
 45 



California Water/Wastewater Agency Response Network (CalWARN) 
2007 Omnibus Mutual Assistance Agreement 

 

WHEREAS, the California Office of Emergency Services (OES), the Department of Water 
Resources (DWR), the Department of Public Health (DPH) and the California Utilities 
Emergency Association (CUEA) have expressed a mutual interest in the establishment of a plan 
to facilitate and encourage water agency mutual assistance agreements between water 
agencies; and 

 
WHEREAS, the California Water Agency Response Network (CalWARN) was originally created to 
provide a forum for the development of mutual assistance agreements between water agencies 
in the OES Coastal Region of California; and later expanded to all water and wastewater 
agencies in the State of California, and 

 
WHEREAS, the CALIFORNIA WATER/WASTEWATER AGENCY RESPONSE NETWORK 
(CalWARN) 2007 OMNIBUS MUTUAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT is a continuation of the 
WARN 1996 OMNIBUS MUTUAL AID and 2001 OMNIBUS MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT and 
sets forth the mutual covenants and agreements for water and wastewater agencies to provide 
mutual assistance to one another in times of emergency; and 

 
WHEREAS, State OES regulates the SEMS program, and this agreement is consistent with 
SEMS, and that it is necessary to have a mutual assistance agreement in place to support 
requests to FEMA for costs of using assistance during an emergency, and 

 
WHEREAS, the water or wastewater agency hereto has determined that it would be in its best 
interests to enter into an agreement that implements that  plan and sets forth procedures and 
the responsibilities of the agency whenever emergency personnel, equipment and facility 
assistance are provided from one agency to the other; and 

 
WHEREAS, no water or wastewater agency should be in a position of unreasonably using its own 
resources, facilities, or services providing such mutual assistance; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of WARN to revise this agreement as necessary and to annually 
publish a list of all water and wastewater agencies participating in this agreement, as posted on 
www.calwarn.org; and 

 

WHEREAS, such an agreement is in accord with the California Emergency Services Act set forth 
in Title 2, Division 1, Chapter 7 (Section 8550 et seq.) of the Government Code and specifically 
with Articles 14 and 17 (Section 8630 et seq.) of the Act. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the conditions and covenants contained therein, the 

 

County of Inyo 
 (Utility) 

 

agrees to become a party to the CalWARN 2007 Omnibus Mutual Assistance Agreement. 
  
   DATE: ______________________  
 
   NAME: ______________________  ___________________________ 
  (PRINTED)     (SIGNATURE) 

    
   TITLE: ______________________ 
 
 



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Motor Pool
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Leslie Chapman 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorization to issue blanket purchase order for vehicle maintenance. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board authorize issuance of a blanket purchase order in an amount not to exceed $15,000, payable to 
Jim Charlon Ford of Ridgecrest, CA for vehicle maintenance.  
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Jim Charlon Ford is a dealership located in Ridgecrest, CA that Motor Pool utilizes to execute the preventative 
maintenance and repair of mostly Sheriff vehicles. This fiscal year we have expended approximately $8,300 with 
them.  There is a handful of Sheriff Deputies that live in Ridgecrest and it is more beneficial for them to have their 
vehicles repaired closer to home.  Therefore, authorization is requested to open a blanket purchase order with 
this vendor in an amount that exceeds $10,000. This purchase order will expedite repairs by allowing us to 
process payments in a timely manner and provides for efficiency in the Auditor’s office in issuing warrants.  The 
issuance of this purchase order will not negate the requirement of getting verbal or written quotes for individual 
purchases in accordance with the County Purchasing Policy.  

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to authorize the issuance of this blanket purchase order. In the event that the 
blanket purchase order is not issued, the procedure of preparing separate purchase orders for each individual 
transaction would be used, or vehicles would be required to have repairs done at existing vendors that have 
approved blanket purchase orders in place. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor
 
FINANCING:
These funds are included in the Motor Pool budget for the 2019-2020 fiscal year budget 200100 object code 
5171.
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
APPROVALS:
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 2/24/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/26/2020
Teresa Elliott Approved - 2/26/2020
Leslie Chapman Approved - 3/5/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/5/2020
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 3/9/2020



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Recycling & Waste 
Management

 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Leslie Chapman 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorize Recycling Waste Management to purchase a Roll-Off Truck 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board waive the Purchasing Policy requirement to obtain three bids and choose a vendor before 
seeking Board approval for purchase of a vehicle over $10,000, and authorize the purchase of a used Roll-Off 
Truck, or a cab, chassis and tarp system, from a vendor to be determined by the Assistant County Administrator 
for use within the Recycling Waste Management Program in an amount not to exceed $90,000 including tax and 
delivery.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Due to the nature of the used truck market, and in an effort to save Inyo County time and money, Inyo County 
Recycling and Waste Management is requesting that the purchase of the used roll-off truck be exempt from the 
same requirements of purchasing a new roll-off truck. The used truck market does not allow the time to get 
quotes or bids plus obtain Board approval before the truck would most likely be purchased by someone else; 
therefore, having to start the search all over again. The cost of a new roll-off truck purchased from a reputable 
dealer is around $200,000, so this option will save the County approximately $110,000.  Staff is also considering 
purchasing the cab and chassis at a lower price and utilize our existing roll-off sub-frame to be attached to the 
cab and chassis.  With this option we would be able to purchase a newer model truck which would keep us in 
CARB compliance much longer.  Also, with this option we will have to purchase a new tarp system, which would 
cost approximately $6,000.  

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to authorize the purchase of a used roll-off truck, however, this is not 
recommended due to the roll-off truck to be replaced is up for replacement due to CARB compliance. 
Additionally, purchasing a new truck costs approximately twice as much and a new truck is not necessary.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:
The purchase cost of a roll-off truck is included in the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 budget for Recycling and Waste 
Management, 045700, object 5655.
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Teresa Elliott Created/Initiated - 2/27/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/27/2020
Teresa Elliott Approved - 2/28/2020
Leslie Chapman Approved - 3/5/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/5/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 3/5/2020
Leslie Chapman Final Approval - 3/5/2020



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Fiscal
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Melissa Best-Baker 
 
SUBJECT:  Agreement between the County of Inyo and California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) 
for Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (MAA) 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve Agreement No. 20-10008 between the County of Inyo and California Department of 
Health Care Services, for the contract from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2023 for the maximum amount of the 
agreement reimbursement of $600,000, for approved Medi-Cal Administrative Activities; and B) authorize the 
HHS Director to sign the Standard Agreement, California Civil Rights Laws Certification, Medi-Cal Disclosure 
Statement, and Contractor Certification Clause 307, contingent upon the adoption of future budgets.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This is an Agreement between the County of Inyo and California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS).  
This agreement allows DHCS to reimburse Inyo County for approved Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (MAA) up 
to an amount of $600,000. The funds reimbursed through the MAA/TCM billing process are used to support the 
services/programs that provide these reimbursable activities.

There are currently five active claiming units in Inyo County: First Five, Public Health, Probation, ReEntry and the 
MAA/TCM Coordination Unit. To continue to obtain reimbursement for MAA activities the County must authorize 
execution of the agreement with DHCS/MAA division.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The County can choose not to sign the Agreement and operate all of the above programs with existing funding 
only, without the augmentation from MAA funding.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Health Care Services, First 5, and Probation 
 
FINANCING:
MAA/TCM Coordination, MAA participation by claiming units and filing for reimbursement requires that claiming 
units document MAA activities in conformance with administrative standards established by the California 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Department of Health Care Services and the federal Medicaid administration. Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 
involve providing access to Medi-Cal services, which is already part of the claimant’s mission. Upon State 
approval of MAA Invoices, claiming units are reimbursed for approximately 50% of non-federal expenditures on 
these activities.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Agreement No. 20-10008
2. California Civil Rights Laws Certification
3. Medi-Cal Disclosure Statement
4. Contractor Certification Clause 307
 
APPROVALS:
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 3/3/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/5/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 3/5/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 3/6/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 3/6/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/9/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 3/10/2020
Rhiannon Baker Final Approval - 3/10/2020



Please wait... 
  
If this message is not eventually replaced by the proper contents of the document, your PDF 
viewer may not be able to display this type of document. 
  
You can upgrade to the latest version of Adobe Reader for Windows®, Mac, or Linux® by 
visiting  http://www.adobe.com/go/reader_download. 
  
For more assistance with Adobe Reader visit  http://www.adobe.com/go/acrreader. 
  
Windows is either a registered trademark or a trademark of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. Mac is a trademark 
of Apple Inc., registered in the United States and other countries. Linux is the registered trademark of Linus Torvalds in the U.S. and other 
countries.



CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS CERTIFICATION 
  
 
Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 2010, if a bidder or proposer executes or renews a 
contract over $100,000 on or after January 1, 2017, the bidder or proposer hereby certifies 
compliance with the following: 
 

1.  CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS:  For contracts over $100,000 executed or renewed 
after January 1, 2017, the contractor certifies compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act 
(Section 51 of the Civil Code) and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the 
Government Code); and 

2.  EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES: For contracts over $100,000 executed or 
renewed after January 1, 2017, if a Contractor has an internal policy against a sovereign nation 
or peoples recognized by the United States government, the Contractor certifies that such 
policies are not used in violation of the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Section 51 of the Civil Code) or 
the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 12960 of the Government Code).  

 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I, the official named below, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws 
of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.  
 

Proposer/Bidder Firm Name (Printed)  
 
County of Inyo 

Federal ID Number  
 
 
 
95-6005445 

By (Authorized Signature)  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing  
 
Marilyn Mann 

Date Executed  Executed in the County and State of  
 
County of Inyo, California 

 

 



State of Califomia-Health and Human Serui@s Agency Department of Health Care Seruices

MEDI.GAL DISGLOSURE STATEMENT

DHCS

California Dcpartnlcnr crf

HealthCareServices

Every applicant or provider must complete and submit a current Medi-Cal Disclosure Statement (DHCS 6207) as
part of a complete application package for enrollment, continued enrollment, or certification as a Medi-Cal provider.

lmportant:

. FOR NEW APPLICANTS: Failure to disclose complete and accurate information may result in a denial of
enrollment and imposition of a three-year reapplication bar.

r FOR CURRENTLY ENROLLED APPLICANTS: Failure to disclose complete and accurate information may
result in denial, deactivation of all business addresses and the imposition of a three-year reapplication bar.
The Department is required to report the termination of your participation in the Medi-Cal Program to the Centers
for Medicare & Medicaid Services and to other States' Medicaid and Children's Health lnsurance Programs
pursuant to United States Code, Tille 42, Sections 1396a(kk)(6) and 1902(kkXO) and the Code of Feierat
Regulations ,Title 42, Section 1002.3(b).

o Submitting a complete and accurate Medi-Cal Disclosure Statement is required.
r Read all instructions when completing the Medi-Cal Disclosure Statement.
. Type or print clearly in ink.

o DO NOT USE staples on this form or on any attachments.
. lf applicanUprovider must make corrections, please line through, date, and initial in ink. Do not use correction

fluid.

r Return this completed statement with the complete application package to the address listed on the application
form.

Overall Authority: Code of Federal Regulations, Title 42, Part 455; California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Sections 51000-51451; Welfare and lnstitutions
Code, Sections 1 4043-1 4043.7 5

DHCS 6207 (Rev. 2/15)



t.

lt.

1il.

tv.

V.

vt.

vil.

vilt.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

APPLICANT/PROVI DER I NFORMATION

UNINCORPORATED SOLE.PROPRIETOR OR INDIVIDUAL RENDERING PROVIDER
ADDING TO A GROUP ............

oWNERSHIP INTEREST AND/OR MANAGTNG CONTROL TNFORMATTON (ENT|T|ES) ......

oWNERSHI P INTEREST AND/OR MANAGTNG CONTROL INFORMAT| ON (t NDTVTDUALS)

SUBCONTRACTOR I NFORMATION AND SIG NIFIGANT BUSI NESS TRANSACTIONS .......

INCONTINENCE SUPPLIES ..........

PHARMACY APPLICANTS OR PROVIDERS ...............

DECLARATION AND SIGNATURE PAGE

1

4

5

7

10

{3

14

15

DHCS 6207 (Rev. 2/15)



GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING
THE MEDI-CAL DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

. DO NOT USE staples on this form or on any attachments.
o Do not use a pencil, correction tape, correction fluid, highlighter pen, etc. on this form.
o lf you must correct an entry, the applicant or provider must initial and date the correction in ink.
r Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank. Check or write 'N/A" if not applicable to you.
o To review the Title 22 provider enrollment regulations, please visit the Medi-Cal Website (www.medi-cal.ca.qov) and click the

"Provider Enrollment" link. lt is the responsibility of the applicanVprovider to comply with all regulations pertaining to Medi-
Cal.

Section l: ApplicanUProvider lnformation
1. All applicants and providers must complete this Section unless the! are eligible to use the "Medi-Cal Rendering Provider

Application/Disclosure StatemenVAgreement for Physician/Allied/Dental Providers" (DHCS 6216) or the "Medi-Cal
Ordering/Referring/Prescribing Provider Application/AgreemenVDisclosure Statement for Physician and Nonphysician
Practitioners' (DHCS 621 9).

2. Rendering providers joining a group who are not eligible to use the "Medi-Cal Rendering Provider Application/Disclosure
Statement/Agreement for Physician/Allied/Dental Providers" may leave parts E-H blank if part D is checked.

3. lf applicant leases the location where services are being rendered or provided, please attach a copy of a current signed
lease agreement.

4. ln California, a domestic or foreign limited liability company is not permitted to render professional services, as defined in
Corporations Code Sections 13401, subdivision (a) and 13401.3. See California Gorporations Code Section
17701.04(el.

Section ll: Unincorporated Sole-Proprietor or lndividual Rendering Provider Adding to a Group
Disclosure of social security number is mandatory. (See Privacy Statement at bottom of page 15)

Section lll: Ownership lnterest and/or Managing Gontrol lnformation (Entities)
1. To determine percentage of ownership, mortgage, deed of trust, note or other obligation, the percentage of interest owned

in the obligation is multiplied by the percentage of the disclosing entity's assets used to secure the obligation. For example,
if A owns 10 percent of a note secured by 60 percent of the applicant's or provider's assets, A's interest in the provider's
assets equates to 6 percent and shall be reported pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title22, Section 51000.35.
Conversely, if B owns 40 percent of a note secured by 10 percent of the applicant's or provider's assets, B's interest in the
provider's assets equates to 4 percent and need not be reported.

2. "lndirect ownership interest" means an ownership interest in any entity that has an ownership interest in the applicant or
provider. This term includes an ownership interest in any entity that has an indirect ownership interest in the applicant or
provider. The amount of indirect ownership interest is determined by multiplying the percentages of ownership in each
entity. For example, if A owns 10 percent of the stock in a corporation which owns 80 percent of the stock of the applicant
or provider, A's interest equates to an 8 percent indirect ownership interest in the applicant or provider and shall be
reported pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 22, Section 51 000.35. Conversely, if B owns 80 percent of the
stock of a corporation, which owns 5 percent of the stock of the applicant or provider, B's interest equates to a 4 percent
indirect ownership interest in the applicant or provider and need not be reported.

3. "Ownership interest" means the possession of equity in the capital, the stock, or the profits of the applicant or provider.
4. All entities with managing control of applicanUprovider must be listed in this Section.
5. List the National Provider ldentifier (NPl) of each listed corporation, unincorporated association, partnership, or similar entity

having 5o/o ot more (direct or indirect) ownership or control interest, ot any partnership interest, in the applicanUprovider
identified in Section l.

6. Corporations with ownership or control interest in the applicant or provider must provide all corporate business addresses
and the corporation Taxpayer ldentification Number issued by the lRS. For verification, a legible copy of the IRS Form 941,
Form 8109-C, Letter 147-C, or Form SS-4 (Confirmation Notification) must be included.

Section lV: Ownership lnterest and/or Managing Control lnformation (lndividuals)
1. Refer to Section lll instructions and definitions.

2. "Person with an ownership or control interest" means a person that:
a. Has an ownership interest of 5 percent or more in an applicant or provider;

ilDHCS 6207 (Rev. 2/15)



b. Has an indirect ownership interest equal to 5 percent;
c. Has a combination of direct and indirect ownership interest equal to 5 percent or more in an applicant or provider;
d. Owns an interest of 5 percent or more in any mortgage, deed of trust, note, or other obligation secured by the applicant

or provider if that interest equals at least 5 percent of the value of the property or assets of the applicant or provider;
e. ls an officer or director of an applicant or provider that is organized as a corporation;
f. ls a partner in an applicant or provider that is organized as a partnership.

3. "Agent" means a person who has been delegated the authority to obligate or act on behalf of an applicant or provider.
4. "Managing employee" means a general manager, business manager, administrator, director, or other individual who

exercises operational or managerial control over, or who directly or indirectly conducts the dayto-day operation of an
applicant or provider. All managing employees must be included in this section.

5. List the National Provider ldentifier (NPl) of each individual with ownership or control interest or any partnership interest, in
the applicanUprovider identified in Section L ln addition, all officers of the corporation, directors, agents and managing
employees of the applicanUprovider must be reported in this section.

6. Disclosure of social security number is mandatory. (See Privacy Statement at boftom of page 1S)

Section V: Subcontractor Information and Significant Business Transactions
1. "Subcontractor" means an individual, agency, or organization:

a. To which an applicant or provider has contracted or delegated some of its management functions or responsibilities of
providing healthcare services, equipment, or supplies to its patients.

b. With whom an applicant or provider has entered into a contract, agreement, purchase order, lease, or leases of real
property, to obtain space, supplies, equipment, or services provided under the Medi-Cal Program.

2. "Significant business transaction" means any business transaction or series of transactions that involve health care
services, goods, supplies, or merchandise related to the provision of services to Medi-Cal beneficiaries that, during any one
fiscal year, exceed the lesser of $25,000 or 5 percent of an applicant's or provider's total operating expenses.

3. "Wholly owned supplier" means a supplier whose total ownership interest is held by an applicant or provider or by a person,
persons, or other entity with an ownership or control interest in an applicant or provider.

Section Vl: lncontinence Supplies
1. Applicant or provider must check "Yes" or "No."

2. lf "Yes," complete A-C.

Section Vll: Pharmacy Applicants or Providers
All pharmacy applicants or providers must complete this Section

Section Vlll: Declaration and Signature Page

1. All applicants or providers must complete this Section.
2. Legal name of applicanVprovider must match name listed on associated application package.
3. The signature must be an individual who is the sole proprietor, partner, corporate officer, or an official representative of a

governmental entity or nonprofit organization who has the authority to legally bind the applicant or provider. See Tifle 22,
CCR Section 51 000.30(aX2XB).

4. An original signature is required. Stamped, faxed, and/or photocopied signatures are not acceptable.
5. Disclosure Statement must be notarized by a Notary Public except for those applicants and providers licensed pursuant to

Business and Professions Code, Division 2, beginning with Section 500. For example: Physicians, Pharmacy providers,
Chiropractors, Osteopaths, Certified Nurse Midwives, Nurse Practitioners and Dentists do not need to notarize this form.
Durable Medical Equipment (DME) providers, Prosthetics, Orthotics, Medical Transportation providers, etc., must notarize
this form.

FOR MORE TNFORMAT|ON, PLEASE VtStT THE MED|-CAL WEBSTTE (WWW.MED|-CAL.CA.cOV)
AND CLICK THE "PROVIDER ENROLLMENT" LINK.

iltDHCS 6207 (Rev. 2/15)



State of California-Health and Human Seruics Agency

Do not leave
. I. APPLICANT/PROVIDERINFORMATION

Legal name of as reported to the IRS

MEDI.CAL DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

blank. Check or enter N/A if not

Department of Health Care Seruices

c
B. Legal name of applicanuprovider as it appears on professional license lF NOT APPLICABLE, CHECK THE BOX

Q. Existing provider numbers (NPl or Denti-Cal provider number as applicable) used at the address indicated in ltem G below LI N'A
\q32Ul5ll

D. If applying as a rendering provider to a provider group, check here ! and proceed to part l. (marked with *asterisk below)

E. Fictitious business name I A

p. "Doing Business As" name ff A

G. Address where services are rendered or provided (number, (city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

155 flla,t.f<* 35.2
1 . Does applicanUprovider lease this location? n yes [' tto

2 lf YES, complete the following information regarding the Lessor and enclose a copy of the current signed Lease
Agreement, including any sublease agreements entered into by the applicant provider at the business address on the
Application.

a. Lessor name

b. Lessor address (number, street) (city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

c. Lessor telephone number

3. lf no, does applicant/provider own this location? [Ves
4. lf applicant/provider does not lease or own this location, explain below:

e. Amount of lease

nruo

d. Term of lease

H. Type of Entity (must check one):

n General Partnership
( Enclose Pa ft n e rsh i p Ag ree me nt)

! Sote Proprietor (Unincorporated)

"l

! Corporation
(Enclose Afticles of lncorporation and
Statement of lnformation)

! Nonprofit:
Check one:

! Corporation

! Unincorporated Association

n timiteO Partnership
( En close Pa ftn e rsh i p Ag re e m e nt)

n timiteo Liabitity company:
State of formation:

Corporate number:

Check one:

n Charitable

! Retigious

n LimiteO Liability Partnership
( Enc lose Padn e rsh i p Ag ree m e nt)

[f Governmental

State incorporated

n Otner @pecify)

List below fines/debts due and owing by applicanVprovider to any federal, state, or local government that relate to Medicare,
Medicaid and all other federal and state health care programs that have not been paid and what arrangements have been made
to fulfill the obligation(s). Submff copies of all documenfs pertaining to
California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 22, Section 51000.50(aX6).

arrangements including terms and conditions. See

DATE TO BE
PAID IN FULL

A

AGENCY DATE ISSUED

DHCS 6207 (rev. 2/15)

FINE/DEBT

Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank.
Page 1 of 15



J. List the name and address of all health care providers, participating or not participating in Medi-Cal, in which the
applicanVprovider, listed in Part A, also has an ownership ori control interest. lf none, check N/A. lf additional space is needed,
attach additional page (label "Additional Section l, Part J"). F'N/A
1. Full legal name of health care provider

2. Address (number, street) (city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

K. Respond to the following questions:

1. Within ten years of the date of this statement, have you, the applicanVprovider, been convicted
of any felony or misdemeanor involving fraud or abuse in any government program?

lf yes, provide the date of the conviction (mm/dd/yyyy):

2. Within ten years of the date of this statement have you, the applicanVprovider, been found liable
for fraud or abuse involving a government program in any civil proceeding?

lf yes, provide the date of final judgment (mm/dd/yyyy):

3. Within ten years of the date of this statement, have you, the applicant/provider, entered into a
settlement in lieu of conviction for fraud or abuse involving a government program?

lf yes, provide the date of the settlement (mm/dd/yyyy):

4. Do you, the applicant/provider, currently participate or have you ever participated as a provider in
the Medi-Cal program or in another state's Medicaid program?

lf yes, provide the following information:

STATE

5. Have you, the applicanVprovider, ever been suspended from a Medicare, Medicaid, or Medi-Cal
program?

lf yes, attach verification of reinstatement and provide the following information:

CHECK
APPLICABLE

PROGRAM

! Yes .F to

! Yes .81ruo

! Yes F tlo

lt

lt

Medi-Cal
Medicaid
Medicare

n ueoi-cat
fl tvteoicaio

E Medicare

6. Has the individual license, certificate, or other approval to provide health care of the applicanVprovider
everbeen suspended or revoked?

lf yes, include copies of licensing authority's decision(s) for each decision and written confirmation
from them that your professional privileges have been restored and provide the following information:

!Yes n ruo

NPI AND/OR

PROVIDER NUM

n Yes Eruo

DATE(S) OF REINSTATEMENT(S),
AS APPLICABLE

! Yes .F*o

EFFECTTVE DATE(S) OF

LICENSING AUTHORITY'S

I
I
I
I
I
I

WHERE ACilON(S) WAS
TAKEN

tt

tt

NAME(S)
(LEGAL AND DBA)

NPI AND/OR

PROVIDER NUMBER(S)
EFFECTTVE DArE(S) OF

SUSPENSION

I
I
I

lt
tt

ACTTON(S) rAKEN

DHCS 6207 oev.2/15)

Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank.
Page 2 of 15



l. APPLICANTIPROVIDER INFORMATION (Conttnued)

7. Haveyou,theapplicanVprovider,everlostorsurrenderedyourlicense,certificate,orotherapproval
to provide health care while a disciplinary hearing was pending?

lf yes, attach a copy of the written confirmation from the licensing authority that your professional
privileges have been restored and provide the following information:

[1 Yes K*o

EFFECTTVE DATE(S) OF

LIcENSING AUTHORITY'S ACTTON(S)

wHERE ACTTON(S)wAS
TAKEN

8. Has the license, certificate, or other approval to provide health care of the applicanVprovider ever
been disciplined by any licensing authority?

lf yes, include copies of licensing authority decision(s) including any terms and conditions for each
decision and provide the following information:

WHERE ACION(S)WAS
TAKEN

n Yes E[no

EFFECTTVE DATE(S) OF
LtcENStNG AUTHORTTY'S ACTTON(S)

ACrON(S) TAKEN

ACrON(S) TAKEN

. lf you, the applicanUprovider, are an unincorporated sole-proprietor
or an individual rendering provider adding to a group, proceed to
Section ll.

OR

lf you, the applicanUprovider, are a partnership, corporation,
governmental entity, or nonprofit organization, proceed to Section lll

o

DHCS 6207 (rev. 2/15)

Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., hlank.
Page 3 of 15



./ 1'

A. Full legal name (Last) (Jr., Sr., etc.) (First) (Middle)

S. Residence address (number, street) (city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

Q. Social security number (requircd)

p. Date of birth

lt
f . Driver's license number or statelssued identification number (Aftach a currcnt and tegible copy.)

o lf you, the applicanUprovider, are an unincorporated sole-proprietor,
proceed to Section V.

OR

o lf you, the applicanUprovider, are a rendering provider adding to a
group, proceed to Section Vlll.

DHCS 6207 (rov.2/15)
Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank.

Page 4 of 15



A' ln the table below, list all corporations, unincorporated associations, partnerships, or similar entities having 5% or more (direct or
indirect) ownership or control interest, or any partnership interest, in the applicanUprovider identified in Section L Attach a
separate Section lll, Part B and G for each entity listed below. Number of pages attached:

ffinecihere if this section does not apply and proceed to Section lV.

NPI NUMBER
(lF APPLICABLE)

10.

11

12

13

14.

16.

17

18.

2

3

5.

7

8.

9

20

ENTIW LEGAL BUSINESS NAME

PERCENT (%) OF
OWNERSHIP OR

CONTROL

DHCS 6207 (rev.2/15)
Do not leave any guestions, boxes, lines, etc., blank.

Page 5 of 15



B. Entity with (Direct or lndirect) Ownership lnterest and/or Managing Control-ldentification lnformation.
1. Legal busindss name

2. Doing Business As (DBA) name (if applicabte) fl N/A

3. Primary Business Address (number, street) * (city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

- lf this entity is a corporation, attach a list of ALL business location addresses and P. O. Box addresses of the corporation.

4.u this entity is a corporation, list the Taxpayer ldentification Number issued by the IRS and aftach a legible copy of the IRS form.

5. Check all that apply:

! SYo or more ownership interest ! Managing control ! Partner n Otner (specify):

6. Effective date of or'ynerst p (mm/dd/yyyy)tt 7. Efiective daleof control (mm/dd/yyyy)

C. Respond to the following questions:

1. Within ten yearc from the date of this statement, has this entity been convicted of any felony or
misdemeanor involving fraud or abuse in any government program?

lf yes, provide the date of the conviction (mm/dd/yyyy):

2. Within ten years from the date of this statemenl has this entity been found liable for fraud or
abuse involving any government program in any civil proceeding?
lf yes, provide the date of final judgment (mm/dd/yyyy):

3. Within ten years from the date of this statement, has this entity entered into a settlement in lieu of
conviction for fraud or abuse involving any government program?

lf yes, provide the date of the settlement (mm/dd/yyyy)

4. Does this entity currently participate, or has this entity ever participated, as a provider in the Medi-Cal
program or in another state's Medicaid program? lf yes, provide the following information:

tt
! Yes ! t'lo

!Yes n ruo

nYes nuo

lt

tt

STATE

5. Has this entity ever been suspended from a Medicare, Medicaid, or Medi-Cal program?

lf yes, attach verification of reinstatement and provide the following information:

CHECK
APPLICABLE

PROGRAM

Medi-Cal
n Medicaid

Medicare
Medi-Cal
Medicaid
Medicare

!ves n ruo

NPI AND/OR

PROVTDER NUMBER(S)

nYes n ruo

DATE(S) OF RETNSTATEM ENT(S),
AS APPLICABLE

I
I
I
I
I

I
I

6. List the name and address of all health care providers, participating or not participating in Medi-Cal, in which this entity also
has an ownership or control interest. lf none, check here. f|
lf additional space is needed, attach additional page (label "Additional Section lll, Part C, ltem 6"). Number of pages attached:_
a. Full legal name of health care provider (include any fictitious business names)

NAME(S)
(LEGAL AND DBA)

NPI AND/OR

PROVTDER NUMBER(S)
EFFECTTVE DATE(S) OF

SUSPENSION

I
I

I
I

tt
I
I
I

DHCS 6207 (rev.2/15)

b. Address (number, street)

Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank.
Page 6 of 15

(city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)



2

3

4

5

6.

below, any individual that has 5% or more (direct or indirect) ownership or or any partnership
interest, in the applicanVprovideridentified in Section l. ln addition, a/lofficers of the corporation, directors, agents and managing
employees of the applicanVprovider must be reported in this section. Attach a separate Section lV, Part B and C, for each
individual listed below. Number of pages attached:_

NPI NUMBER

0F APPLTCABLE)

10

11

12

13

14

15

16.

17

19.

20.

7

8.

INDIVIDUAL NAME

PERCENT (%) OF
OWNERSHIP OR

CONTROL

DHCS 6207 (rev.2/15)
Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank.

Page 7 of 15



B.
ldentification lnformation - for lndividuals with Ownership or Control lnterest, Officers, Directors, Managing Employee(s), Partners
and/or Agents of the Partnership, Group Association, Co lnstitution or Entity
1. Full legal name (Last) (Jr., Sr., etc.) (First) (Middle)

2. Residence address (number, street) (city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

3. Social security number (required) 5. Driver's license number or state-issued identification number
(Aftach a cunent and legible copy.)

6. ls the above individual related to any individual listed in Section lV, Table A (Page 7)?
lf yes, check the appropriate box and list name of individual:

! Spouse n Parent n cnilo n Sioting n ofrer (exptain):

Name of individual:

nYes n uo

7. lf the above individu al is directly associated with the entity identified in Section l, what is this individual's relationship with the
applicanUprovider? Check all that apply.

n Syo or greater owner n Partner I Managing employee ! Agent

E Director/officer, title ! Otner (specify)

8. lftheaboveindividualisdirectlyassociatedwithanentityidentifiedinSectionlll,indicatethenameofthatentityinthespace
below:

a. Legal business name of entity as listed in Section lll, Part A:

b. What is this individual's role with the entity reported in Section lll? Check all that apply.

! 5% or greater owner ! Partner ! Managing employee n Agent

E Director/officer, title: fl otner (specify)

C. Respond to the following questions:

1. Within ten years from the date of this statement, has the above individual been convicted of any
felony or misdemeanor involving fraud or abuse in any government program? !Yes n ruo

lf yes, provide the date of the conviction (mm/dd/yyyy):

lf yes, provide the date of final judgment (mm/dd/yyyy):

lf yes, provide the date of the settlement (mm/dd/yyyy):

lt
2. Within ten years from the date of this statemenl has the above individual been found liable for

fraud or abuse involving a government program in any civil proceeding?

lt
nYes n ruo

n Yes ! t'lo

fl Yes n ruo

3. Within ten years from the date of this statement, has the above individual entered into a
settlement in lieu of conviction for fraud or abuse involving any government program?

tt
4. Does the above individual currently participate, or has he or she ever participated, as a provider in

the Medi-Cal program or in another state's Medicaid program?

lf yes, provide the following information:

STATE
NPI AND/OR

PROVIDER

4. Date of birth

tt

NAME(S)

(LEGAL AND DBA)

DHCS 6207 (rev. 2/15)

Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank.
Page 8 of '15



Name of individual listed in Section lV, Part B, ltem 1

5. Has the above individual ever been suspended from a Medicare, Medicaid, or Medi-Cal program?

lf yes, attach verification of reinstatement and provide the following information:

CHECK
APPLICABLE

PROGRATII

WHERE ACTION(S) wAS
TAKEN

n ueoi-cat
fl Medicaid
n Medicare

Medi-Cal
Medicaid
Medicare

6. Has the above individual's license, certificate, or other approval to provide health care eyer been
suspended or revoked?

lf yes, include copies of licensing authority decision(s) and written confirmation from them that his or
her professional privileges have been restored and provide the following information:

flyes n no

DATE(S) OF REr NSTATEMENT(S),
AS APPLICABLE

nYes n ruo

EFFECTIVE DATE(S) OF

LICENSING AUTHORITY'S

I
I
I
I
I
I

I
I
I

tt

tt
7. Has the above individual otherwise lost or surrendered his or her license, certificate, or other

approval to provide health care while a disciplinary hearing was pending?

lf yes, attach a copy of the written confirmation from the licensing authority that his or her
professional privileges have been restored and provide the following information:

WHERE ACTTON(S)wAS
TAKEN

!Yes n uo

EFFECIVE DATE(S) OF
LtcENStNG AIJTHORITY'S ACTTON(S)

tt

lt
8. Has the above individual's license, certificate, or

disciplined by any licensing authority?
r approval to provide health care eyer been

nYes n ruo

EFFECTTVE DArE(S) OF
LIcENStNG AUTHORTTY'S ACTTON{S)

lf yes, include copies of licensing authority decision(s), including any terms and conditions for each
decision, and provide the following information:

wHERE ACTTON(S) WAS
TAKEN

tt

tt
9. List the name and address of all health care providers, participating or not participating in Medi-Cal, in which the above

individual also has an ownership or control interest. lf none, check here. f|
lf additional space is needed, attach additional page (label 'Additional Section lV, Part C, Item 9"). Number of pages attached:

Full legal name of health care provider (include any lictitious bus,ness narres)

b. Address (number, street) (city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

NPI AND/OR

PROVIDER NUMBER(S)
EFFECTTVE DATE(S) OF

SUSPENSION

I
I
I

tt
lt
tt

ACION(S) TAKEN

ACTION(S) TAKEN

ACTTON(S) TAKEN

o Proceed to Section V

DHCS 6207 (rev.2/15)
Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank.

Page 9 of 15



Does I Part A on Page One of this form) have direct or
percent or more in any of its subcontractors that provide healthcare services or goods? n Yes Eruo

Do any of the enlilies named in Section lll, Part A on Page Five of this form have direct or indirect ownership of 5 percent or more in any of the
applicant provider's subcontractors that provide healthcare services or goods? n yes E llo

Do any of the individuals named in Section lV, Part A on Page Seven of this form have direct or indirect ownership of 5 percent or more in any of the
applicant provide/s subcontractors that provide healthcare services or goods? n Yes El tlo

lf you answered NO to ALL of the above, please proceed to Section V, Part C on the next page.

lf you answered YES to ANY of the above, please complete the following information about the subcontractor and attach a copy of
any written agreement(s) that you have with the subcontractor that relate to its functions/responsibilities.

1. Subcontractor's full legal name 2. Subcontractor's phone number

3. Subcontractor's address (number, street) (city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

4. Subcontractor's federal employer identification number (if applicable) 5. Subcontractor's corporation number (if applicable)

lf there is more than one subcontractor, provide a separate sheet with all required information (label "Additional Section V, Part A").

E CnecX here if additional sheet(s) is attached. Number of additional pages:

B. List the following information for any person or entity, other than the applicanUprovider, with 5 percent or more ownership and/or
control interest in any subcontractor listed in Part A. lf there is more than one subcontractor, provide a separate sheet with all
required information (label "Additional Section V, Part B").

nCnecrhereifadditionalsheet(s)isattached.Numberofadditionalpages:-
Name of Subcontractor in Part A

1. Full legal name of person or entity with ownership or control interest in the Subcontractor

Address (number, street) (City)

Phone number
()

(State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

What is this individual's role with the subcontractor reported in Part A? Check all that apply

E 5% or more owner - Percent of ownership: E Partner [J Managing employee

E Director/officer, title: ! Ottrer (specin:

ls the above individual related to any individual listed in Section lV, Table A (Page 7)? fl Yes fl tto
lf yes, check the appropriate box and list the name of the related individual:

E Spouse E Parent E cnito E sinting E other (exptain)

name person or entity with ownership or control ntractor number
)

Address (number, street) (city) (State) (

Name of related individual:

2

What is this individual's role with the subcontractor reported in Part A? Check all that apply

! 5% or more owner - Percent of ownership: E Partner E Managing employee

E Director/officer, title: E Otner (speciff)

ls the above individual related to any individual listed in Section lV, Table A (Page 7)? n yes n Uo

lf yes, check the appropriate box and list the name of the related individual:

E Spouse E Parent

Name of related individual

n Sinting E Otner (explain):El chird

DHCS 6207 (rev.2/15)
Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank.

Page 10 of 15



3. Full name person or entity with ownership or control interest

Address (number, (city) (State) (Nine-digit

What is this individual's role with the subcontractor reported in Part A? Check all that apply.

E 57o or greater owner - Percent of ownership: E Partner E Managing employee

I Director/officer, title: EI other (speciff):

ls the above individual related to any individual listed in Section lV, Table A (Page 7)? [ Yes n ruo

lf yes, check the appropriate box and list the name of the related individual:

E Spouse E Parent

Name of related individual
E chird E sibting E Otner (explain):

4. legal name of person or entity with

Address

por nterest

(city)

Phone number

rg ZIP code)

What is this individual's role with the subcontractor reported in Part A? Check all that apply.

E 57o or more owner - Percent of ownership: f] Partner E Managing employee

E Director/officer, title: E Otner (speciff)

ls the above individual related to any individual listed in Section lV, Table A (Page 7)? n Yes E ruo

lf yes, check the appropriate box and list the name of the related individual:

n Spouse ! Parent ! CtrltO ! SiOting ! Other (exptain)

Q. Has the applicanVprovider had any significant business transactions with any wholly owned supplier or with
any subcontractor (not listed on Part A) during the S-year period immediately preceding the date of this n Yes
Application?

"Significant business transaction" means any business transaction or series of transactions that involve health care services,
goods, supplies, or merchandise related to the provision of services to Medi-Cal beneficiaries that, during any one fiscal
year, exceed the lesser of$25,000 or 5 percent ofan applicant's or providefs total operating expenses.

'Wholly owned supplier" medns a supplier whose total ownership interest is held by an applicant or provider or by a person,
persons, or other entity with an owlership or control interest in an applicant or provider.

"Subcontractor" means an individual, agency, or organization:
(a) To which an applicant or provider has contracted or delegated some of its management functions or responsibilities of
providing healthcare services, equipment or supplies to its patients.
(b) With whom an applicant or provider has entered into a contract, agreement, purchase order, lease, or leases of real
property, to obtain space, supplies, equipment, or services provided under the Medi-Cal Program.

I

lf No, please proceed to Section V, Part D on the next page.

lf Yes, complete the following information about the supplier or subcontractor:

Name of related individual :

[l tto

1. Subcontractor's or suppliefs full legal name

3. Subcontractor's or supplier's address (number, sheet) (city)

2. Subcontractor's or supplier's phone number
()

(State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

4. Describe the transaction(s):

lf there is more than one subcontractor or supplier, provide a separate sheet with all required information (label "Additional Section
V, Part C").

! Cfrect here if additional sheet(s) is attached. Number of additional pages

DHCS 6207 (rev.2/15)
Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank,

Page 11 of 15



D. tist the name and address of each person(s) with an ownerchip or control interest in any subcontractor (listed in Part C) with
whom the applicant or provider has had business transaction involving health care services, goods, supplies or merchandise related
to the provision of services to a Medi-Cal beneficiary that total more than $25,000 during the 12-month period immediately preceding
the date of the Application, or immediately preceding the date on the Department's request for such information. lf there is more
than one subcontractor, provide a separate sheet with all required information. (label "Additional Section V, Part D").

ffCnecf here if no subcontractom listed in Part C or applicanUprovider has had no business transactions with subcontractors involving health care
services, goods, supplies or merchandise related to the provision of services to a Medi-Cal beneficiary that total more than $25,000 during the 12-
month period immediately preceding the date of the Application, or immediately preceding the date on the Department's request for such information.
Proceed to Section Vl,

E Cnecf here if additional sheet(s) is attached. Number of additional pages:

Name of Subcontractor in Part C

1. Full legal name of person or entity with ownership or control interest Phone number
()

Address (number, street) (city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

2. Full legal name of person or entity with ownership or control interest

Address (number, street)

Phone number
()

(city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

3. Full legal name of person or entity with ownership or control interest

Address (number, street)

Phone number
()

(city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

4. Full legal name of person or entity with ownership or control interest

Address (number, street)

Phone number
()

(City) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP code)

o Proceed to Section Vl

DHCS 6207 (rev.2/15)
Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank.

Page 12 of 15



Does the applicanVprovider intend to sell or currently sell incontinence medical supplies? n Yes Etr f'lo

lf No, Pharmacy applicants/providers proceed to Section Vll. All other applicants/providers proceed to Section Vlll.

lf Yes, provide the following information:

A. List the names and addresses of all current sources of capital, as defined in CCR, Trtle 22, Section 51000.5.

lf there is more than one source of capital, provide a separate sheet with all required information (label "Additional Section Vl, Part A').

nrun
n Cnecn here if additional sheet(s) is attached. Number of additional pages:

Full legal name of person or entity with ownership or control interest

Address (number, street) (city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP
code)

B. List all manufacturers, suppliers, and other providers with whom the applicanVprovider has any type of business
relationship relative to the goods and services provided to Medi-Cal beneficiaries.

lf there is more than one, provide a separate sheet with all required information (label "Additional Section Vl, Part B").

nrun
I Cne* here if additional sheet(s) is attached. Number of additional pages:

Full legal name of person or entity with ownership or control interest

Address (number, street) (city) (State) (Nine-digitZlP
code)

C. List all persons or entities to which the applicanVprovider has extended a line of credit, as defined in CCR, Title 22,
Section 51000.10, of $5,000 or more.

lf there is more than one, provide a separate sheet with all required information (label "Additional Section Vl, Part C").

nrun
n Cnect here if additional sheet(s) is attached. Number of additional pages:

Full legal name of person or entity

Address (number, street) (city) (State) (Nine-digit ZIP
code)

o Pharmacy applicants/providers proceed to Section Vll

o All other applicants/providers proceed to Section Vlll

OR

DHCS 6207 (r€v. 2/15)

Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank.
Page 13 of 15



A. Has the individual license, certificate, or other approval to provide health care, of the
Pharmacist-in-Charge, ever been suspended or revoked?

lf yes, include copies of licensing authority decision(s) and written confirmation from them that his or her
professional privileges have been restored and provide the following information:

!Yes n ruo

EFFECTTVE DArE(S) OF

LTcENSTNG AUTHORTTY'S ACTTON(S)

wHERE ACTTON(S)
WAS TAKEN

tt

tt
B. Has the individual license, certificate, or other approval to provide health care, of the

Pharmacist-in-Charge, ever been lost, or surrendered while a disciplinary hearing on his or her license
was pending?

lf yes, attach a copy of the written confirmation from the licensing authority that professional privileges
have been restored and provide the following information:

nYes n ruo

EFFECTTVE DATE(S) OF

LIoENSING AUTHORITY'S ACTTON(S)

n Yes ! tto
c.

wHERE ACTTON(S)
WAS TAKEN

Has any licensing authority ever disciplined the Board of Pharmacy License of the
P h a rm ac ist- i n- C h a rge?

lf yes, include copies of licensing authority decision(s) including any terms and conditions and provide
the fol

WHERE ACTTON(S) wAS TAKEN
EFFECTTVE DATE(S) OF

LtcENSING AUTHORIW'S AcTtON(S)

tt

tt

ACTTON(S) TAKEN

ACT|ON(S) TAKEN

ACTTON(S) TAKEN

o Proceed to Section Vlll

DHCS 6207 (reu 2/15)

Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank,
Page 14 of 15



I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing information in this
document and any attachments is true, accurate, and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.

I declare that I have the authority to legally bind the applicant or provider pursuant to Title 22, CCR
Section 51 000.30(aX2XB).
1. Printed legal name of applicanVprovider

o
2. Printed name of person signing this declaration with authority to legally bind the applicant or provider (if an entity or business name is listed in ltem above)

Covn)y ol t

I-V\ari lhr, I^l^\ann
3. Original signature of the applicant, provider or the person with authority to legally bind the applicant or provider (in ink)

4. Title of person signing this declaration

t-{ l-|i5 Df rcc\pr

5. Executed at: on
(city) (State) (Date)

6. Notary Public:

Applicants and providers licensed pursuant to Division 2 (commencing with Section 500) of the Business and Professions Code, the
Osteopathic lnitiative Act, or the Chiropractic lnitiative Act ARE flOf REOUIRED to have this form notarized. lf notarization is required,
the Certificate of Acknowledgement signed by the Notary Public must be in the form specified in Section 1 1 89 of the Civil Code.

PRIVACY STATEMENT
(Civil Code Section 1798 et seq.)

All information requested on the Application, the disclosure statement, and the provider agreement is mandatory. This information is required by the California
Department of Health Care Services and any other California State Departments that are delegated responsibility to administer the Medi-Cal program, by the
authority of the Welfare and lnstitutions Code, Sections 14043 - 14043.75, the California Code of Regulations,Tiile 22, Sections s1000 - 51451 anO tne boOe
of Federal Regulations, Tille 42, Part 455. The consequences of not supplying the mandatory information requested are denial of enrollment as a Medi-Cal
provider or denial of continued enrollment as a provider and deactivation of all provider numbers used by the provider to obtain reimbursement from the
Medi-Cal program. Some or all of this information may also be provided to the California State Conlroller's Office, the California Department of Justice, the
California Department of Consumer Afiairs, the California Department of Corporations, the California Franchise Tax Board or other California state or local
agencies as appropriate, fiscal intermediaries, managed care plans, the Federal Bureau of lnvestigation, the Inlernal Revenue Service, Medicare Fiscal
lntermediaries, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Oflice of the lnspector General, Medicaid, or as required or permiiled by law. For more
information or access to records containing your personal information maintained by this agency, contact the Provider Enrollment Oivision at (916) 323-1945 or
contact Denti-Cal at (800) 423-0507.

lt

DHCS 6207 (rev. 2/15)

Do not leave any questions, boxes, lines, etc., blank.
Page 15 of 15



CCC 04/2017  
CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am 
duly authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed 
below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) 
 County of Inyo 

Federal ID Number 
 95-6005445 

By (Authorized Signature) 
  

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 
Marilyn Mann  

Date Executed Executed in the County of 
Inyo 

 
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied 
with the nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) and 
CCR, Title 2, Section 11102) (Not applicable to public entities.) 

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor will comply with 
the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a 
drug-free workplace by taking the following actions: 

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations. 

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about: 
1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; 
and, 
4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.  
c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will: 
1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and, 
2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of 
employment on the Agreement. 
Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments 
under the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor 
may be ineligible for award of any future State agreements if the department 



determines that any of the following has occurred: the Contractor has made false 
certification, or violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as 
noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et seq.)  

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor 
certifies that no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court 
by a Federal court has been issued against Contractor within the immediately 
preceding two-year period because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order 
of a Federal court, which orders Contractor to comply with an order of the 
National Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract Code §10296) (Not applicable to 
public entities.)  

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO 
REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor will comply with the 
requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective 
January 1, 2003.   

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of 
hours of pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the 
lessor of 30 multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in 
the State, with the number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any 
contract period of less than a full year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state 
contract for legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the 
award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:  Contractor hereby declares that it is not an 
expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the 
meaning of Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to 
contract with the State of California. 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, 
garments or corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, 
materials, or supplies, other than procurement related to a public works contract, 
declare under penalty of perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding 
accessories, equipment, materials, or supplies furnished to the state pursuant to 
the contract have been laundered or produced in whole or in part by sweatshop 
labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under penal sanction, abusive 
forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, or with the 
benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in 
sweatshop labor.  The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that 
they adhere to the Sweatfree Code of Conduct as set forth on the California 
Department of Industrial Relations website located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public 
Contract Code Section 6108. 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the 
contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably 
required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of 
Industrial Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s 
compliance with the requirements under paragraph (a). 

7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:  For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor 
certifies that Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 
10295.3.  

8. GENDER IDENTITY:  For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies 
that Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of 
California. 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following 
provisions regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has any 
questions on the status of any person rendering services or involved with the 
Agreement, the awarding agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise 
from which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial 
interest and which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the 
employment, activity or enterprise is required as a condition of regular state 
employment.  

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an 
independent contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services. 

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 

1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no 
former state officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she 
engaged in any of the negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any 
part of the decision-making process relevant to the contract while employed in 
any capacity by any state agency. 

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no 
former state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency 
if he or she was employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the 
same general subject area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period 
prior to his or her leaving state service. 



If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by 
Contractor shall render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not 
receive payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or 
commission, payment for preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. 
Contract Code §10430 (e)) 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware 
of the provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
Worker's Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions, and Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code 
Section 3700) 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and 
guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the 
Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the State will process the amendment.  
Payment of invoices presented with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval 
of said amendment.  

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  

a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the 
contracting agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to 
do business in California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state 
are fulfilled.   

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in 
any transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although 
there are some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor 
performing within the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of 
California) must be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in 
California.  Agencies will determine whether a corporation is in good standing by 
calling the Office of the Secretary of State. 

6. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide 
the State with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local 
governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, 
authorizing execution of the agreement. 
7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the 
Contractor shall not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to 



review promulgated by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control 
district; (2) subject to cease and desist order not subject to review issued 
pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in violation 
of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 
 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: This form must be completed by all 
contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - First 5
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Serena Johnson 
 
SUBJECT:  Triple P America contract for Family Transitions training 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the County of Inyo and Triple P America from March 20, 2020 to 
June 30, 2020 for Triple P Positive Parenting Program training services in an estimated amount of $32,000, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This contract is going to equip agency partners in Inyo County with evidence-based Triple P Positive Parenting 
Program training to increase our network of Triple P providers across the county who are able to respond to 
parents with the same language and resources, referring them to the appropriate level of support. By investing in 
the communitywide capacity of so many organizations that serve Inyo County children from birth to five, we are 
hoping to strengthen the necessary infrastructure for the parenting program that has been found to reduce child 
abuse and neglect. Reducing parent stress, teaching positive behavior management skills, and improving parent 
child relationships are the core values of this Cognitive Behavioral Theory based curriculum.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
If you decide not to approve this contract First 5 Inyo County will struggle to support the Inyo County Triple P 
Network in strengthening families using the Triple P Positive Parenting Program evidence based curriculum, 
impacting the sustainability and effectiveness of our parenting support system.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None
 
FINANCING:
100% State Funding. This contract will be budgeted in the First 5 Budget (643000) in Professional Services 
(5265). No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Triple P Family Transitions contract



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
APPROVALS:
Serena Johnson Created/Initiated - 2/21/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/21/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 2/21/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 2/24/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 2/24/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 2/24/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 2/24/2020



















County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Office of the Sheriff 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorize a purchase order payable to Sun Ridge Systems, Inc. for iRIMS Law mobile. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board authorize a purchase order in an amount not to exceed $11,350, payable to Sun Ridge Systems, 
Inc. of El Dorado, CA for iRIMS Law mobile and 1 year of support.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
iRIMS Law will give authorized users secure access to CAD/RMS information in real time through an Android or 
iOS application. iRIMS Law is an innovative MDT platform tool that will enhance accuracy and timeliness of data 
collected by deputies while reducing the workload on dispatchers. The iRIMS Law mobile platform will facilitate 
compliance with state mandated RIPA data collection and reporting. iRIMS law is a secure platform for deputies 
to upload and receive confidential information while working in the field, reducing time stent in the station.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
In 2006, this office purchased the Jail Records Management and Computer Aided Dispatch System from 
Sun Ridge Systems, Inc. Annually we pay a fee for support services and warranty maintenance. On December 
10, 2019, your Board authorized Sun Ridge Systems, Inc as a sole source provider of annual support services for 
the CAD/RMS system and the payment of $23,606 for annual maintenance and support to Sun Ridge Systems, 
Inc. Approval of the iRIMS Law mobile would increase the departments annual expenditures with Sun Ridge to 
$34,956 through the end of fiscal year 2019/2020.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your board could choose not to purchase IRIMS mobile platform. Staff does not recommend this action. iRIMS 
Law will increase accuracy of data, facilitate compliance with a state mandate and allow for deputies to write 
reports in the field.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:
Funding is available in the Jail CAD/RMS budget #022950, Professional Services object code #5265
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

1. 20191210Sheriff - SunRidgeSoleSourcePaymentRatification
2. iRIMS LAW MOBILE QUOTE
 
APPROVALS:
Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 2/25/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/26/2020
Riannah Reade Approved - 2/26/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 2/26/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 2/26/2020
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 2/26/2020



In the Rooms of tlte Board of Superuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the lOth dayof December20lg an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Sheriff - Sun Ridge
Sysfems So/e
Source and
Payment
Ratification

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Tillemans to: A) declare Sun Ridge
Systems, lnc. of El Dorado Hills, CA a sole-source provider of annual support services; and B)
ratify and approve payment to Sun Ridge Systems, lnc. of El Dorado Hills, CA in the amount of
$23,606 for annual support services. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Chairperson Pucci
absent.

Routing

cc
Purchasing X
Personnel
Auditor

cA0
0ther Sheiff
DATE: Decenber 10,2019

IIITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this I7th

Dayof December,2019

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board of Supemisors

By:
tkA



Ffi

County of Inyo

Sheriff

DEPARTMENTAL . ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: December 10, 2019

FROM: Office of the Sheriff

SUBJECT: Approval of Payment for Sun Ridge Systems, lnc.

RECOMMENDED AGTION:
Request Board: A) declare Sun Ridge Systems, lnc. of El Dorado Hills, CA a sole-source provider of annual
support services; and B) ratify and approve payment to Sun Ridge Systems, lnc. of El Dorado Hills, CA in the
amount of $23,606 for annual support services.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFIGATION :

The RIMS system is used daily by nearly every member of the Sheriffs office in the performance of their duties
and allows us to collaborate with other RIMS agencies and county departments who access our records. The
RIMS system modules we use for daily operations include the CAD/RMS, E911, mugshot and digital imaging,
lnCustody, mapping, property room, ldentix, Collaborate, CLETS, TIMS, Citizens RIMS and KARPAL interface.
From statistical reports to emergency 911 communications, RIMS has been a vital tool for the Sheriffs office.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
ln 2006, this office purchased the Jail Records Management and Computer Aided Dispatch System from Sun
Ridge Systems, lnc. Annually we pay a fee for support services and warranty maintenance.

ALTERNATIVES AND GONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE AGTION:
Deny this purchase and direct us to seek out other RMS/CAD/91'1 vendors. This is not recommended; Sun Ridge
is an exclusive maintenance and warranty provider for our existing RMS/CAD/911 system.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Auditor's office
Purchasing office
County Counsel

FINANGING:
Funding is included in the FY 2019-2020 CAD RIMS budget 022950, Object Code 5265 Professional Services

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 19-20 RIMS SUPPORT INV OO1



Agenda Request
Page 2

APPROVALS:
Riannah Reade
Darcy Ellis
Riannah Reade
Amy Shepherd
Marshall Rudolph
Jeffrey Hollowell

Created/lnitiated - I 1 l1 512019
Approved - 1111812019
Approved - 1111812019
Approved - 1111812019
Approved - 1111812019
Final Approval - 1 1 11812019



$)l@ET
lnvoice

Sun Ridge Systems, lnc.
wwwSunRidqesyslems,com

PO Box 5071

ElDorado Hills, CA 95762
s30-676-7128

Date lnvoice #

llllyzalg 5802

Bill To

Inyo County Sheriff
Attn: Lauri Flarner
PO Drawer S

Independence, CA93526

Ship To

P.O. Number Terms

Duc on rcccipt

Quantity Item Code Description Price Each Amount

Warranty and Sup...
Warranty and Sup.-.

Warranty and Sup...
Wananty and Sup...
Warranty and Sup...
Warrurty and Sup...
Warranty and Sup...
Warranty and Sup...
Warranty and Sup...
Warranly and Sup,..
Warranty and Sup...

Wananty and Sup.-.

Warranty and Sup...

RIMS Annual Support Services - CAD'
RIMS Annual Support Services - RMS
RIMS Annual Support Services - E91l
RIMS Annual Support Services - Mugshot/Digital Imaging
RIMS Annual Support Services - InCustody
NMS Annual Support Services - Mapping
NMS Annual Support Services - Prop Room
RIMS Annual Support Services - Identix
RIMS Annual Support Services - Collaborate
NMS Annual Support Services - CLETS
RIMS Annual Support Services. TIMS
RIMS Annual Support Services - Citizen RIMS
RIMS Annual Support Services - KARPAI, Intert'ace

Support Datcs: July l, 2019 - June 30, 2020
Sales Tax

4,878.00
4,878.00

976.00
976.00

4,878.00
2,129.00

621 .00

532.00
886.00

r,419.00
497.00
780.00
156.00

7.75%

4,878.00
4,878.00

976.00
976.00

4,878.00
2,t29.00

621.00

532.00

886.00
I ,419.00

497.00
780.00
I 56.00

0.00

Please remit to the abovg addrcss
For Questions please e-mail cubs@sunridgesysrems.com Total $23,606.00





County of Inyo

Community Organization/Outside Agency
 

DEPARTMENTAL - NO ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Presentation by CPUC 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board receive an update from the California Public Utilities Commission on Southern California Edison's 
two transmission line projects.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Representatives of the California Public Utilities Commission would like to update the Board on two transmission 
line projects proposed by Southern California Edison: the Ivanpah-Control Project and the Control-Silver Peak 
Project. Attached are fact sheets describing the two projects.

Both projects will be undergoing the formal California Environmental Quality Act process with the CPUC in 
coming months.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Billie Blanchard, the CPUC Project Manager, presented information about the Ivanpah-Control Project to the 
Board of Supervisors on April 9, 2019, but the project was delayed after that, and now the CPUC would like to 
present updated information.

The Control-Silver Peak project, which is a line running from northwest of Bishop into Nevada, is new and has 
not previously been presented to the Board.
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to receive the updates.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Public Utilities Commission; Southern California Edison
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

1. CPUC Presentation
2. Ivanpah-Control Fact Sheet
3. Control-Silver Peak Fact Sheet
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 3/11/2020
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 3/11/2020



California Public Utilities Commission 
Presentation to the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

 

SCE Ivanpah-Control (I-C) Project 
Update: Project as Revised by Southern California Edison 

 

SCE Control-Silver Peak (C-SP) Project 
New CPUC Filing 

March 17, 2020 



Agenda for Project Presentations 

• Introductions – CPUC Project Manager & Consultant Project 
Managers for I-C and C-SP Projects 

• CPUC/BLM regulatory processes for both I-C & C-SP 

• Updates Regarding I-C Project (since originally presented to 
BOS in April 2019) 

• CEQA estimated schedule 

• New C-S Project to be filed with CPUC 

• Project description with map  

• Pre-file process – what has CPUC CEQA team been doing 

• CEQA schedule  

• Thank you and Contact information 

March 17, 2020 page 2 



Introduction to the CPUC 

• CPUC regulates various utility sectors including 
investor-owned electric utilities as Southern CA. 
Edison (SCE) 

• Under CPUC General Order 131-D, the CPUC must 
approve SCE’s application for Permit to Construct 
before this project can move ahead. 

• CPUC is the CEQA Lead Agency 

March 17, 2020 page 3 



CPUC Process and Roles 
for I-C & C-SP 

• CEQA Unit will prepare EIRs for both projects 

• Administrative Law Judge will conduct Proceeding and 

prepare draft decision after Final EIR is issued 

• A Commissioner will be assigned to each project – 

Commissioner Shiroma now assigned to I-C Project 

• Vote will be by full 5-member Commission 

• Votes on project approval or denial   

• Proposed project or alternative selection with any 

approval 

March 17, 2020 page 4 



CEQA and the CPUC Process 

March 17, 2020 page 5 



Coordination with BLM 

The CPUC  & BLM will conduct separate NEPA and CEQA 
reviews for both I-C and C-SP  

• BLM is the NEPA Lead Agency 

• BLM will issue new ROW Authorizations where the project is 
on federal land 

• No joint CEQA/NEPA document will be prepared 

• There will be frequent interaction/planned coordination 
milestones between CPUC and BLM to ensure consistency 

March 17, 2020 page 6 



Ivanpah-Control Project 

March 17, 2020 page 7 



Ivanpah-Control Project History 

March 17, 2020 page 8 

Date Actions 

Nov. 2018 – Jan. 2019 • CPUC Pre-Filing Review of SCE Draft Application 

April 2019 • CPUC Introduced Project to Inyo County Board 
of Supervisors 

July 2019 • SCE Submitted Initial PEA and Application 

August 2019 • CPUC prepared Application Completeness 
comments 

September 2019 • SCE decided to modify the I-C Project 
• CPUC put Scoping on hold pending revised 

application 

April 2020 • SCE will submit revised PEA and Application 
• CPUC will complete second Application 

Completeness Review and start CEQA process 



Ivanpah-Control Project Map 

March 17, 2020 page 9 



Ivanpah-Control Project: 
Components  

• 2019 Original I-C Project 

• SCE Project was a complete rebuild in April 2019 
368 miles in 3 counties: Inyo, Kern, San Bernardino 

• 2020 I-C Project 

• SAME as 2019 Project:  
• Segments 1 and 2 in Inyo and Kern Counties: 

• Full tear-down and rebuild of towers 
• New conductors installed 

• CHANGE from 2019 Project:  
• Segments 3 and 4 in San Bernardino County 

• Limited tower replacement 
• New conductors installed 

 March 17, 2020 page 10 



Ivanpah-Control Project:  
Tasks Completed and In Progress 

• Agency Outreach and Consultation 

• Counties, Caltrans, DOD, LADWP 

• Native American Outreach 

• Outreach to over 30 Native American tribes 

• Early tribal consultation with 11 tribes that will participate in formal 
AB 52 Consultation 

• AB 52 Process Development 

• Pre-file review of draft applications 

• Coordination with BLM on technical issues 

• Site visits for technical team members 

 



Ivanpah-Control Project: 
Tentative CEQA Schedule 

CEQA / CPUC Process Step Approximate Schedule 

Pre-Filing Process: 
Review Draft Proponent’s Environmental Assessment 

October 2018 –  
March 2019 

SCE Files FIRST Application and PEA July 2019 

SCE Decided to Modify Project; CEQA on hold August 2019 – April 2020 

SCE Submits Revised Application and PEA April 2020 

CEQA Scoping – Public Scoping Meetings July 2020 

AB52 Consultation with Native American Tribes Ongoing from pre-filing 

Prepare Draft EIR Aug. 2019 – Dec. 2020 

Release Draft EIR; Public Workshops Jan. – Feb. 2021 

Release Final EIR June 2021 

CPUC Decision October 2021 

Project Construction (if approved) 2021 - 2025 

March 17, 2020 page 12 



Control-Silver Peak Project 

March 17, 2020 page 13 



Control-Silver Peak Project: 
Background 

• Also a part of SCE’s Transmission Line Rating Remediation (TLRR) 
Program  

• C-SP Project replaces aging wood poles, remedies discrepancies 
(e.g., conductor sag and clearance), and addresses reliability 
concerns (e.g., reduce power outages and wildfire hazards) 

• Existing C-SP 55 kV subtransmission line: 

• Extends ~42 miles from Control Substation near the City of Bishop to 
the Fish Lake Valley Metering Station at CA-NV border 

• 16-mile section provides power to Zack Substation in Chalfant Valley 

• 2.4-mile section provides power to Deep Springs Substation 

• Divided into 5 distinct segments; most Segment 1 upgrades to occur 
in advance of C-SP Project 

 March 17, 2020 page 14 



March 17, 2020 page 15 

Control-Silver Peak Project Map 



Control-Silver Peak Project: 
Components 

• Rebuild ~39 miles of the existing system (i.e., pole and conductor 
replacement), with additional work on smaller portions of the 
remaining 21 miles of the alignment (e.g., ground wiring) 

• Replace two existing single-circuit alignments with one double-
circuit alignment within Segment 3 

• Replace wood poles with taller steel or ductile iron poles 
• Brown patina to resemble wood poles 

• Key construction components include:  
• Temporary staging yards near the alignment 

• Work areas around pole locations 

• Access road improvements  

• Vegetation removal 

• Helicopter support in remote areas 

 March 17, 2020 page 16 



Control-Silver Peak Project:  
Tasks Completed and In Progress 

• Initial site visits by technical team (Sept/Oct 2019) 

• Pre-filing review of draft Proponent Environmental 
Assessment (PEA) and technical reports 

• Pre-filing Outreach 

• 11 Agencies (USFS, Inyo/Mono Counties, USFWS, Caltrans 
District 9, Lahontan RWQCB, CDFW, LADWP, City of Bishop, 
CalFIRE) 

• 6 Tribes (Big Pine Piute, Bishop Piute, Lone Pine Piute-
Shoshone, Timba-sha Shoshone, Utu Utu Gwaiti Piute, 
Kutzadika Piute) 

 



Control-Silver Peak Project: 
Tentative CEQA Schedule 

CEQA / CPUC Process Step Approximate Schedule 

Pre-Filing Process: 
Review Draft Proponent’s Environmental Assessment 

October 2019 –  
February 2019 

SCE Submits Application and PEA May 2020 

CEQA Scoping – Public Scoping Meetings June-July 2020 

AB-52 Consultation with Native American Tribes Ongoing from pre-filing 

Prepare Draft EIR June 2020 – May 2021 

Release Draft EIR; Public Workshops June-July 2021 

Release Final EIR September 2021 

CPUC Decision December 2021 

Project Construction (if approved) 2022 thru 2025 

March 17, 2020 page 18 



Contact Information 

• Billie Blanchard, CPUC Project Manager 
Ivanpah-Control Project & Control-Silver Peak 

• Email: Billie.Blanchard@cpuc.ca.gov 

• Telephone: (415) 703-2837 

 

March 17, 2020 page 19 

mailto:Billie.Blanchard@cpuc.ca.gov


Thank you for the opportunity to present  
the CPUC’s CEQA Process and Upcoming Projects 

 

Questions? 

March 17, 2020 page 20 



 

Fact Sheet 
Ivanpah-Control Project 
Inyo, Kern, and San Bernardino Counties  
 

Southern California Edison (SCE) is proposing to rebuild components of the existing 115 kilovolt (kV) 
transmission lines serving the Control and Haiwee Substations in Inyo County, the Inyokern Substation 
in Kern County, and the Kramer, Coolwater, and Ivanpah Substations in San Bernardino County. The 
project is subject to review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

As the lead agency under CEQA, the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) will prepare an 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) to meet local and state permitting requirements. As the lead 
agency under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) 
will prepare a separate Environmental Impact Statement. 

Proposed Ivanpah-Control Project 
Southern California Edison Company (SCE) has studied 
its transmission system and has determined that certain 
older parts of the transmission system do not comply 
with the CPUC’s safety requirements defined in its 
General Order (GO) 95. As a result, SCE is proposing to 
implement a Transmission Line Rating Remediation 
(TLRR) program to correct discrepancies in minimum 
horizonal and vertical conductor clearances. SCE’s goal 
is to remediate all discrepancies on its bulk electric 
system by 2025, as required by the North American 
Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) Mitigation Plan. 

SCE has proposed the Ivanpah-Control (I-C) Project to 
remediate conductor clearance discrepancies on its 115 
kV subtransmission lines, from Bishop in Inyo County, 
south to Inyokern and through the northeastern 
corner of Kern County, and through San Bernardino 
County (Kramer Junction, Barstow, and Ivanpah). As 
shown in Figure 1, the route connects numerous 
substations.  

SCE would construct no new substations as part of the 
Project. The Project would not expand electrical service 
to areas not currently served by SCE.  

Proposed Conductor and Increased Capacity. SCE 
proposes to replace the existing conductors and struc-
tures on the 115 kV system, installing a new type of 
conductor. The conductors that SCE proposes to install 
would have the capacity to carry power well in excess 
of existing transmission line ratings of the 115 kV 
system. For example, on some segments the new 
conductor could carry 50% more power.  

The information presented here for Segments 1 and 2 
is based on SCE’s July 2019 PEA. SCE plans to submit a 
revised PEA in March 2020, clarifying its plans for 
Segments 3N, 3S, and 4. As a result, the Segment 3N, 
3S, and 4 descriptions are brief. Descriptions of the five 
route segments follow. 

Segment 1: Control Substation (Bishop) to 
Inyokern Substation 

This 126-mile project segment includes 111 miles 
located in Inyo County, with the southernmost 15 miles 
in Kern County. 

The existing 115 kV line generally parallels U.S. 395. 
There are two SCE electrical circuits that require 
replacement in this segment: the Control-Haiwee-
Inyokern 115 kV circuit and the Control-Coso-Haiwee-
Inyokern 115 kV circuit. In this segment, SCE proposes 
to take the following actions: 

 Remove 1,161 existing transmission structures and 
replace them with 905 new structures; 

 Install new conductors and fiber optic cable on the 
entire 126-mile line segment; and 

 Install marker balls on overhead wire where deter-
mined to be appropriate. 

Pre-Project Reconductoring. In order to reduce wildfire 
risk before construction of the I-C Project begins in 2022, 
SCE proposes to replace 42 circuit-miles of conductor in 
areas of moderate and high fire risk during 2019 and 
2020. This conductor replacement is not part of the I-C 
Project but is an urgent repair action that will reduce 
fire risk in the northern portion of this segment in com-
pliance with SCE’s 2019 Wildfire Mitigation Plan. 



FACT SHEET 
Ivanpah-Control Project  Page 2 

 

 
Figure 1. Ivanpah-Control Project Segments and Substations 

 
Segment 2: Inyokern Substation to Kramer 
Junction 
This 48-mile project segment closely follows U.S. 395 
from the existing Inyokern Substation in northeastern 
Kern County, about 6 miles west of the City of Ridge-
crest to the Kramer Substation in western San Bernar-
dino County to the existing Randsburg Substation.  

About 58 percent of the land crossed by the route is 
federal land administered by the BLM, and 41 percent 
is private land. SCE proposes to take the following 
actions in Segment 2: 

 Remove approximately 390 existing double-circuit 
transmission structures and install approximately 

342 double-circuit steel poles with a single circuit 
installed;  

 Remove approximately 48 linear miles of existing 
conductor and install new conductor; 

 Install approximately 48 linear miles of fiber optic 
cable; and 

 Install marker balls on overhead wire where deter-
mined to be appropriate. 

Replacement of Deteriorated Poles in 
Segments 3N and 3S 

These segments of the I-C Project include nearly 400 
existing wood poles along the existing 115 kV line that 
have been identified by SCE as being severely 



FACT SHEET 
Ivanpah-Control Project  Page 3 

 

deteriorated due to age. These poles will be replaced 
during 2019 and 2020, prior to the construction of the 
I-C Project. The immediate replacement of severely 
deteriorated poles is a part of SCE’s ongoing mainte-
nance program and is not part of the I-C Project. The 
I-C Project proposal includes replacement of all poles 
and conductor within the segment, except those poles 
that are being replaced in 2019 and 2020. 

Segment 3N: Kramer Junction–Coolwater 
Substation (East of Barstow) 

This third project segment includes two separate 
routes between the Kramer Substation (located just 
south of the intersection of State Route 58 and U.S. 395 
and the existing Coolwater Substation (located about 9 
miles east of the City of Barstow). Nearly half of these 
route segments are on federal land administered by the 
BLM, and about 45 percent is on private land.  

 

This 44-mile project segment runs just north of Barstow, 
from the existing Kramer Substation in the west to the 
existing Coolwater Substation in the east.  

SCE’s current plan for this segment is remove 47 
existing structures and replace them with 47 wood H-
frame or multipole structures, and to replace the 
existing conductor with ACCC conductor along the 
entire 44-mile length of the segment. 

Segment 3S: Kramer Junction–Tortilla 
Substation (Barstow)–Coolwater Substation 

Segment 3S runs just south of Barstow for 44 miles 
between the existing Kramer, Tortilla, and Coolwater 
Substations.  

SCE’s current plan for this segment is remove 45 
existing structures and replace them with 45 new steel 
or wood structures. In addition, SCE plans to replace 
the existing conductor with ACCC conductor along the 
entire 44-mile length of the segment. 

Segment 4: Coolwater Substation (East of 
Barstow) to Ivanpah Substation 
Segment 4 begins just east of Barstow and ends near the 
Nevada border, at the Ivanpah Substation, adjacent to 
the Ivanpah Solar Electric Generating System. Segment 
4 roughly follows Interstate 15 to the northeast.  

SCE proposes to remove 60 existing structures and 
replace them with 62 new structures, modify 
approximately 83 structures adjacent to the 
replacement structures, and install marker balls where 
appropriate.  

 

Potential Alternatives to the I-C Project 

In the Proponent’s Environmental Assessment (PEA) for 
the I-C Project, SCE analyzed a range of alternatives. The 
following four alternatives were considered by SCE to 
be infeasible:  

 Decommission and Remove all 115 kV facilities 
defined in Segments 1 through 4: eliminated because 
areas would be left with no electric service.  

 Operating Voltage Increase for Segment 2: eliminated 
due to high cost.  

 Energy Storage: eliminated because the reliability 
discrepancies would remain. 

 Derate Only: eliminated because many reliability 
discrepancies would remain. 

The following alternatives were considered feasible by 
SCE in its July 2019 PEA, and will likely be modified in 
the Revised PEA (April 2020):  

 Full-Rebuild Concept: This alternative would be the 
same for Segments 1 and 2 described above, but 
would also include removal and rebuilding of all 
structures in Segments 3N, 3S, and 4. 



FACT SHEET 
Ivanpah-Control Project  Page 4 

 

 Alternative A: Rebuilding of Segments 1, 2, 3N, and 
3S and derating and remediation of Segment 4. 
Remediation would include replacement of selected 
transmission structures, and derating would lower 
the operating amperage.  

 Alternative B: Rebuilding of Segments 1, 2, and 4; 
rebuilding Segment 3N as a double-circuit line; and 
derating and remediation of Segment 3S. 

 Alternative C: Rebuilding of Segments 1 and 2; 
rebuilding Segment 3N as a double-circuit line; and 
derating and remediation of Segments 3S and 4. 

 Alternative D: Rebuilding of Segments 1, 2, and 4; 
rebuilding Segment 3S as a double-circuit line; and 
derating and remediation of Segment 3N. 

 Alternative E: Rebuilding of Segments 1 and 2; 
rebuilding Segment 3S as a double-circuit line; and 
derating and remediation of Segments 3N and 4. 

The CPUC will consider alternatives in the EIR as 
required by CEQA, including alternatives suggested in 
public scoping comments.  

I-C Project Construction 

SCE proposes to build the project within or adjacent to 
existing rights-of-way (ROW) and on existing SCE-owned 
property. SCE will need to acquire new authorizations 
from the BLM and other federal and state landowners, 
and new or modified easements from private land-
owners, to accommodate the reconstructed subtrans-
mission lines in some locations. Key construction 
activities for all segments are as follows:  

 Staging Yards: SCE proposes to use a number of 
staging yards to support its construction activities, 
typically between one and five acres.  

 Work Areas: At each pole site, a work area ranging 
from 1/4 acre to 3/4 acre would be required.  

 Access Roads: SCE would use existing access roads 
(running along the entire transmission line) and spur 
roads (short roads to reach each tower from the 
access road), as well as public roads.  

 Vegetation Removal: During road rehabilitation and 
preparation of staging areas, vegetation will be 
trimmed or removed, as needed. Tree removal would 
be minimized. 

 Helicopter Use: SCE would use helicopters to support 
construction activity.  

 Construction Personnel: SCE anticipates approxi-
mately 200 construction personnel working on a 
given day.  

 

Schedule 

The anticipated schedule for the CEQA process, CPUC 
approval, and I-C Project construction is presented in 
Table 1. 

Table 1. I-C Project Schedule 

Project Activity Approx. Date 

SCE Filed Initial Application at CPUC July 17, 2019 

SCE Files Revised Application at CPUC April 2020 

CPUC Public Scoping Mid-2020 

CPUC Publish Draft EIR Late 2020 

CPUC Publish Final EIR Early 2021 

CPUC Project Approval Mid-2021 

SCE Construction Start April 2022 

Project Operational June 2025 

 

 

For Additional Information on the I-C Project and the CPUC’s CEQA Process:  

https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/Environment/info/aspen/ivanpah-control/ivanpah-control.htm 

Email: Ivanpah-Control@aspeneg.com        Telephone Message Line: (800) 535-2572 
 

https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/Environment/info/aspen/ivanpah-control/ivanpah-control.htm
mailto:Ivanpah-Control@aspeneg.com


The information presented in this fact sheet is for pre-filing and is subject to change when SCE files its application. 

Fact Sheet 
Control-Silver Peak Project 
Inyo and Mono Counties 

 

SCE’s Transmission Line Rating 
Remediation Program 
The CPUC’s General Order 95 (GO95) establishes 
transmission line safety requirements for California’s 
regulated utilities. One of those requirements defines 
minimum clearance distances between powerlines 
(also called conductors) and the ground surface, 
depending on the voltage of electricity each 
powerline delivers. 

SCE has studied its transmission system and has 
determined that certain older parts of the 
transmission system do not comply with this GO95 
requirement. As a result, SCE is proposing to 
implement a Transmission Line Rating Remediation 
(TLRR) Program to correct the clearance problems. 
Conductor clearance can be increased by: 

 Re-tensioning powerline to reduce the sag 
between towers; 

 Installing taller poles to increase the clearance 
between powerlines and the ground; or 

 Replacing individual poles. 

SCE’s goal is to remediate all discrepancies by 2025, 
as required by the North American Electric Reliability 
Corporation (NERC) Mitigation Plan. 

SCE would construct no new substations as part of 
the Program. The Program would not expand 
electrical service to areas not currently served by SCE. 

SCE has identified these clearance problems on 
several of its desert transmission systems, including 
the 55 kV lines that comprise the Control-Silver Peak 
Project (Proposed Project). 

Control-Silver Peak Project 
The subtransmission system included in the Proposed 
Project extends approximately 42 miles from the 
Control Substation in Inyo County near the City of 
Bishop, to the Fish Lake Valley Metering Station in 
Mono County near the California-Nevada border. An 
additional 16-mile section runs from north central 
Inyo County through Chalfant Valley to supply power 
to the Zack Substation in south central Mono County, 
and an additional 2.4-mile section provides power to 
the Deep Spring Substation in northeastern Inyo 
County. 

The Proposed Project includes rebuilding 
approximately 39 miles of the existing 55 kV 
subtransmission system (i.e., replacement of poles 
and conductor), with additional work on smaller 
portions of the remaining 21 miles of the alignment 
(e.g., addition of ground wiring). The major route 
segments are shown in Figure 1 and described below. 

Segment 1 

Segment 1 is 3.35 miles long and begins at the 
Control Substation, located approximately 5 miles 
southwest of Bishop near the intersection of State 
Route 168 (SR-168) and East Bishop Creek Road. 

Southern California Edison (SCE) is proposing to rebuild components of the existing 55 kilovolt (kV) 
subtransmission lines between the Control Substation in Inyo County, and the Fish Lake Valley Metering 
Station in Mono County. SCE is also proposing to rebuild components along the subtransmission tap lines to 
the Zack Substation in Mono County and the Deep Springs Substation in Inyo County. The project is subject to 
review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

As the lead agency under CEQA, the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) will prepare an 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) to meet local and state permitting requirements. As the lead agency under 
the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) will prepare an 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS). 



Control-Silver Peak Project FACT SHEET 
Page 2 

The information presented in this fact sheet is for pre-filing and is subject to change when SCE files its application. 

 

Figure 1. Control-Silver Peak Project Segments 

Segment 1 runs northeast to the point where it 
intersects US Highway 395 (US-395), approximately 
4.5 miles northwest of Bishop near the intersection 
with Ed Powers Road. It is primarily located on land 
administered by the BLM and the Los Angeles 
Department of Power and Water (LADWP) in Inyo 
County. 

In Segment 1, no poles or structures would be 
installed or replaced. However, SCE would install 
overhead optical ground wire (OPGW) and/or fiber 
optic cable at the top of existing structures. SCE also 
would install underground fiber optic cable adjacent 
to and within the Control Substation. Underground 
fiber optic cable would also potentially be installed at 
transmission line crossings. 

Segment 2 

Segment 2 is 1.35 miles long and begins at the 
terminus of Segment 1 at US-395. Segment 2 runs 

northeast to a point where its two parallel circuits 
“merge” southwest of the intersection of Riverside 
Road and Brockman Lane, about 3.5 miles northwest 
of Bishop. Segment 2 is primarily located on land 
administered by LADWP in Inyo County. 

In Segment 2, SCE would replace the existing 49 
single-circuited wood poles with 22 ductile iron (DI) 
and 3 tubular steel poles (TSPs). Heights of the new 
poles would range between 74 and 93 feet. New 
conductors would be installed on the DI poles and 
TSPs. Overhead ground wire (OHGW) or OPGW also 
would be installed along the tops of the replacement 
DI poles and TSPs. The two circuits in this alignment 
would remain on separate poles; however, the use of 
taller DI poles and TSPs would allow for poles to be 
located farther apart, reducing the quantity of 
replacement poles as compared to existing 
conditions. 



Control-Silver Peak Project FACT SHEET 
Page 3 

The information presented in this fact sheet is for pre-filing and is subject to change when SCE files its application. 

Segment 3 

Segment 3 is 37.3 miles long and begins at the 
terminus of Segment 2, and runs to the Fish Lake 
Valley Metering Station, located just west of the 
California-Nevada border, approximately 2 miles east 
of the community of Oasis. Segment 3 spans both 
Inyo and Mono Counties and is primarily located on 
land administered by the USFS, with portions crossing 
land under the jurisdiction of BLM and LADWP, as 
well as private lands. 

In Segment 3, SCE would replace the two existing 
single-circuited 55 kV subtransmission alignments 
with one new double-circuited 55 kV subtransmission 
alignment. This would involve replacing the existing 
1,508 single-circuit wood poles with 550 double-
circuit DI poles, approximately 139 double-circuit 
TSPs, and 8 single-circuit TSP H-frames. Heights of the 
new poles would range between 50 to 106 feet. New 
conductors would be installed on the DI poles and 
TSPs. OHGW or OPGW also would be installed along 
the tops of the replacement DI poles and TSPs. 

Similar to Segment 2, the use of taller DI poles and 
TSPs in Segment 3 would allow for poles to be located 
farther apart, reducing the quantity of replacement 
poles as compared to existing conditions. SCE also 
would install underground fiber optic cable adjacent 
to and within the White Mountain Substation and 
Fish Lake Valley Metering Station. Finally, marker 
balls would be installed on overhead wire where 
required by the Federal Aviation Administration. 

Segment 4 

Segment 4 is approximately 16 miles long and begins 
from a point along Segment 3 near US Highway 6 (US-
6), at the intersection of Riverside Road and Five 
Bridges Road, about 2 miles north of Bishop. Segment 
4 runs north through Inyo and Mono counties to the 
Zack Substation, which is located in Mono County 
between the communities of Benton and Chalfant 
Valley. The alignment itself is located between Fish 
Creek Slough and US-6. Segment 4 is located on land 
administered by the BLM and LADWP. 

In Segment 4, no poles, structures, conductor or cable 
would be installed or replaced. Work in this segment 
would be limited to the lowering of distribution 
circuitry on two existing wood poles and updating 
relay settings at Zack Substation. 

Segment 5 

Segment 5 is 2.4 miles and begins from a point along 
Segment 3 near the intersection of Wyman Creek 
Road and SR-168, in Inyo County. Segment 5 runs 
south to Deep Springs Substation, which is located 
adjacent to Deep Springs College. Segment 5 is 
located on land administered by the BLM as well as 
private lands. 

In Segment 5, SCE would replace eight existing single-
circuited 55 kV subtransmission wood poles with new 
single-circuited DI poles ranging in height between 40 
and 56 feet. Existing distribution conductors and 
appurtenances would be transferred from the 
existing to the new poles. Relay settings at Deep 
Springs Substation would be updated. 

Project Construction 
SCE proposes to build the Proposed Project within 
existing or new rights-of-way (ROW), easements, 
public ROW, and on existing SCE-owned property. 
However, SCE would need to acquire new 
authorizations from the BLM, USFS and possibly other 
federal and state landowners, and new or modified 
easements from private landowners, to 
accommodate the reconstructed subtransmission 
lines in some locations. 

Key construction components for all segments would 
include: 

 Staging Yards: SCE proposes to use a number of 
staging yards near the subtransmission alignment 
to support its construction activities, which would 
be between 1 and 10 acres in size. 

 Work Areas: At each pole site, a work area ranging 
from approximately ¼ acre to ½ acre would be 
required. 



Control-Silver Peak Project FACT SHEET 
Page 4 

The information presented in this fact sheet is for pre-filing and is subject to change when SCE files its application. 

 
 Access Roads: SCE would use existing access roads 

(running along or near the entire transmission line) 
and spur roads (short roads to reach each pole 
structure from the access road), as well as public 
roads where feasible. Existing access roads would 
be improved in some areas to accommodate 
construction vehicles and equipment, particularly 
at stream crossings. New spur roads may be 
constructed. 

 Vegetation Removal: During road rehabilitation 
and preparation of staging areas, vegetation would 
be trimmed or removed, as needed. Tree removals 
would occur in select locations. 

 Helicopter Use: SCE would use helicopters to 
support construction activities where site 
conditions and topography preclude other means 
of access (e.g., worker and materials transport, 
pole removals and installations). 

 Construction Personnel: SCE anticipates 
approximately 100 construction personnel working 
on a given day. 

CPUC Pre-filing Process 
In 2006, the CPUC issued the Executive Director’s 
Statement Establishing Transmission Project Review 
Streamlining Directives. These Directives established 
pre-filing guidelines for applicants to follow if they 
opt to take advantage of the streamlining benefits of 

the Directives. The Directives define actions to be 
taken by the CPUC’s Energy Division staff during the 
process, including ongoing communication with the 
Applicant, identifying potential deficiencies in the 
draft Application, determining the appropriate scope 
of the project, and providing substantive comments 
on the Applicant’s draft Proponent’s Environmental 
Assessment (PEA). 

In addition, the Directives require CPUC staff and the 
Applicant to consult with all relevant agencies to 
address permit requirements, project-related issues, 
and potential roadblocks during the Pre-filing 
Notification period. The CPUC encourages Applicants 
to engage in public outreach during this period. 

SCE has opted to participate in the CPUC’s “pre-filing 
process,” which will provide CPUC staff and its 
consultant team with an opportunity to review a 
preliminary version of its Application. 

Schedule 
The anticipated schedule for the pre-filing process, 
CEQA process, and project construction is presented 
below. 

Project Schedule 

Project Activity Approx. Date 

SCE Submit Draft PEA 
(Pre-filing) 
CPUC Agency Outreach and 
Review of Draft PEA 
(Pre-filing) 

Oct 2019 - Feb 2020 
 
Nov 2019 - Feb 2020 

SCE File Formal Application 
at CPUC 
CPUC Publish Draft EIR 
CPUC Publish Final EIR 
CPUC Project Approval 

Mar 2020 
 
Feb 2021 
Aug 2021 
Dec 2021 

SCE Construction Nov 2022 

Project Operational Aug 2025 
 

For Additional Information on the C-SP Project, the Pre-filing Process, and the CEQA Process 
California Public Utilities Commission Horizon Water and Environment 
Billie Blanchard Jeff Thomas 
Email: billie.blanchard@cpuc.ca.gov Email: jeff@horizonh2o.com 
Telephone: (415) 703-2837 Telephone: (510) 986-4054 

mailto:billie.blanchard@cpuc.ca.gov
mailto:jeff@horizonh2o.com


County of Inyo

Planning Department
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  Inyo County 2019 General Plan Annual Progress Report 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board accept and provide comments on the draft Inyo County 2019 General Plan Annual Progress 
Report (APR), and direct staff to forward the APR with any modifications to the State of California’s Department 
of Housing and Community Development and Governor’s Office of Planning and Research.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Government Code Section 65400 requires that local agencies prepare a General Plan APR.  The purpose of the 
document is to report on the County’s progress in implementing its General Plan. The document is being 
presented to the Board of Supervisors for its review, comment and direction to send it to the California Office of 
Planning and Research (OPR) and the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD). 

As indicated in the draft APR, the General Plan is the County’s constitution and guiding vision, and upkeep and 
maintenance of the General Plan is a continuous process.  The County implements the General Plan’s vision on 
a day-to-day basis with its many planning projects, and strives to include the public in the decision-making 
process.  The County participated in a variety of planning activities in 2019, as identified in the APR.  The County 
continued its project review responsibilities to further the General Plan’s goals, policies, programs, and 
implementation measures. 

2019 Highlights
The year 2019 brought a continuation in the uptick in building applications. The Building and Safety Department 
received and reviewed 509 building permits in 2019. Ninety-seven of these were also reviewed by the Planning 
Department for zoning and General Plan consistency. Among these, 20 were for housing units. Fourteen of the 
twenty were also finaled in 2019 (2 single-family homes, 11 manufactured homes and 1 accessory dwelling unit).

The Planning Commission had another busy year, as well. In 2019, 71 entitlement requests were brought to the 
Planning Commission for approval. This is 10 less than in 2018, but between 2017 and 2019 the number jumped 
from 19 to 81. Some of this increase was due to non-hosted short-term rental permits and conditional use permits 
for cannabis projects.

The Planning Commission and the Board of Supervisors also held workshops and hearings regarding: updates to 
the Cannabis Ordinances, updates to the Short-term Rental Ordinance, Dark Skies and possible lighting 
regulations, and the Olancha Cartago Corridor Study, as well as reviews and comments of Plans and policies 
proposed by other land management agencies operating in Inyo County. 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Planning staff is asking the Board to review the General Plan Annual Report, provide comments and give 
direction to staff to send it to OPR and HCD.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

 Direct changes to the APR.
 Do NOT accept the APR. 
 Return the APR to staff with direction.

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
State of California – OPR and HCD
 
FINANCING:

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2019 General Plan Annual Progress Report
 
APPROVALS:
Cathreen Richards Created/Initiated - 2/24/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/26/2020
Cathreen Richards Final Approval - 2/27/2020



































































County of Inyo

Agricultural Commissioner - Cannabis
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Nathan Reade 
 
SUBJECT:  Request to change ownership for commercial cannabis permit 5A-001 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request board approve a request a change in ownership for commercial cannabis business license number 5A-
001, Lonely Pine, LLC dba Urbn Leaf, contingent on submission and approval of appropriate background 
checks. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Inyo County code section 5.40.130 allows a change in ownership with the approval of your board.  The 
Agricultural Commissioner's Office received a commercial cannabis business permit change request on February 
19, 2020 asking to change ownership information for license 5A-001.  The request (attachment A) includes a 
transfer of ownership from UL Holdings Inc. to CA Sage Holdings.  The request also reassigns ownership from 
51% UL Holdings Inc. and 49% LPC Project. LLC to 50% CA Sage Holdings, LLC and 50% LPC Project, LLC.  
Also included with the request was a letter dated February 10, 2020 from Skip Montsenbocker, CEO of UL 
Holdings Inc. tranferring their holdings to Wayne Alexander Scherer of CA Sage Holdings, LLC (attachment B). 

As stated in the recommended action, this approval would be subject to the background checks being completed 
and approved for any new parties being added to ownership.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
Your board approved this license, located in zone 5A for the retail activity type, on February 11, 2020.  The 
applicant was the only viable applicant for 5A retail since no other applications for this license were complete.  
The owner that is requesting this change intends only to alter the ownership structure, and will run the business 
in accordance with the provisions of the application proposal including all community benefit commitments. 

Since that time, the licensee has submitted a request to change ownership which must be approved or denied by 
your board pursuant to Inyo County code section 5.40.130.  This entity has not yet applied for a conditional use 
permit with Inyo County Planning or a state commercial cannabis license.

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your board could choose to deny this request for ownership change.  This would have unknown consequences 
to the viability of this license.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:

 
FINANCING:

 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. ATTACHMENT A The Lonely Pine LLC - Ownership Change
2. ATTACHMENT B UL Holdings Inc - Letter Assignment to Alex Scherer re Lone Pine (SIGNED)
 
APPROVALS:
Nathan Reade Created/Initiated - 2/24/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 2/26/2020
Nathan Reade Approved - 2/26/2020
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 2/26/2020



1 

COUNTY OF INYO 
 

COUNTY COMMERCIAL CANNABIS PERMITTING OFFICE 
207 WEST SOUTH STREET 
BISHOP, CA 93514 
760.873.7860 

COMMERCIAL CANNABIS BUSINESS PERMIT CHANGE REQUEST

SECTION 1 – TYPE OF PROPOSED CHANGE 

   Modification of Premises (may require CUP review, attach supporting documentation) 

   Change of Ownership (complete attached page 2) 

   Add/Change Medical or Adult-Use Designation (complete section below) 

   Add/Change License Type for Microbusiness (complete section below, may require CUP review) 

   Other Change 

Provide a short description of proposed changes below: 

RETURN  TO: INYO COUNTY COMMERCIAL CANNABIS PERMIT OFFICE 
207 W SOUTH STREET 
BISHOP, CA 93514 

For license type change or addition, indicate desired type below: 

Cultivation (5,000 ft² or less) Testing Laboratory 

Cultivation (greater than 5,000 ft²) Retailer (If checked, do you plan to make deliveries?      Yes /     No)

Manufacturing Level 1 (non-volatile extraction/infusion, etc.) Distributor 

Manufacturing Level 2 (volatile extraction) Microbusiness (check all activities that apply) 
For license designation change, indicate desired type below: 

 Medical            Adult-use 

UL Holdings Inc has assigned its ownership interest in The Lonely Pine LLC to Wayne Alexander 
Scherer.  We are submitting a change in ownership form to reflect the future holdings of The Lonely 
Pine LLC.  



2 
 

PAGE 2 - CHANGE IN BUSINESS OWNERSHIP 

Licensee Information 
Primary Owner Name  Percent Ownership 

 % 
Physical Address City State Zip Code 

    
Mailing Address (if different than physical address) City State Zip Code 

    
Primary Phone Number Secondary Phone Number Email Address 

   
List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 

          YES                     NO 

 

Other Owner Information 
Name 
 

Percent Ownership 
% 

Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 
          YES                     NO 

Name 
 

Percent Ownership 
% 

Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 
          YES                     NO 

Name 
 

Percent Ownership 
% 

Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 
          YES                     NO 

Name 
 

Percent Ownership 
% 

Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 
          YES                     NO 

Name 
 

Percent Ownership 
% 

Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 
          YES                     NO 

Name 
 

Percent Ownership 
% 

Mailing Address City State Zip Code 

List assessor parcel numbers of any real estate owned in Inyo County  Are you delinquent on any property taxes in Inyo County? 
          YES                     NO 

 

CA Sage Holdings LLC - Owned 50% Wayne A Scherer, 50% Pearl Ayon 50

4325 Blackfoot Avenue San Diego CA 92117

858-260-8815 619-607-7927 waynescherer@live.com

LPC Project LLC - Owned 100% by Chetan Abrol 50

7883 SLV Box Victorville CA 92395

026100-02





County of Inyo

County Counsel
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  John Vallejo 
 
SUBJECT:   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) approve Ordinance 1253 titled, "An Ordinance of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
Adding Chapter 7.02 of the Inyo County Code to Regulate the Transfer or Transport of Water from Groundwater 
Basins Located Wholly or Partially Within Inyo County, and Repealing Inyo County Ordinance No. 1004 (Chapter 
18.77 of the Inyo County Code);" and B) approve Resolution No. 2020-10 titled, “A Resolution of the Inyo County 
Board of Supervisors Modifying Resolution 99-43 to Expand the Water Commission's Duties and Authority to 
Include Reviewing and Deciding Upon Applications For A Water Transfer or Transport Permit Pursuant to 
Ordinance 1253," and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Inyo County's current ordinance regulating the export of groundwater pumped from within the County, currently 
located in Chapter 18.77 of the County Code, is being updated to clarify that the exercise of such powers flows 
from the County's general police powers as distinguished from its land use authority.  The substance of the 
regulations in the updated ordinance remain consistent with the existing ordinance, but the process will be 
modified to shift the review and approval of applications for groundwater export from the Planning Commission to 
the Water Commission.      

The companion resolution is needed to modify the current express duties of the Water Commission and Water 
Department set forth in Resolution 99-43 in a manner consistent with adoption of the ordinance. 

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could decide not to adopt this ordinance, which may cause confusion with those desiring to 
implement a groundwater export project from within Inyo County regarding the authority under which we regulate 
such activities.

Your Board could decide not to adopt  the companion resolution which, if the ordinance is adopted, would create 
a conflict between the ordinance and Resolution 99-43.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:
There are no direct costs associated with adopting this ordinance. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance 1253
2. Resolution No. 2020-10
3. Resolution No. 2020-10 Exhibit A
 
APPROVALS:
John Vallejo Created/Initiated - 3/11/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/11/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/11/2020
John Vallejo Final Approval - 3/11/2020



1

ORDINANCE 1253

AN ORDINANCE
OF THE INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ADDING CHAPTER

7.02 OF THE INYO COUNTY CODE TO REGULATE THE TRANSFER OR TRANSPORT OF 
WATER FROM GROUNDWATER BASINS LOCATED WHOLLY OR PARTIALLY 

WITHIN INYO COUNTY, AND REPEALING INYO COUNTY ORDINANCE NO. 1004 
(CHAPTER 18.77 OF THE INYO COUNTY CODE)

WHEREAS   on October 27, 1998, Ordinance 1004 (Chapter 18.77 of the Inyo County Code)
became effective. The purpose of Ordinance 1004 was to regulate the Transfer or Transport 
of water from groundwater basins located wholly or partially within Inyo County.

WHEREAS, Ordinance 1004 added Chapter 18.77 to the Inyo County Code which is located 
within Inyo County’s zoning regulation Code Title.

WHEREAS, subsequent to the effective date of Ordinance 1004, California law was clarified 
to confirm that counties have the power to regulate the Transfer or Transport of 
groundwater under the county’s general police power, separate and independent from a 
county’s zoning regulatory authority.

WHEREAS, by this Ordinance, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors intend to update and 
continue the regulation of the Transfer or Transport of water from groundwater basins 
located wholly or partially within Inyo County, and to make clear that it regulates such 
Transfers or Transport under the County’s general police power separate and independent 
of the County’s zoning regulatory powers. 

The Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo ordains as follows:

SECTION 1.
Chapter 7.02 of the Inyo County Code is added to read as follows: 

“7.02   Regulation of Water Transfers Undertaken Pursuant to Water Code 
Section 1810, Sales of Surface Water or Groundwater to the City of Los Angeles, 
and the Transfer or Transport of Water From Groundwater Basins Located in 
Whole or in Part within the Boundaries of Inyo County.

7.02.00 Definition of Terms Used in this Chapter

A. “Beneficially Interested Party” means a party whose interest in the 
outcome of the proceedings is substantial, i.e., not a technical, abstract 
or moot right. Such a party must show that his legal rights are 



2

injuriously affected by the action being challenged.
B. “Extraction” means the process of withdrawing groundwater by 

pumping or other controlled means.
C. "Groundwater" means all water below the surface of the earth within 

the zone below the water table, in which the soil is completely 
saturated with water, excluding subsurface water that flows in known 
and definite channels.

D. "Groundwater Basin" means a groundwater reservoir, defined on the 
basis of geological and hydrological conditions.

E. "Groundwater Basin Located in Whole or in Part within Inyo County" 
means the following groundwater basins identified in California 
Department of Water Resources Bulletin 118-80 "Ground Water Basins 
in California" as may be updated or revised in the future:

Name of Basin Number of Basin
 

Owens Valley 6-12
Black Springs Valley 6-13
Fish Lake Valley 6-14
Deep Springs Valley 6-15
Eureka Valley 6-16
Saline Valley 6-17
Death Valley 6-18
Wingate Valley 6-19
Middle Amargosa Valley 6-20
Pahrump Valley 6-28

 Mesquite Valley 6-29
Searles Valley 6-52
Indian Wells Valley 6-54
Coso Valley 6-55
Rose Valley 6-56
Darwin Valley 6-57 
Panamint Valley 6-58 
Fish Slough Valley 6-60 
Cameo Area 6-61
Race Track Valley 6-62
Hidden Valley 6-63
Marble Canyon Area 6-64
Cottonwood Spring Area 6-65
Lee Flat 6-66
Santa Rosa Flat 6-68



3

Cactus Flat 6-70
Coles Flat 6-72
Wild Horse Mesa Area 6-73
Harrisburg Flats 6-74
Wildrose Canyon 6-75
California Valley 6-79
Middle Park Canyon Valley 6-80
Butte Valley 6-81
Spring Canyon Valley 6-82
Furnace Creek Area 6-83 
Greenwater Valley 6-84
Gold Valley 6.85
Rhodes Hill Area 6-86

 

F. “Preexisting Use” means any water Transfer or Transport lawfully 
occurring, at the time of the effective date of Ordinance 1004. Any 
water Transfer or Transport lawfully existing, at the time of the effective 
date of Ordinance 1004 (October 27, 1998) may continue except as 
otherwise provided herein. 

G. "Overdraft” means the withdrawal of groundwater from a groundwater 
basin in an amount in excess of the amount of water that recharges the 
basin over a period of years during which water supply conditions 
approximate average, and which, if continued over time, could 
eventually cause the groundwater supply to be exhausted, cause 
subsidence, cause the water table to drop to a level below where 
groundwater pumping is no longer economically feasible, or cause a 
detrimental change in water quality.

H. "Person" means any natural person, and any corporation, partnership, 
association, public entity, municipality and any other entity with legal 
existence under California law.

I. “Public Trust Resources” means resources protected under the public 
trust doctrine.

J. "Recharge" means flow of water to groundwater storage from 
precipitation, infiltration from streams, irrigation, spreading basins, and 
other sources.

K. "Surface Water" means water in lakes, streams, ponds, rivers or 
reservoirs except water that was originally groundwater extracted from 
within Inyo County by a person other than LADWP.       

L. “Water Commission” means the Inyo County Water Commission.
M. “Water Department” means the Inyo County Water Department.



4

N. "Water Table" means the surface or interface between the zone where 
the soil is completely saturated with water and the zone where the soil 
is not completely saturated with water.

O. "Water Transfer or Transport" means the conveyance of water via 
aqueduct, ditch, pipeline, flume, natural water course or tanker truck 
from one area to another: (1) pursuant to Water Code Section 1810 et 
seq., or {2) pursuant to a sale to the City of Los Angeles, or an
acquisition by the City of Los Angeles by means other than a sale, of 
surface water or groundwater extracted or diverted from within Inyo 
County, or (3) that involves movement of groundwater extracted from a 
groundwater basin located in whole or in part within the boundaries of 
Inyo County for use in an area outside of the groundwater basin, (4) a 
release of water directly from the Los Angeles Aqueduct for use in area 
outside the boundaries of Inyo County which is exchanged or otherwise 
replaced with water whose origin is outside of Inyo County but which 
results in groundwater being extracted from within Inyo County for 
Water Transfer or Water Transport, and/or groundwater extracted from 
within Inyo County to replace a surface water use within Inyo County, 
thus allowing the replaced surface water to be Transferred or 
Transported, or (5) that involves movement of groundwater extracted 
from within Inyo County from a groundwater basin partially located 
within Inyo County for use in an area within the same basin, but outside 
the boundaries of Inyo County.

7.02.05         Declarations and Findings
A. Importance of Water.  Adequate supplies of water are vital to the 

economy and environment of Inyo County and the health, safety and 
welfare of its citizens.

B. Water Exports. Since 1913, the City of Los Angeles, with significant 
environmental, economic and social consequences, has exported 
substantial amounts of surface water and groundwater from Inyo 
County.

C. Water Code Section 1810 Transfers. It is the policy of the State of 
California to facilitate the voluntary transfer of water and water rights 
where consistent with the public welfare of the place of export and the 
place of import.  Under California Water Code  (hereafter “Water 
Code”) Section 1810 et seq., neither the state, nor any regional or local 
public agency may deny a bona fide transferor of water, as defined, the 
use of a water conveyance facility which has unused capacity, as 
defined, for the period of time for which that capacity is available, if fair 
compensation, as specified, is paid for that use, subject to conditions 



5

specified in Water Code Section 1810 (a), (b), (c), and (d). Water Code 
Section 1810(d) provides that such a Transfer of water may be denied if 
the use of a water conveyance facility will injure any legal user of water, 
or will unreasonably affect fish, wildlife, or other instream beneficial 
uses or will unreasonably affect the overall economy or the 
environment of the county from which the water is being Transferred. 
Transfers of water from Inyo County undertaken pursuant to Water 
Code Section 1810 et seq., have the potential to affect the overall 
economy and/or the environment of Inyo County.

D.   Proposed Water Transfers. In addition to water exports by Los Angeles,
proposals have been made involving the export of groundwater from 
Inyo County via the Los Angeles Aqueduct under California Water Code 
(hereafter “Water Code”) Section 1810, the sale of groundwater 
extracted from Inyo County to the City of Los Angeles, the extraction 
and export of groundwater from a groundwater basin located in whole 
or in part in Inyo County, a release of water directly from the Los 
Angeles Aqueduct for use in area outside the boundaries of Inyo County 
which is exchanged or otherwise replaced with water whose origin is 
outside of Inyo County but which results in groundwater being 
extracted from within Inyo County for Water Transfer or Water 
Transport, and/or groundwater extracted from within Inyo County to 
replace a surface water use within Inyo County, thus allowing the 
replaced surface water to be Transferred or Transported, and the 
Transfer or Transport of groundwater extracted from within Inyo 
County from a groundwater basin located in part in Inyo County for use 
in an area within the same basin, but outside the boundaries of Inyo 
County.

E. Importance of Groundwater. Groundwater underlying Inyo County has 
been and will continue to be an important source of water for 
agricultural, domestic, municipal, environmental and other purposes.

F. Inyo County/Los Angeles Water Agreement  In 1997, an agreement 
between the County of Inyo and the City of Los Angeles, which provides 
for management of the City of Los Angeles' water gathering activities 
(including groundwater extraction and surface water diversion) within 
Inyo County, was entered as a final order in Inyo County Superior Court, 
Case Number 12908. (Hereinafter, "Inyo/Los Angeles Water 
Agreement”)  The Inyo/Los Angeles Water Agreement provides for 
cooperative management of Los Angeles' water gathering activities by 
the County of Inyo and the City of Los Angeles in a manner that 
protects the environment of Inyo County.

G. Water Sales to Los Angeles. In January 1998, the City of Los Angeles and 
the County of Inyo (through the Inyo County/Los Angeles Standing 



6

Committee) agreed that "[T] he City of Los Angeles will not enter into 
any agreement to purchase or otherwise acquire water extracted or 
diverted from within Inyo County unless it has been first informed by 
the County that the County and the seller have entered into an 
agreement which provides for the management of the extraction or 
diversion of the water in a manner that insures the protection of the 
County's environment and economy. If after such notification, the City 
of Los Angeles enters into an agreement with the seller to purchase 
water, the purchase agreement will specifically require, as a continuing 
condition of the purchase of any water, that the seller be in full 
compliance with the provisions of the agreement with the County."

H. Groundwater Transfers. A Transfer or Transport of groundwater from a 
groundwater basin located in whole or in part within Inyo County to an 
area outside of the groundwater basin, a release of water directly from 
the Los Angeles Aqueduct for use in area outside the boundaries of Inyo 
County which is exchanged or otherwise replaced with water whose 
origin is outside of Inyo County but which results in groundwater being 
extracted from within Inyo County for Water Transfer or Water 
Transport, and/or groundwater extracted from within Inyo County to 
replace a surface water use within Inyo County, thus allowing the 
replaced surface water to be Transferred or Transported, and a 
Transfer or Transport of groundwater extracted from within Inyo 
County from a groundwater basin located partially within Inyo County 
for use in an area within the same basin, but outside the boundaries of 
Inyo County, have the potential to adversely affect the economy and 
environment of Inyo County.

I. Authority to Regulate. Existing law provides the County of Inyo with 
authority to protect the health, safety and welfare of its citizens and to 
protect public trust resources through the regulation of the extraction 
of groundwater from groundwater basins within Inyo County.

J. Need for Regulation. It is essential for the protection of the health, 
safety and welfare of the citizens of Inyo County, and the public benefit 
of the state, that a Transfer of water undertaken pursuant to Water 
Code 1810, a sale of surface or groundwater to the City of Los Angeles, 
a Transfer or Transport of groundwater extracted and exported from a 
groundwater basin located in whole or in part within the boundaries of 
Inyo County, a release of water directly from the Los Angeles Aqueduct 
for use in area outside the boundaries of Inyo County which is 
exchanged or otherwise replaced with water whose origin is outside of 
Inyo County but which results in groundwater being extracted from 
within Inyo County for Water Transfer or Water Transport, and/or 
groundwater extracted from within Inyo County to replace a surface 
water use within Inyo County, thus allowing the replaced surface water 



7

to be Transferred or Transported, and a Transfer or Transport of 
groundwater extracted from within Inyo County from a groundwater 
basin partially located within Inyo County, for use in an area within the 
same basin, but outside the boundaries of Inyo County be regulated in 
a manner that provides for the protection of the overall environment 
and economy of Inyo County.

7.02.10 Purpose and Intent
It is the purpose and intent of this chapter to establish an effective policy that will 
assure that the overall economy and the environment of Inyo County are protected 
from the impacts of:
(1) a water Transfer from the unincorporated area of Inyo County 

undertaken pursuant to Water Code Section 1810 et seq.; 
(2)     a sale to the City of Los Angeles, or an acquisition by the City of Los 

Angeles by means other than a sale, of surface water or groundwater 
extracted or 
diverted from within Inyo County;

(3) a Transfer or Transport of groundwater extracted from a groundwater 
basin located in whole or in part within the boundaries of Inyo County, 
for use in an area outside of the groundwater basin; 

(4) a release of water directly from the Los Angeles Aqueduct for use in 
area outside the boundaries of Inyo County which is exchanged or 
otherwise replaced with water whose origin is outside of Inyo County 
but which results in groundwater being extracted from within Inyo 
County for Water Transfer or Water Transport, and/or groundwater 
extracted from within Inyo County to replace a surface water use within 
Inyo County, thus allowing the replaced surface water to be Transferred 
or Transported; and,

(5) a Transfer or Transport of groundwater extracted from within Inyo 
County from a groundwater basin partially located within Inyo County, 
for use in an area within the same basin, but outside the boundaries of 
Inyo County.

7.02.15 Scope
A.       Actions Subject to this Chapter. Any person who proposes a Transfer or Transport of 
water described below shall be subject to the provisions of this chapter:

1. A water Transfer from the unincorporated area of Inyo County 
undertaken pursuant to Water Code Section 1810 et seq.

2. As set forth in an agreement described in Section 7.02.05 G., a sale to 
the

 City of Los Angeles or an acquisition by the City of Los Angeles by 
means other than a sale, of surface water or groundwater extracted or 



8

diverted from within Inyo County.
3. A Transfer or Transport of groundwater extracted from a groundwater 

basin located in whole or in part within the boundaries of Inyo County, 
for use in an area outside of the groundwater basin.

4.   A Transfer or Transport of groundwater extracted from within Inyo 
County from a groundwater basin partially located within Inyo County, 
for use in an area within the same basin, but outside the boundaries of 
Inyo County.

5. A release of water directly from the Los Angeles Aqueduct for use in 
area outside the boundaries of Inyo County which is exchanged or 
otherwise replaced with water whose origin is outside of Inyo County 
but which results in groundwater being extracted from within Inyo 
County for Water Transfer or Water Transport, and/or groundwater 
extracted from within Inyo County to replace a surface water use within 
Inyo County, thus allowing the replaced surface water to be Transferred 
or Transported.

B. Exemptions. A transfer or transport of water as described below shall be exempt 
from the application of this chapter (Chapter 7.02):

1. A transfer or transport of water by the City of Los Angeles from Inyo 
County,
and an extraction of groundwater or a diversion of surface water from 
within Inyo County by the City of Los Angeles, that is not a purchase or 
acquisition of water subject to the agreement described in Section 
7.02.05 G and that is not a release of water directly from the Los 
Angeles Aqueduct for use in area outside the boundaries of Inyo County 
which is exchanged or otherwise replaced with water whose origin is 
outside of Inyo County but which results in groundwater being 
extracted from within Inyo County for Water Transfer or Water 
Transport, and/or groundwater extracted from within Inyo County to 
replace a surface water use within Inyo County, thus allowing the 
replaced surface water to be Transferred or Transported. 

2.  A Transfer or Transport of water during a period of emergency within 
Inyo County declared pursuant to California Government Code Section 
8558 that is directly related to the reason or basis for the declaration of 
the emergency, and that is undertaken in order to prevent or mitigate 
injury to people, or the flooding or damaging of property within Inyo 
County. 

3.   A transfer or transport of water in the form of manufactured or 
processed goods or products, agricultural products, or in bottles or any 
other portable containers including tanker trucks, provided the total 
transfer or transport via tanker truck or trucks does not exceed one 
acre foot during a one year period. 



9

4.      A transfer or transport of water extracted or diverted from outside of the 
boundaries of Inyo County.

C. Preexisting Uses. A preexisting use, as defined in Section 7.02.00.E of this ordinance, 
may continue if the Transfer or Transport meets all of the following criteria:
1.   The Transfer or Transport is substantially similar to a Transfer or 

Transport that occurred during the one year period immediately prior 
to October 27, 1998, the effective date of Ordinance No. 1004, the 
predecessor to this ordinance, which is repealed by this ordinance;

2.   The Transfer or Transport is accomplished by means of substantially the 
same conveyance facility as was used during the one year period 
immediately prior to October 27, 1998, the effective date of Ordinance 
No. 1004, the predecessor to this ordinance, which is repealed by this 
ordinance;

3.   The Transfer or Transport is from substantially the same geographical 
area of the groundwater basin as during the one year period 
immediately prior to October 27, 1998, the effective date of Ordinance 
No. 1004, the predecessor to this ordinance, which is repealed by this 
ordinance;

4.   The Transfer or Transport does not exceed either the highest
instantaneous rate, or the highest annual total quantity, of water that 
was Transferred or Transported within the -twenty year period 
immediately prior to October 27, 1998, the effective date of Ordinance 
No. 1004, the predecessor to this ordinance, which is repealed by this 
ordinance;

5.   The Transfer or Transport will result in the use of the Transferred or 
Transported water in substantially the same manner and in 
substantially the same area as it was used during the one-year period 
immediately prior to October 27, 1989, the effective date of Ordinance 
No. 1004, the predecessor to this ordinance, which is repealed by this 
ordinance;

6. A Transfer or Transport of water which does not meet all of the criteria 
described above (including a water Transfer or Transport which once 
met, but no longer meets all of the criteria) shall not be considered a 
preexisting use and shall be subject to the provisions of this chapter.

  7.02.20         Water Transfer or Transport Permit Requirement
Any person who proposes a Transfer or Transport of water described in Section 7.02.15 
shall, prior to the commencement of the water Transfer or Transport, first apply for and 
obtain from the Water Commission a water Transfer or Transport permit.

7.02.25 Water Transfer or Transport Permit Procedure



10

Any water Transfer or Transport which is specified in this chapter shall be approved or 
disapproved only upon filing an application in proper form and in accordance with the 
procedure hereinafter set forth.

7.02.30 Water Transfers and Transport—Action by the Water Commission
The Water Commission shall receive, hear and decide every application for a water 
Transfer or Transport permit and, after a hearing, may authorize approval of the permit 
if it finds that the issuance of the permit would be in conformance with the provisions of 
this chapter. Notice of the hearing shall be given pursuant to the requirements for 
hearings set forth in this chapter.

7.02.35 Term of Permit
Each applicant for water Transfer or Transport permit pursuant to this chapter shall 
specify in the application the duration of term of the permit requested. The Water 
Commission, in consideration of the relationship of the term of the permit to the 
potential for the water Transfer to unreasonably affect the overall economy or 
environment of Inyo County, shall determine the term of the permit. The approval of the 
permit may be made contingent upon the written acceptance and continued observance 
of conditions specified by the Water Commission. Once a water Transfer or Transport 
permit is approved, all of the conditions specified in the approval shall become 
operative, and the violation of any of them shall constitute a violation of this chapter.

7.02.40 Lapse of Approval of Permit and Permit Extensions
Unless a different period of time is specified among the conditions of approval, the 
approval of a water Transfer or Transport permit shall lapse and be void unless the 
approved water Transfer or Transport is commenced or construction necessary and 
incident to its commencement is started within one year of the date of its approval. The 
Water Commission may, following a hearing, extend the life of any water Transfer or 
Transport permit for additional one-year periods upon application filed prior to 
expiration of the permit.

7.02.45 Applications
The Director of the Inyo County Water Department shall establish the form of 
applications and of appeal forms required by this chapter, and may specify the data to 
be furnished along with an application or appeal form to assure the proper consideration 
of the matter involved and for the permanent record. An application for a water Transfer 
or Transport permit shall be made on the form provided by the Water Department.  
Every application for a water Transfer or Transport permit shall be submitted to the 
Water Department.



11

7.02.50 Applications—Verification
Every application for a water Transfer or Transport permit shall include verification by 
the applicant attesting to the truth and correctness of all the facts and information 
presented in the application.

7.02.55 Applications—Fees 
No application shall be accepted, and no water Transfer or Transport permit shall be 
granted, unless the applicant is in full compliance with all requirements of this title and 
all applicable fees established by the Board are paid to the County.  Every such fee or 
expense payment shall be deposited with the county treasurer.

A. Amount of Application Deposit Fee. An application deposit fee shall be 
established by the Board.  The application deposit fee shall be based upon the 
estimated cost to the County of processing the application. 

B. Fee Agreement. Each applicant shall enter into an agreement with the County 
wherein the applicant agrees to promptly pay any costs to be incurred by the 
County in processing the application that are in excess of the Application 
Deposit Fee and wherein the County agrees to promptly refund any fee 
collected by the County from the applicant which is in excess of the cost to the 
County of processing the application. The Fee Agreement shall also provide 
that the applicant or a successor shall pay the County for the costs incurred by 
the County in conducting any monitoring, groundwater management or 
reporting described in Section 27 and for any costs incurred by the County in 
reviewing the results of such monitoring, management and/or reporting.

C. Penalty. The fees set forth above shall be doubled as a penalty with 
respect to any application filed in order to bring an existing illegal use or 
activity into conformance with this chapter. 

7.02.60 Applications--Waiver of Fee Requirement
The requirement of a fee to accompany an application or an appeal may be waived by the 
Board of Supervisors when an application or appeal is filed by a public agency, a city, the 
state, or the federal government.

7.02.65 Applications—Effect of Denial
No application for a water Transfer or Transport permit which is substantially the same as an 
application that has been denied may  be submitted within one year from the date of the 
final order of denial, except if the Water Department reports to the Water Commission that 
the applicant has submitted new evidence or proof of changed conditions which justify the 
submission of a new application.    

7.02.70 Hearings—Generally



12

Upon receipt in proper form of any application filed pursuant to this chapter, the date for 
the public hearing on the application shall be set by the Water Department. Notice shall be 
given to the time and place of such public hearing by at least one publication in a newspaper 
of general circulation in the county. The applicant, and the appellant, in the case of appeal, 
shall be notified in writing of the time and place of the hearing. 

7.02.75 Hearings—Mailed Notice
Following the submittal of an application for water Transfer or Transport permit, the Water 
Department shall determine the area likely to be impacted by the extraction of groundwater 
that would be permitted. Once this determination has been made by the Water 
Department, prior to the  public hearing on the application, the Water Department shall mail 
notice of the public hearing to  the owners of all properties as shown on the last adopted tax 
roll of the county which are located within the area of  impact as determined by the Water 
Department. Notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given not less than ten days 
prior to the date thereof and further notice shall be as provided by law.

7.02.80 Hearings—Failure to Notify
Any failure to give notice as required by this title or any irregularity in connection therewith 
or in any procedure required by this title shall not invalidate the proceedings if there has 
been compliance with the minimum notice requirements of California state law.

7.02.85  Hearings—Continuance
At any public hearing held pursuant to this chapter, the Water Commission may order the 
hearing to be continued by publicly announcing the time and place of continuance, and no 
further notice thereof shall be required.

7.02.90 Appeals—Generally
An appeal may be taken to the Water Commission as a result of a decision by the Water 
Department, or to the county Board of Supervisors as a result of a decision by the Water 
Commission on an application for a water Transfer or Transport permit. Such an appeal must 
be filed within fifteen calendar days after the date of action by either the Water Department 
or the Water Commission. The appeal may be taken by any person beneficially interested, or 
by any public officer, board or agency affected, by filing with the Board Clerk a written 
notice specifying the grounds for the appeal. Any member of the county supervisors may 
within the same period call for a review of any such action by notice to the Board Clerk and 
such notice shall have the same effect as an appeal, but shall require no fee. Filing of an 
appeal shall stay all proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed.

7.02.95 Appeals—Transmittal of Record
Upon notice by the Board Clerk that an appeal has been filed, the Water Commission shall 
make available for the Board of Supervisors all documents constituting the record upon 
which the action appealed was taken. The Water Commission shall be represented by the 
Water Department at the hearing before the Board of Supervisors on the appeal, in order to 
make known the reasons for its decision.



13

7.02.100 Appeals—Notice of Hearing
The Water Commission or Board of Supervisors shall give notice of the time and place at 
which the hearing will be held on any appeal filed pursuant to this chapter to the applicant, 
to the appellant, to the Water Commission and to any other person requesting such notice 
and depositing with the Board Clerk a self-addressed, stamped envelope for that purpose, in 
addition to the requirements of state law.

7.02.105 Appeals—Action of the Water Commission or Board of Supervisors
The Water Commission or Board of Supervisors, at the conclusion of the hearing on any 
appeal filed pursuant to this chapter, may sustain, modify or overrule the action of the 
director of the Water Department or of the Water Commission in the matter, or may refer 
any such matter back to the director of the Water Department or to the Water Commission. 
The final order of the Board of Supervisors or Water Commission on any such appeal shall be 
effective forthwith.

7.02.110 Duties of Water Commission
It is the duty of the Water Commission to assure the proper administration of this chapter, 
and the Water Commission shall have the power to establish such policies, rules and 
regulations not in conflict with the state law as are necessary for that purpose.” Additionally, 
the Water Commission shall serve, as required by Section 15.12.040 of the Inyo County 
Code, as the environmental review board and lead environmental agency for the purpose of 
the California Environmental Quality Act on any application for a Transfer or Transport of 
water.

7.02.115 Enforcement
Upon receipt of a written complaint, or based upon monitoring results or other information, 
the director of the Water Department shall process violations of this chapter as specified in 
Title 22. (Code Enforcement).

7.02.120 Required Findings
A. Findings. A permit for a Transfer or Transport of water shall be approved only if the 

Water Commission, in consideration of the recommendations submitted by the 
Water Department, finds that the proposed water Transfer or Transport to be 
undertaken (subject to proposed conditions to be placed upon the Transfer or 
Transport) will not unreasonably affect the overall economy of Inyo County and will 
not unreasonably affect the environment of Inyo County.

B. Adverse Effect on the Economy or Environment.  A proposed water Transfer or 
Transport shall be found by the Water Commission to unreasonably affect the overall 
economy of Inyo County or to unreasonably affect the environment of Inyo County if 
the commission finds that the proposed water Transfer or Transport including all 
proposed conditions and mitigation measures, will cause a significant adverse effect 



14

or effects on the overall economy or the environment of the county. A determination 
of whether or not the proposed water Transfer will have a significant adverse effect, 
or whether a mitigation measure or measures will reduce such a significant effect to 
a less than a significant level, shall be made by reference to the analytical model of 
the California Environmental Quality Act (California Public Resources Code Section 
21,000 et seq.), its guidelines and relevant case law.

C. Economy. In determining whether a proposed water Transfer or Transport will 
unreasonably affect the overall economy of Inyo County, all relevant factors shall be 
considered, including, but not limited to, potential injuries to legal users of water in 
the groundwater basin and the county, direct or indirect economic impacts to 
suppliers, service providers and others in the county, impacts to the tax base of the 
county, and the cumulative effects of the proposed water Transfer when considered 
together with the effects of past water Transfers and Transports, past surface and 
groundwater exports, proposed economic mitigation measures, as well as the effects 
of approved or anticipated future water Transfers, Transports and exports, on the 
county’s overall economy.

D. Environment. In determining whether a proposed water Transfer will unreasonably 
affect the environment of Inyo County, all relevant factors shall be considered, 
including, but not limited to, effects on fish, wildlife, and other instream uses, effects 
on water levels in wells, effects on springs and seeps, effects on riparian and 
groundwater dependent vegetation, effects on rare or endangered plant or animal 
species, effects on surface water features, effects on public trust resources, recharge 
to the groundwater basin, effects on the groundwater storage capacity of the basin, 
potential for overdraft, potential for subsidence, effects on water quality, the 
capability of the proposed monitoring, groundwater management and/or reporting 
program to detect and avoid significant adverse impacts and the cumulative effects 
of the proposed water Transfer within the effected groundwater basin, when 
considered together with the effects of past water Transfers, past Transfers. 
Transports and water exports, as well as approved and anticipated future water 
Transfers, Transports and water exports from the affected groundwater basin, on the 
environment.

E. Consistency with Groundwater Management Plan Adopted Pursuant to the  
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act, Water Code section 10720, et seq. 
(SGMA). The Water Commission shall not approve a water Transfer or Transport 
permit that involves groundwater pumping that is regulated pursuant to a 
groundwater management plan adopted under to SGMA unless the Water 
Commission finds that the groundwater pumping will be conducted consistent with 
the groundwater management plan.

F. Evidence. Each finding required to be made by the Water Commission pursuant to 
this chapter shall be based upon substantial evidence and shall contain a description 
of the evidence that supports the finding.



15

7.02.125 Monitoring, Groundwater Management and Reporting
The Water Commission, in consideration of the relevant recommendations submitted by 
the Water Department, shall approve and incorporate, as appropriate, a monitoring, 
groundwater management and/or reporting program into each water Transfer or 
Transport permit it approves. The monitoring, groundwater management and/or 
reporting program shall be of such scope and extent as the Water Commission finds to be 
necessary to ensure that the proposed water Transfer or Transport will not unreasonably 
affect the overall economy or the environment of the county. In determining the scope of 
a monitoring, groundwater management and/or reporting program, the ability of the 
proposed program to detect and avoid potential significant adverse effects before such 
effects occur shall be considered. The monitoring and/or reporting portion of the 
program shall be in compliance with Chapter 15.44 of this Code. The groundwater 
management and/or reporting program may include, but shall not be limited to, instream 
flow measurements, reports of the amounts of surface water diverted arid/or amounts of 
groundwater pumped, monitoring of wells, monitoring of groundwater levels, monitoring 
of spring and seeps, monitoring of vegetation, wildlife, fish and economic effects and 
thresholds and/or trigger points which, if reached, will control the extraction of 
groundwater.

7.02.130 Modifications and Revocation
A. Modification by Request. Any person who has been granted a water Transfer 

or Transport permit pursuant to this chapter may submit an application for a 
modification of the permit.  Any such application shall be submitted and 
processed as provided in the same manner as an application for a water 
Transfer or Transport permit.

B. Modification for Cause. In the event that evidence obtained through the 
monitoring and/or reporting program, or other evidence, indicates that a water 
Transfer or Transport subject to an approved permit has unreasonably 
affected, or has the potential to unreasonably affect, the overall economy or 
the environment of the county, or that there has been a failure to comply with 
the provisions of the permit, the water commission shall conduct a noticed 
public hearing into the matter. If at the conclusion of the hearing, the Water 
Commission finds that an existing water Transfer or Transport, if continued, 
would cause an unreasonable effect on the overall economy or the 
environment of the county, the commission shall modify the provisions of the 
permit to the extent that it finds to be necessary to avoid the occurrence of 
such an effect.  If the commission finds that a water Transfer or Transport 
subject to an approved permit has unreasonably affected the overall economy 
or the environment of the county, the commission shall order the 
implementation of such mitigation measures as it finds to be necessary to 
reduce the level of the effect to less than significant; in addition, the 
commission may modify the permit to the extent that it finds to be necessary 



16

to avoid the occurrence of such unreasonable effects in the future.
C. Revocation. At the conclusion of the public hearing described in subsection B 

above, the Water Commission may revoke a permit granted pursuant to this 
chapter or issued pursuant to Ordinance 1004 if it finds that the water Transfer 
cannot be continued without causing an unreasonable effect on the overall 
economy or environment of Inyo County, or if the Water Commission finds that 
there has been a failure to reasonably comply with the terms of the permit.  In 
the event that the Water Commission revokes a permit, the commission may 
order the former permittee to implement such work as the commission finds is 
necessary to mitigate any significant adverse effects caused by the water 
Transfer or Transport undertaken by the former permittee.

7.02.135 Challenge to Water Transfers and Transport
A. Existing Water Transfer or Transport Permit. Any beneficially interested party may, 

upon payment of any required fee, challenge the ongoing Transfer or Transport of 
water that is subject to an approved water Transfer or Transport permit during the 
term of the permit based on allegations that one or more of the following 
circumstances exists:
1. there has been or is an ongoing violation of one or more conditions of an 

approved permit; or
2. the Transfer or Transport of water pursuant subject to the permit has 

unreasonably affected the overall economy or the environment of the 
county.

B. No Existing Water Transfer or Transport Permit.  In addition to the County’s own 
enforcement rights (see 7.02.115), any beneficially interested party may challenge a 
Transfer or Transport of water that is not being undertaken pursuant to an approved 
water Transfer or Transport permit based upon an allegation that a water Transfer or 
Transport permit is required pursuant to this chapter.

C. Process. A challenge pursuant to this section shall be commenced by filing with the
Water Commission a signed written statement setting forth the challenge on a form
prescribed by the Water Department, setting forth the basis of the party’s beneficial 
interest and the statement shall be accompanied by the required fee. The statement 
shall allege all circumstances pertinent to the information required in subsections A 
or B above, and shall generally describe facts in support of those alleged 
circumstances. Within 10 days of receipt of a challenge in compliance with the 
foregoing requirements, the Water Department shall give notice of the challenge to 
the person undertaking the Transfer or Transport of water, the challenging party, all 
affected agencies and any interested party that has requested such notice. Within a 
reasonable time after of the receipt of the challenge, the Water Department shall 
complete a review of the facts alleged in the challenge and based upon this review, 
shall make a determination whether sufficient evidence has been presented to 
warrant a hearing by the commission on the challenge. A notice of this 



17

determination, together with the date and time of public hearing by the commission 
on the challenge, if applicable, shall be provided to the person undertaking the 
Transfer or Transport of water, the challenging party, all affected agencies and any 
interested party that has requested such notice. Any public hearing on the challenge 
shall be conducted as provided in this chapter.

1. If the challenge pertains to a Transfer or Transport of water 
undertaken pursuant to a water Transfer or Transport 
permit, the Water Commission's review shall be as set forth 
in Section 7.02.135.

2. If the challenge pertains to a Transfer or Transport of water 
that is not undertaken pursuant to a permit approved as 
provided in this chapter, the Water Commission shall 
determine whether such a permit is required. If the 
commission finds that the Transfer or Transport permit is 
required, and/or previously required a water Transfer or 
Transport permit, and if the commission finds that the 
Transfer or Transport of water caused an unreasonable 
effect on the overall economy or environment of Inyo 
County, in addition to any other penalties that may be 
imposed for violation of this Code, the commission may 
order the person who undertook the Transfer or Transport 
to implement such work as the commission finds is 
necessary to mitigate any significant adverse effects caused 
by the water Transfer or Transport undertaken by the 
person.

D. Standard of Proof. The standard for proof in any such challenge shall be substantial 
evidence. Evidence may be provided by the beneficially interested party that 
submitted the challenge, the Water Department and/or by the person or entity 
undertaking the Transfer or Transport of water. 

E.     Appeals. Appeals of a determination by the Water Department or of a Water 
Commission decision may be made as provided in this chapter for other decisions 
of the Water Department or Water Commission (see sections 7.02.90 through 
7.02.105).”

SECTION 2
Severability
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this chapter, as applied to any 
entity or person, is for any reason held to be illegal, invalid, unconstitutional, or outside the 
jurisdiction and/or the police powers of the County of Inyo, as determined by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the chapter as to other 
entities or persons. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this chapter is 
for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of 



18

competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 
hereof. This chapter, and each section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase hereof, 
would have been enacted irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, 
subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared illegal, invalid, unconstitutional, or 
outside the jurisdiction and/or police powers of the County of Inyo as to certain entities or 
persons.

SECTION 3
Repeal of Ordinance No. 1004  (Chapter 18.77 of the Inyo County Code)
Inyo County Ordinance No. 1004, effective on October 27, 1998, and codified as Chapter 
18.77 of the Inyo County Code, is hereby repealed in its entirety upon the effective date of 
this Ordinance.

SECTION 4
Effective Date
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect thirty (30) days after its 
adoption. Before the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the adoption thereof, this 
Ordinance shall be published once in a newspaper of general circulation printed and 
published in the County of Inyo, State of California. The Clerk of this Board is hereby 
instructed and ordered to publish this Ordinance together with the names of the Board 
voting for and against the same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this__ day of ________   by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

        ___________________________________
Chairperson, Inyo County Board of 

Supervisors

Attest: Clint G. Quilter
Clerk of the Board

By: ____________________________
           Assistant Clerk of the Board



1

Resolution No. 2020-10

A RESOLUTION OF THE INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
MODIFYING RESOLUTION 99-43 TO EXPAND THE WATER 

COMMISSION’S DUTIES AND AUTHORITY TO INCLUDE REVIEWING 
AND DECIDING UPON APPLICATIONS FOR A WATER TRANSFER OR 

TRANSPORT PERMIT PURSUANT TO ORDINANCE 1253

WHEREAS, on October 27, 1998, Ordinance 1004 (Chapter 18.77 of the Inyo County 
Code) became effective. The purpose of Ordinance 1004 was to regulate the transfer or 
transport of water from groundwater basins located wholly or partially within Inyo County; and

WHEREAS, Resolution 99-43 was thereafter adopted to affirm a policy concerning the 
extraction and use of Inyo County’s Water Resources, establishing policies and procedures to 
implement said policy, and to govern the County’s performance of its duties and 
responsibilities under the Inyo County / Los Angeles Long Term Water Agreement, final 
Environmental Impact Report, Memorandum of Understanding and Ordinance No. 1004; and

WHEREAS, subsequent to the effective date of Ordinance 1004, California law was 
clarified to confirm that counties have the power to regulate the transfer or transport of groundwater 
under the county’s general police power, separate and independent from a county’s zoning 
regulatory authority; and

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors updated and continued the 
regulation of the transfer or transport of water from groundwater basins located wholly or 
partially within Inyo County via Ordinance No. 20-  under the County’s general police power 
separate and independent of the County’s zoning regulatory powers; and

WHEREAS, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors desires to update the duties of the 
Water Commission, Water Department, and the Board, set forth in Resolution 99-43 to be 
consistent with Ordinance 1253.

//



2

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the circumstances described above, BE IT 
RESOLVED by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors as set forth below. 

SECTION I. Inyo County Resolution 99-43 Part 2 Section III.A is hereby modified in its 
entirety as follows:

“Section III. Inyo County Water Commission
A. Purpose ·

The purpose of the Inyo County Water Commission is to assist in the 
implementation of the County Policy on Extraction and Use of Water, Agreement, FEIR, 
MOU and Ordinance 1253 as set forth below.

1. Remain informed and educated about issues relating to water resources.
 

2. Receive, hear and decide every application for a water transfer or transport permit as 
required by Ordinance 1253.

3. Conduct meetings to inform and educate the public about, and to solicit public 
opinion on, all issues, decisions, projects, programs and activities arising out of, or 
associated with, the Agreement, the FEIR, the MOU, and the transfer and transport 
of water regulated by Ordinance 1253.

4. Continuously review implementation of the Agreement, the FEIR, the MOU, and 
any transfer or transport of water regulated by Ordinance 1253 and submit periodic 
written recommendations or advice to this Board, together with reports on the views 
of the public, concerning issues, decisions, projects, programs and activities arising 
out of, or associated with, the implementation of the Agreement, the FEIR, the 
MOU, and any transfer or transport of water regulated by Ordinance 1253. At least 
every six months, the commission shall submit written recommendations, advice 
and reports to the Board, and/or present such recommendations, advice and reports 
to the Board at a workshop.

5. Serve, as required by Section 15.12.040 of the Inyo County Code, as the 
environmental review board and lead environmental agency for the purpose of the 
California Environmental Quality Act on all projects permitted, carried out, 
approved, funded or processed by the Water Department. Such projects include, but 
are not limited to, the Lower Owens River Project, enhancement/mitigation projects 
undertaken pursuant to the Long Term Agreement, mitigation projects adopted in 
the FEIR, groundwater pumping by the City of Los Angeles under the Long Term 
Agreement, applications for a water transfer or transport permit as required by 
Ordinance 1253, and salt cedar control, other invasive plant control, and weed 
control undertaken pursuant to the Long Term Agreement. The environmental 
responsibilities of the Commission do not include serving as the environmental 



3

review board or lead agency in regard to the release of any land pursuant to the 
Long Term Agreement, the rehabilitation and development of parks pursuant to the 
Long Term Agreement, or the transfer of town water systems under the Long Term 
Agreement.

6. Conduct meetings, as may be requested by this Board, inform and educate the 
public about, and to solicit public opinion on, water resource issues and decisions 
which arise outside of the Agreement, the FEIR, and the MOU;

7. Submit,  as may be requested by this Board, recommendations or advice, together 
with reports on the views of the public, concerning water resource issues and 
decisions which arise outside of the Agreement, the FEIR, the MOU and Ordinance 
1253;

8. Designate two members of the commission to serve on the Standing Committee.

9. The responsibilities of the Water Commission do not  extend  to the implementation 
of the provisions of the Agreement for the Transfer of the Town Water Systems 
(Section XI) the Release of City Owned Lands (Section XV of Resolution 99-43), 
nor to the implementation of provisions of the Agreement for Park Rehabilitation, 
Development, and Maintenance (Section XIV. B of Resolution 99-43). These 
responsibilities are delegated to other commissions and departments of the County 
as set forth in Resolution 99-43.

10. For informational purposes, the Water Commission is to receive copies of any status 
reports concerning these activities that may be presented to the Board of 
Supervisors.”

SECTION II. Inyo County Resolution 99-43 Part 2 Section IV.A is hereby modified as 
follows:

“A. Purpose
The purpose of the Inyo County Water Department is to assist  in  the implementation of the 
County Policy on Extraction and Use of Water, the Agreement, FEIR MOU and Ordinance 1253 
as set forth below.”

SECTION III. Inyo County Resolution 99-43 Part 2 Section IV.A.3 is hereby modified as 
follows:

“3. Carry out those duties as expressly set forth in and reasonably inferred by the 
requirements of Ordinance 1253.”

//
//
//



4

SECTION IV. Inyo County Resolution 99-43 Part 2 Section IX.A is hereby modified as 
follows:

“SECTION IX. Board of Supervisors
A. Supervision of Implementation of County Water Policy
This Board shall be responsible for, and shall direct, the implementation of the County 

Policy on Extraction and Use of Water and the County's implementation of the Agreement, 
FEIR, and MOU and of Ordinance 1253. In exercising this authority, this Board shall consider 
any recommendations of appropriate commissions and staff, and the views of the public and 
others.”

SECTION IV. Any portion of Inyo County Resolution 99-43 not modified by this Resolution 
remains in full force and effect.

Section VI. A copy of Resolution 99-43 Sections III, IV, and IX, as amended by this Resolution, 
is attached hereto for convenience as Exhibit A.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of March, 2020, by the following vote of the 
Board of Supervisors:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

_____________________________
Matt Kingsley, Chair
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

ATTEST:

Clint Quilter, Board Clerk

By _____________________________
      Darcy Ellis,
       Assistant Board Clerk



EXHIBIT A

SECTIONS III, IV AND IX OF RESOLUTION 99-43 
AS AMENDED BY RESOLUTION NO. 2020-10

A RESOLUTION OF THE INYO COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS AFFIRMING A POLICY CONCERNING THE 

EXTRACTION AND USE OF INYO
COUNTY'S WATER RESOURCES, ESTABLISHING POLICIES AND  

PROCEDURES TO IMPLEMENT THIS POLICY AND TO  GOVERN  THE  
COUNTY'S PERFORMANCE OF ITS DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

UNDER THE INYO COUNTY/LOS ANGELES LONG TERM WATER 
AGREEMENT, FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT, 

MEMORANDUM  OF  UNDERSTANDING AND ORDINANCE 1253

(Adopted July 27, 1999)
(Amended March 17, 2020)



SECTION III. Inyo County Water Commission

A. Purpose ·

The purpose of the Inyo County Water Commission is to assist in the implementation of the 
County Policy on Extraction and Use of Water, Agreement, FEIR, MOU and Ordinance 1253 as 
set forth below.

1. Remain informed and educated about issues relating to water resources.
 

2. Receive, hear and decide every application for a water transfer or transport permit as 
required by Ordinance 1253.

3. Conduct meetings to inform and educate the public about, and to solicit public opinion 
on, all issues, decisions, projects, programs and activities arising out of, or associated 
with, the Agreement, the FEIR, the MOU, and the transfer and transport of water 
regulated by Ordinance 1253.

4. Continuously review implementation of the Agreement, the FEIR, the MOU, and any 
transfer or transport of water regulated by Ordinance 1253 and submit periodic written 
recommendations or advice to this Board, together with reports on the views of the 
public, concerning issues, decisions, projects, programs and activities arising out of, or 
associated with, the implementation of the Agreement, the FEIR, the MOU, and any 
transfer or transport of water regulated by Ordinance 1253. At least every six months, the 
commission shall submit written recommendations, advice and reports to the Board, 
and/or present such recommendations, advice and reports to the Board at a workshop.

5. Serve, as required by Section 15.12.040 of the Inyo County Code, as the environmental 
review board and lead environmental agency for the purpose of the California 
Environmental Quality Act on all projects permitted, carried out, approved, funded or 
processed by the Water Department. Such projects include, but are not limited to, the 
Lower Owens River Project, enhancement/mitigation projects undertaken pursuant to the 
Long Term Agreement, mitigation projects adopted in the FEIR, groundwater pumping 
by the City of Los Angeles under the Long Term Agreement, applications for a water 
transfer or transport permit as required by Ordinance 1253, and salt cedar control, other 
invasive plant control, and weed control undertaken pursuant to the Long Term 
Agreement. The environmental responsibilities of the Commission do not include 
serving as the environmental review board or lead agency in regard to the release of any 
land pursuant to the Long Term Agreement, the rehabilitation and development of parks 
pursuant to the Long Term Agreement, or the transfer of town water systems under the 
Long Term Agreement.

6. Conduct meetings, as may be requested by this Board, inform and educate the public 
about, and to solicit public opinion on, water resource issues and decisions which arise 
outside of the Agreement, the FEIR, and the MOU;

7. Submit,  as may be requested by this Board, recommendations or advice, together with 
reports on the views of the public, concerning water resource issues and decisions which 
arise outside of the Agreement, the FEIR, the MOU and Ordinance 1253;



8. Designate two members of the commission to serve on the Standing Committee.

9. The responsibilities of the Water Commission do not  extend  to the implementation of 
the provisions of the Agreement for the Transfer of the Town Water Systems (Section 
XI) the Release of City Owned Lands (Section XV of Resolution 99-43), nor to the 
implementation of provisions of the Agreement for Park Rehabilitation, Development, 
and Maintenance (Section XIV. B of Resolution 99-43). These responsibilities are 
delegated to other commissions and departments of the County as set forth in Resolution 
99-43.

10. For informational purposes, the Water Commission is to receive copies of any status 
reports concerning these activities that may be presented to the Board of Supervisors.

B. Qual ifications

The Inyo County Water Commission shall consist of five members all of whom shall be 
residents of Inyo County. Members of the commission need not have particular professional 
training, skills or experience, but commission members should have knowledge of the 
problems and issues arising from the extraction and use of the water resources of the Owens 
Valley and Inyo County.

C. Appointment

This Board shall appoint members of the Inyo County Water Commission. Except as 
provided below, members of the Commission shall serve for a four-year term. In selecting 
members of the commission, this Board shall attempt to appoint applicants who reside 
throughout the Owens Valley and Inyo County.

D. Current Members

Each member currently serving on the Inyo County Water Commission may continue to 
serve on the commission for the unexpired portion of that member's term and until a 
successor has been appointed. Current and future members of the commission may seek 
reappointment to the commission upon the expiration of their terms.

E. Vacancies and Removal

Any member of the commission who fails to attend three consecutive commission meetings 
without good cause shall be considered automatically removed from the commission and a 
vacancy shall be deemed to have occurred. This Board shall be the sole judge as to whether 
good cause is shown. A Water Commissioner shall be considered a county officer within the 
meaning of Section 1770 of the Government Code of the State for determining when a 
vacancy occurs other than as provided above.

Any member of the commission may be removed by this Board with the approval of three 
members of this Board. A decision on whether to remove a commissioner shall only be 



made by vote of this Board during a regular public meeting of this Board.

Upon the creation of a vacancy on the commission, and two months prior to the 
expiration of the term of office of a commission member, the Board Clerk shall notify the 
public by news release, publication and other means that this Board is seeking qualified 
applicants to serve on the commission. Applicants shall submit their names, addresses 
and telephone numbers along with brief resumes of their qualifications and experience 
to the Board Clerk within the time period specified by the Board Clerk. This Board shall 
endeavor to appoint, or to reappoint, commissioners within thirty days after the close of 
the period for submitting applications.

F. Terms of Office

A vacancy that occurs other than by the expiration of a term shall be filled by 
appointment of this Board for the unexpired portion of the term. Terms shall expire at 
midnight on December 31, however, members may continue to serve on the 
commission after the expiration of their terms until this Board has appointed a 
successor.

G. Compensation

Members of the Water Commission shall receive $75.00 per commission meeting, and 
per attendance at any water related meeting, conference or seminar, unless otherwise 
authorized by order of this Board, plus reimbursement for mileage, traveling and other 
expenses usually allowed by the County. Compensation paid to any one member for 
attending meetings of the commission (exclusive of reimbursement for travel, mileage 
and other expenses) shall not exceed $2,000.00 in any one fiscal year without prior 
approval of this Board.

H. Chairman and Vice-Chairman

At its first meeting in each calendar year, the Water Commission shall elect for a term 
of one year a chairman and a vice-chairman from among its members. In the event of a 
vacancy in the office of chairman or vice-chairman, the Water Commission may elect 
one of its members to fill such vacancy for the remaining unexpired portion of the term.

I. Meetings

The commission shall hold such regular meetings at such times and in such locations as 
is determined by the commission members. Regular meetings shall be conducted at 
least every two months unless the commission members determine that a meeting 
within a two-month period is not necessary. The commission may hold such additional 
and special meetings as may be called by the commission chairman or by any three 
members of the commission upon seventy-two hours' notice by the secretary of the 



commission and after giving any required notice to such newspapers, radio stations and 
television stations as have made written request for such notice.

J. Expenditures

The expenditures of the commission shall be within the amount appropriated for that 
purpose by this Board, which shall determine and provide the funds necessary for the 
commission's work.

K. Procedural Requirements

The commission shall adopt rules for the transaction of business and shall keep minutes 
of its meetings, transactions, findings and determinations, which records shall be public 
records as may be required by law. A quorum shall be three members; however, action 
on any matter before the commission may only be by majority vote of the five members 
of the commission.

L. Conflict of Interest

A member of the Water Commission who believes that he or she has a conflict of 
interest concerning an item before the comm1ss1on shall disqualify himself or herself 
from discussing the item or voting on the item and shall not in any way attempt to influence 
the vote on the item. In the event that the County Counsel, or another authority legally 
empowered to make such a determination, deems that a member of the Water Commission 
has a conflict of interest concerning an item before the commission, the commission 
member shall not participate in discussion of the item, vote on the item, or in any way 
attempt to influence the outcome of a vote on the item.

M. Advisory Committee

After consultation with the Water Commission, this Board may establish an advisory 
committee or committees to assist the commission in its consideration of any item upon 
which it is to make a recommendation to this Board. This Board shall appoint the 
members of any advisory committee or committees.

SECTION IV. Inyo County Water Department

A. Purpose

The purpose of the Inyo County Water Department is to assist in  the implementation of the 
County Policy on Extraction and Use of Water, the Agreement, FEIR MOU and Ordinance 
1253as set forth below.

1. Monitor the environment of the Owens Valley and, with the Water Commission, the 
Board of Supervisors, the Technical Group and the Standing Committee, manage 



the valley's water resources in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement.

2. Coordinate for the County the implementation and oversight of all activities and 
projects, including enhancement/mitigation projects, in or arising from, the 
Agreement, the FEIR and the MOU. This responsibility does not extend to those 
activities, programs and projects that have been expressly delegated by this Board to 
other County departments.

3. Carry out those duties as expressly set forth in and reasonably inferred by the 
requirements of Ordinance 1253.

4. Conduct scientific and other research related to the County's water resources.

5. Serve as staff to the Inyo County Water Commission.

6. Remain informed and educated about issues relating to water resources and 
informing and educating the public about such issues.

7. Maintain a water resources library and research center.

8. Advise this Board and others concerning the potential effects on the County's water 
resources of proposed decisions, activities, projects, legislation and administrative 
actions and becoming involved, as may be directed by this Board, in such decisions, 
activities, projects, legislation and actions.

B. Staff

The staff of the Inyo County Water Department shall consist of a department director 
appointed by this Board and of such other staff, consultants and contractors as may be 
approved by this Board.

//

//

//

//

//

//

//

//



SECTION IX. Board of Supervisors

A. Supervision of Implementation of County Water Policy

This Board shall be responsible for, and shall direct, the implementation of the County 
Policy on Extraction and Use of Water and the County's implementation of the 
Agreement, FEIR, and MOU and of Ordinance 1253. In exercising this authority, this 
Board shall consider any recommendations of appropriate commissions and staff, and 
the views of the public and others.

B. Determination of Inyo County Standing Committee Vote

Two members of this Board shall be designated by this Board to serve on the Standing 
Committee. As provided by Section II of the Long Term Agreement, the County and the 
City of Los Angeles each have only one vote on the Standing Committee. This Board shall 
determine the County's position on any item to be voted upon by the Standing Committee.



County of Inyo

County Administrator - Emergency Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  March 17, 2020 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Continuation of Existence of Local Emergency 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board discuss and consider staff’s recommendation regarding continuation of the local emergency 
known as the “Here It Comes Emergency” that was proclaimed in anticipation of run-off conditions from near-
record snowpack posing extreme peril to the safety of property and persons in Inyo County.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
During your March 28, 2017 Board of Supervisors meeting your Board took action to approve Resolution 2017-15 
proclaiming the existence of a local emergency, which has been named the Here It Comes Emergency, in 
anticipation of run-off conditions from near-record snowpack posing extreme peril to the safety of property and 
persons in Inyo County and which are likely beyond the control of the services, personnel, equipment and 
facilities of the County of Inyo. During your June 27, 2017 meeting, your Board took action to amend Resolution 
2017-15 to recognize that the County moved from the Preparedness stage to the Response stage, and to include 
new damages and impacts that have occurred in the operational area. 

Per State law, the governing body shall review the need for continuing the local emergency at least once every 
60 days until the governing body terminates the local emergency. Staff recommends the Board continue this 
review, and that Resolution 2017-15 be updated as necessary, until further evaluation of conditions are 
completed and staff makes the recommendation to end the emergency.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 3/10/2020
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 3/10/2020



Board of Equalization AGENDA                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         March  17, 2020

County of Inyo
Board of Equalization

Board of Supervisors Room
County Administrative Center

224 North Edwards
Independence, California

March 17, 2020

1:00 p.m. 1. MINUTE APPROVAL – Request approval of the minutes of the Board of Equalization meeting 
of March 10, 2020.

2. OATHS – The Assistant Clerk of the Board will administer oaths to all parties planning to 
provide testimony during today’s proceedings, as well as anyone who will give evidence during 
the assessment appeal hearing.

3. ASSESSMENT APPEAL HEARING to consider Assessment Appeal No. 2018-17, concerning 
Assessor Parcel No. 048-421-26, submitted by Jean C. Little.

4. ADJOURN







BOARD OF EQUALIZATION

MEMBERS oF THE BoARD
DAN TOTHEROH
JEFF CRIFFITHS

RICK PUCCI
MARK TILLEMANS
MATT KINGSLEY

CLINT G. QUILTER
(llcrk o.f the Boarcl

DARCY ELLIS

COUNTY OF INYO
P. O. BOX N o INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526

TELEPHoNE (760) 878-0373
e-rnail : dellis@inyocounty.us

Hg. CAM{NTO g{ERR,{ Assislanl (llcrk ofthc Boarcl

January 21,2020

Ms. Jean C. Little
714 W. Peach Hollow Circle
Pearland, TX77584

Re: Assessor Parcel No. 048-421-26

Dear Ms. Little,

Please be advised that your application appealing the assessed valuation ofthe above referenced property, Application
No.2018-17, has been setto be heard by the Inyo County Board of Equalization on March 17,2020 at 1 p.m., in the
Board of Supervisors Room, located at the County Administrative Center at224 N. Edwards, Independence, California.

At the date and time set forth above you must appear personally at the hearing or be represented by an agent who shall
be thoroughly familiar with the facts pertaining to the matter before the Board. Any person, other than an attorney at
law, purpofting to act as an agent for you shall, prior to the hearing, file with the Clerk written authority, signed by you,
to represent you at the hearing. An appearance by an officer or an employee of a corporate applicant or by a relative
mentioned by Board of Equalization Rule 320 requires no written authorizatiorr. Failure to appear, personally or by an
authorized agent, may result in your application being denied. If you are unable to attend the hearing as scheduled your
application may be continued by the Board upon your showing of good cause. Good cause may be established only by
a written statement signed by the applicant, or his authorized agent, setting forth the facts and circumstances explaining
the inability to appear at the scheduled hearing. Such written declaration must be received by the Board of Equalization
prior to the date and time of the scheduled hearing.

Denial of an application for lack of appearance of the applicant or his agent may be reconsidered when the applicant
furnishes evidence of good cause for the failure to appear or to make a timely request for postponement and files a
written request for reconsideration within a period not to exceed 60 days from the date of mailing of the notification of
the denial due to lack ofappearance.

Applicable law requires that yor.r be provided notification of the following:

1. The Board of Equalization is required to find taxable value of the property in question from the evidence presented
at the hearing.

2. The Board of Equalization can raise as well as lower or confirm the assessment being appealed.

3. The application for a reduction in the assessment of a portion of an improved real property, or a portion of
installations which are partially real property and partially personal property, may result in an increase in the
unprotested assessment of the other portion or portions of the property which increase will ffiet, in whole or in
part, any reduction in the protest assessment.

Neither the Assessor, Clerk of the Board of Equalization, members of the Board of Equalization, nor the Board's legal
staff can provide you with legal advice or representation concerning this matter. Questions concerning the Inyo County
Assessor's valuation of the property in question can be directed to the County Assessor by contacting him at P.O. Box J,

Independence, CA 93526, or by telephone at (760) 878-0302. The Application for Changed Assessment will be



provided to the Board of Equalization, without attachments. You should be prepared to provide your evidence,
including any evidence or explanations you attached to the Application, to the Board at the hearing.

Please note that Inyo County charges $160 per parcel for written findings of fact. Findings may be requested
at any time prior to the beginning of your hearing and the fees for this service should be paid before the hearing, but
in any case, prior to the end of your hearing. However, if you withdraw your request for findings of facts by the
end of the hearing, any fees paid will be refunded by the clerk. Your request, if not designated on the appeal
application, can be made in a separate written request to the clerk, or orally on record just prior to the start of your
hearing.

Requests for continuances or other correspondence to the Board of Equalization should be addressed to: Clerk of the
Board of Equalization, County of Inyo, P.O. Drawer N, Independence, CA 93526. The Clerk can be contacted at (760)
878-0373.

Included with this correspondence is a Hearing Date Confirmation Notice, which must be returned to the address listed
in the above paragraph not less than2l days prior to the indicated hearing date.

Sincerely

Darcy Ellis,
Assistant Clerk of the Board

de
xc: David Stottlemyre, County Assessor

Marshall Rudolph, County Counsel



BOE-305-CN REV 01 (09-10)

HEARING DATE CONFIRMATION NOTICE

This confirmation notice must be retumed not /ess
than 21 days pior to the indicated heaing date.
Mail or fax to the Clerk of the Board at fhe address
shown.

COUNTY OF INYO
BOARD OF

EQUALIZATION
P,O. f)rawel N^ [ndependence. CA 93526

(760) tlTtl-0373
del I is@i n-vocounty. Lrs

HEARING DATEAND TIME- APPLICATION NUMBER(S)

HEARING LOCATION

PARCEL OR ASSESSMENT NUMBER(S) APPLICANT

- SEVERALAPPLICATIONS MAY BE SET FOR HEARING AT THE SAI\iIE TIME, AND EACH WLL BE CONSIDERED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE IN THE ORDER LISTED ON THE AGENOA,

fl Cnecrone of the boxes below

I will be present on the scheduled hearing date.

Please bring 8 copies of any evidence you wish to present to the Assessment Appeals Board

I request my right to a one-time postponement of my hearing to another hearing date. To schedule your hearing for a future date,
please contact the Clerk of the Board at ( 760 ) 878 - 0373

I understand that if this is not my first postponement request, I must appear atthe scheduled hearing to request another postponement
and give reasonable cause to the appeals board. lt is the sole discretion of the board to grant or deny this request. lf denied, I must
be prepared to proceed with the hearing as scheduled.

lf you are requesting a postponement and the date of the currently scheduled hearing is within 120 days of the expiration of the
two-year limitations period set by Revenue and Taxation Code section 1604(c), the Clerk will provide you with a waiver (form BOE-

305-!\4 to indefinitely extend and toll the period in which your appeal is to be heard and decided.

T I wish to withdraw my application. Withdrawals are final and will conclude any further action on the appeal. (Your attendance at the
hearing is not required.)

I understand that my withdrawal may only be granted if the assessor has not provided me with a written notice of an intention to
recommend an increase in the assessed value of the property. Additionally, the county Board can decide to review an assessment

even though the Assessor and applicant may have agreed to withdraw the appeal.

I I have signed a stipulation with the assessor's office. (Your attendance at the hearing is not required.)

ln order to ensure proper scheduling of assessment appeals hearings, you must complete and return this form not less than 21

days prior to the date of your hearing. Failure to return this confirmation notice may result in your case being removed from the
agenda on the scheduled date. Failure to appear at the scheduled hearing by you or an authorized representative may result in
your application being abandoned and denied for lack of appearance unless you have requested a postponement.

CERTIFICATION

I certify under penalty of perjury that I am the owner, or person authorized to sign on behalf of the owner, of the
above referenced proper$.

PRINT NAME OF AUTHORIZED SIGNER TITLE

PANY NAME EMAIL

n owNER IAGENT lATroRNEy ! snouse n REGTSTERED DoMEsrc PARTNER !cHrLD !PARENT nPERSoNAFFECTED

n coRPoRATE oFFrcER oR DESTcNATED EMpLoyEE! cnlrronrunATToRNEy srATE BAR NUMBER:


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATIO
	3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS [Pursua

	 Open Session
	4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	5. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	6. PUBLIC COMMENT
	7. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two

	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	8. Request Board find that, consistent with the adopt
	Agenda Request Form

	9. Request Board change the authorized strength in th
	Agenda Request Form
	Building  Maintenance Worker I, II, III, or IV

	10. Request Board change the authorized strength in th
	Agenda Request Form


	 Consent Agenda
	11. Request Board approve the Memorandum of Understand
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo-SNA Memorandum of Understanding

	12. Request Board: A) declare ADAPCO the sole source p
	Agenda Request Form

	13. Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the MOU b
	Agenda Request Form
	Agreement with City of Bishop - Building Inspection
	City of Bishop MOA Amendment 1
	City of Bishop MOA Amendment 2

	14. Request Board: A) declare the California Governor'
	Agenda Request Form

	15. Request Board: A) authorize the County of Inyo to
	Agenda Request Form
	CalWARN Articles of Agreement
	CalWARN Signature Page 

	16. Request Board authorize issuance of a blanket purc
	Agenda Request Form

	17. Request Board waive the Purchasing Policy requirem
	Agenda Request Form

	18. Request Board: A) approve Agreement No. 20-10008 b
	Agenda Request Form
	Agreement No. 20-10008
	California Civil Rights Laws Certification
	Medi-Cal Disclosure Statement
	Contractor Certification Clause 307

	19. Request Board approve the contract between the Cou
	Agenda Request Form
	Triple P Family Transitions contract

	20. Request Board authorize a purchase order in an amo
	Agenda Request Form
	20191210Sheriff - SunRidgeSoleSourcePaymentRatification
	iRIMS LAW MOBILE QUOTE


	 Departmental
	21. Request Board receive an update from the Californi
	Agenda Request Form
	CPUC Presentation
	Ivanpah-Control Fact Sheet
	Control-Silver Peak Fact Sheet

	22. Request Board hear a presentation from representat
	23. Request Board accept and provide comments on the d
	Agenda Request Form
	2019 General Plan Annual Progress Report

	24. Request board approve a request a change in owners
	Agenda Request Form
	ATTACHMENT A The Lonely Pine LLC - Ownership Change
	ATTACHMENT B UL Holdings Inc - Letter Assignment to Alex Scherer re Lone Pine (SIGNED)

	25. Request Board: A) approve Ordinance 1253 titled, "
	Agenda Request Form
	Ordinance 1253
	Resolution No. 2020-10
	Resolution No. 2020-10 Exhibit A

	26. Request Board discuss and consider staff’s recomme
	Agenda Request Form


	 Timed Items
	27. 1 P.M. - BOARD OF EQUALIZATION - The Board of Supe
	BOE Agenda 03.17.20
	Assessment Appeal Application 2018-17
	Applicant Hearing Notice


	 Comment
	28. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports



